
           

City of Lubbock, Texas
Regular City Council Meeting

May 24, 2022
Tray Payne, Mayor
Steve Massengale, Mayor Pro Tem, District 4
Christy Martinez-Garcia, Councilwoman, District 1
Shelia Patterson Harris, Councilwoman, District 2
Mark W. McBrayer, Councilman, District 3
Dr. Jennifer Wilson, Councilwoman, District 5
Latrelle Joy, Councilwoman, District 6

    W. Jarrett Atkinson, City Manager
Chad Weaver, City Attorney

Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

   

http://www.mylubbock.us

City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

City of Lubbock City Council Meetings are available to all persons regardless of disability. If you require special assistance,
please contact the City Secretary's Office at (806)775-2061 or write to Post Office Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas 79457 at least 48
hours in advance of the meeting.

Note: On occasion the City Council may consider agenda items out of order.

2:00 p.m. - City Council convenes in City Council Chambers in Work Session regarding items for
presentation and discussion on such issues that may require in-depth consideration by the City
Council. No action will be taken by the City Council in Work Session.
           
1. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to

appear in person before the meeting of the City Council, regarding Item 2.1 on the
Work Session Agenda, shall complete the sign-up form provided at the meeting, no
later than 2:00 p.m. on May 24, 2022.  Citizen Comments provide an opportunity for
citizens to make comments and express a position on agenda items. Any comment
received that is in the nature of asking a question will be referred to an appropriate
member of the City staff for a response.

  

 

2. Hear and discuss presentations regarding the following and provide guidance to staff as
appropriate.

  

 

2. 1. Council Strategic Planning Discussion: 
Council Orientation
Unified Development Code
Discuss timeline, process and requirements for a possible bond election in November
2022 for road and street improvements

  

 

At the completion of the Work Session, City Council recesses into Executive Session.
 

3. Executive Session   

 

http://www.mylubbock.us


3. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.071,
with legal counsel for advice about pending or contemplated litigation or settlement
agreement and on matters in which the duty of the attorney under the Texas Disciplinary
Rules of Professional Conduct conflicts with Chapter 551.

  

 

3. 1. 1. Chapter 38, Lubbock Code of Ordinances   

 

3. 1. 2. Chapter 21, Texas Property Code   

 

3. 1. 3. Lot 305-A, Midway Park Addition   

 

3. 1. 4. Canyon Park, Block 1 and Block 2   

 

3. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Section
551.072, to deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real property.

  

 

3. 2. 1. Loop 88 Land Acquisition   

 

3. 2. 2. Texas Park and Wildlife Department - Park Land Dedication   

 

3. 2. 3. 4.2542 acres in Block AC, Section 30, being more commonly known as 6601 Upland
Avenue

  

 

3. 2. 4. Canyon Park, Block 1 and Block 2   

 

3. 2. 5. Lake 7   

 

3. 2. 6. 4.67 acres in Block B, Section 2, Abstract 659, RRC, and 4.54 acres in Block B,
Section 3, Abstract 95, RRC

  

 

3. 2. 7. A portion of 8 acres in Block B, Section 5, Abstract 96   

 

3. 2. 8. Lot 305-A, Midway Park Addition   

 

Adjourn from Executive Session
 

4:30 p.m. - City Council reconvenes in Open Session in City Council Chambers.
 



4. Ceremonial Items   

 

4. 1. Invocation   

 

4. 2. Pledges of Allegiance   

 

4. 3. Proclamations and Presentations   

 

4. 3. 1. City of Lubbock Designated 2021 Tree City USA   

 

4. 4. Board Recognitions:

Audit & Investment Committee
Edwin Schulz
 
Keep Lubbock Beautiful Advisory Committee
Kim Davis
 
Lake Alan Henry Board of Appeals
Shannon Hansen
Kristyn Sorensen
 
Libraries Board
James Brian Beauchamp
 
Public Transit Advisory Board
Naomi Couture
 
Veterans Advisory Committee
Aaron Johnson

 

Call to Order
 

5. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to
appear in-person before a regular meeting of the City Council, regarding any matter
posted on the City Council Agenda below, shall complete the sign-up form provided
at the meeting, no later than 5:00 p.m. on May 24, 2022.  Citizen Comments provide
an opportunity for citizens to make comments and express a position on agenda
items.  Any comment received that is in the nature of asking a question will be
referred to an appropriate member of the City staff for a response.

  

 

6. Minutes   

 



6. 1. April 26, 2022 Regular City Council Meeting
April 27, 2022 Special City Council Meeting - Coffee with the Mayor

 

7. Consent Agenda - Items considered to be routine are enacted by one motion without
separate discussion. If the City Council desires to discuss an item, the item is removed
from the Consent Agenda and considered separately.

  

 

7. 1. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance
No. 2022-O0079, Amendment 26, amending the FY 2021-22 Budget for municipal
purposes respecting Civil Service Positions; providing for filing; and providing for a
savings clause.

 

7. 2. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance
Amendment 27, amending the FY 2021-22 Budget for municipal purposes respecting
General Fund Fees; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.    

 

7. 3. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance
Amendment 28, amending the FY 2021-22 budget for municipal purposes respecting the
General Fund, Water/Wastewater Fund, Storm Water Fund, and the Fleet Capital Fund to
appropriate funding for Capital Improvement Project 92769, FY 2022-23 Pre-Purchase
Vehicles; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

 

7. 3. 1. Resolution - Fleet: Consider a resolution authorizing the City Manager to purchase
vehicles and equipment for Fiscal Year 2022-23.

 

7. 4. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance
Amendment 29, amending the FY 2021-22 budget for municipal purposes respecting The
Streets Capital Fund to appropriate additional funding for Capital Improvement Project
92697, Street Maintenance Program; providing for filing; and providing for a savings
clause.

 

7. 5. Ordinance 1st Reading - Finance: Consider an ordinance of the City of Lubbock, Texas,
granting to West Texas Gas, LLC, the franchise and rights to conduct natural gas
operations within the municipal boundaries of the City of Lubbock.

 

7. 6. Resolution - Wastewater: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Contract 16453, with STP Well Service, for monitor well maintenance and repair services,
for the Lubbock Land Application Site and the Hancock Land Application Site.

 

7. 7. Resolution - Community Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute an amendment to Community Development Funding Contract 16033, and all
related documents, through the Emergency Solutions Grant Coronavirus Aid, Relief and
Economic Security Act CARES (ESG-CV) administered by the U.S. Department of
Housing & Urban Development (HUD), with Paul’s Project of Lubbock, to provide
services to qualified low to moderate income persons and families experiencing



homelessness.
 

7. 8. Resolution - Community Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute an amendment to Community Development Funding Contract 16059, and all
related documents, through the Emergency Solutions Grant Coronavirus Aid, Relief and
Economic Security Act CARES (ESG-CV) administered by the U.S. Department of
Housing & Urban Development (HUD), with the Salvation Army of Lubbock, to provide
services to qualified low to moderate income persons and families experiencing
homelessness.

 

7. 9. Resolution - Aviation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract
16447, with Tommy Klein Construction, Inc., to construct a Federal Inspection Service
Facility at the Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport.

 

7. 10. Resolution - Fleet Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Purchase Order 31066317, per BuyBoard Contract 601-19, with Grapevine Dodge Chrysler
Jeep Ram, for the purchase of five 1/2-ton, Extended Cab, 4x4 Pickup Trucks for Codes
Administration, Water-Industrial Monitoring, and Stormwater Utility Departments, and one
1/2-ton Extended Cab 4x2 Pickup for the Building Safety Department.

 

7. 11. Resolution - Parks and Recreation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Purchase Order 10025317 and Purchase Order 10025319 per BuyBoard Contract
592-19, with Child's Play, Inc., for playground replacement at Stumpy Hamilton Park
located at 22nd Street and Ave X, and Washington Park located at East 22nd Street and
Cedar Avenue.

 

7. 12. Resolution - City Manager: Consider a resolution approving American Rescue Plan Act
(ARPA) Agreement No. 16518, by and between the City of Lubbock, and Texas Tech
University Health Sciences Center, for healthcare training scholarships.  

 

8. Regular Agenda   

 

8. 1. Board Appointments - City Secretary: Consider appointments of City Council members
to the South Plains Association of Governments (SPAG) Board.

 

8. 2. Board Appointments - City Secretary: Consider appointments to the Ports-to-Plains
Trade Corridor Coalition Board.

 

8. 3. Board Appointments - City Secretary: Consider appointments to the Transportation
Policy Committee of the Lubbock Metropolitan Planning Organization (LMPO).

 

8. 4. Resolution - City Council: Take nominations and consider a resolution electing a Mayor
Pro Tem.

 



8. 5. Public Hearing - Planning (District 1): Consider a request for Zone Case 2904-K, a
request of Casey Sherwood for Jackie Mize, for a zone change from Interstate Highway
Commercial District (IHC) to Family Apartment District (A-1) at 408 Avenue T, located
south of Marsha Sharp Freeway and west of Avenue T, Overton Addition, Block 34, the
south 75 feet of Lots 1-5 less the northwest corner of Lot 5, and consider an ordinance.

 

8. 6. Public Hearing - Planning (District 1): Consider a request for Zone Case 3145-I, a
request of Deaco Group for Highwell Real Estate, for a zone change from Central Business
District, Civic Center (CB-5) to Commercial District (C-4), at 1711 Marsha Sharp
Freeway, Overton Addition, Block 106, Lots 14-15 and the south part of Lot 16, and
consider an ordinance.

 

8. 7. Public Hearing - Planning (District 1): Consider a request for Zone Case 3286-A, a
request of Leslie Rhodes for Church on the Rock, for a zone change from High-Density
Apartment District (A-2) and Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC) to
Commercial District (C-4) with a Specific Use for prisons, jails, detention facilities,
restitution centers, halfway houses for early release programs from prison, or
community-based residential centers certified by the Texas Board of Pardons and Paroles,
per Section 40.03.3103 (b), at 3003 Avenue J, located east of Avenue J and south of 30th
Street, Hufstedler Addition, Block 2, and the west 234 feet of Block 1, and consider an
ordinance.

 

8. 8. Public Hearing - Planning (District 3): Consider a request for Zone Case 2418-B, a
request of Quorum Shopping Center, for a zone change from Restricted Local Retail
District (C-2A) Specific Use for a game room to Local Retail District (C-2), at 5102
60th Street, Piedmont Addition, Tract B, and consider an ordinance.

 

8. 9. Public Hearing - Planning (District 3): Consider a request for Zone Case 1511-L, a
request of Williams and Company Real Estate for Great Minds Enterprises, Inc., for a zone
change from Restricted Local Retail District (C-2A) to Local Retail District (C-2), at 4926
50th Street, located north of 50th Street and west of Utica Avenue, Kuykendall Heights
Addition, Lot 526 and the east 41 feet of Lot 527, and consider an ordinance.

 

8. 10. Public Hearing - Planning (District 4): Consider a request for Zone Case 1876-A, a
request of Wheelhouse Development for WH LBK Lots, LP, for a zone change from Local
Retail District (C-2) to General Retail District (C-3), at 8101 Indiana Avenue, Melonie
Gardens Addition, Tract A, and consider an ordinance.

 

8. 11. Public Hearing - Planning (District 4): Consider a request for Zone Case 3257-N, a
request of Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. for 1585 Rocket Partners LLC &
1585 Development LLC, for a zone change from Apartment-Medical District (AM) to
Local Retail District (C-2), generally located south of 135th Street and east of Indiana
Avenue, on 6.4 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 1, and consider an
ordinance.

 

8. 12. Public Hearing - Planning (District 5): Consider a request for Zone Case 2916-D, a



8. 12. Public Hearing - Planning (District 5): Consider a request for Zone Case 2916-D, a
request of Centerline Engineering & Consulting, LLC for 3R & P Holdings, LLC, for a
zone change from Interstate Highway Industrial District (IHI) to Family Apartment District
(A-1), generally located east of Wausau Avenue and south of 82nd Street, on 9.68 acres of
unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 26, and consider an ordinance.

 

8. 13. Public Hearing - Planning (District 6): Consider a request for Zone Case 2538-CC, a
request of Kip Ledgerwood, for a zone change from Single-Family District (R-1) to
Commercial District (C-4), at 7419 19th Street, located west of Upland Avenue and south
of 19th Street, on 2.52 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 42, and consider
an ordinance.

 

8. 14. Public Hearing - Planning (District 6): Consider a request for Zone Case 3461-A, a
request of Viniro Holdings, LLC, for a zone change from Single Family District (R-1) to
Garden Office District (GO), at 5503 19th Street, located west of Chicago Avenue and
south of 18th Street, Clear Sky Addition, Lot 1, and consider an ordinance.

 

8. 15. Resolution - Planning: Consider a resolution approving and granting a variance from the
applicable 300-foot minimum distance provision of the City of Lubbock Ordinance No.
2009-O0060, at 1915 19th Street, for an alcoholic beverage permit for End Zone #4.

 

8. 16. Resolution - Planning: Consider a resolution approving and granting a variance from the
applicable 300-foot minimum distance provision of the City of Lubbock Ordinance No.
2009-O0060, at 3131 34th Street, for an alcoholic beverage permit for Vizo's African Bar
and Restaurant.

 



 AI# 10726 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 4. 4. 
05/24/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Board Recognitions:

Audit & Investment Committee
Edwin Schulz
 
Keep Lubbock Beautiful Advisory Committee
Kim Davis
 
Lake Alan Henry Board of Appeals
Shannon Hansen
Kristyn Sorensen
 
Libraries Board
James Brian Beauchamp
 
Public Transit Advisory Board
Naomi Couture
 
Veterans Advisory Committee
Aaron Johnson

Item Summary

Fiscal Impact

Staff/Board Recommending

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



 AI# 10732 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 1. 
05/24/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
April 26, 2022 Regular City Council Meeting
April 27, 2022 Special City Council Meeting - Coffee with the Mayor

Item Summary
April 26, 2022 Regular City Council Meeting
April 27, 2022 Special City Council Meeting - Coffee with the Mayor

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

Attachments
4.26.2022 
4.27.2022 S Coffee with the Mayor 



CITY OF LUBBOCK
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING

April 26, 2022
1:30 P. M.

The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in regular session on the 26th of April, 2022, in
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas at 1:30 p.m.

1:36 P.M. CITY COUNCIL CONVENED
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

Present:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope; Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale; Council Member Juan A. Chadis;
Council Member Randy Christian; Council Member Jeff Griffith; Council Member Latrelle Joy;
Council Member Shelia Patterson Harris; City Manager W. Jarrett Atkinson; City Secretary
Rebecca Garza; City Attorney Chad Weaver 

Note:       City Council addressed agenda items in the following order:
Citizen Comments 1; 2.1-2.2; Executive Session; 4.1-4.3.2; Citizen Comments 5; 6.1; 7.1-7.3;
7.5-7.16; 7.19-7.26; 7.29-7.35; 7.37-7.42; 7.44-7.57; 7.4; 7.17-7.18; 7.27-7.28; 7.36; 7.43;
8.1-8.11.
Item No.'s 7.36 & 8.9 were amended.

1. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to
appear in person before the meeting of the City Council, regarding Items 2.1 and 2.2 on
the Work Session Agenda, shall complete the sign-up form provided at the meeting, no
later than 1:30 p.m. on April 26, 2022.  Citizen Comments provide an opportunity for
citizens to make comments and express a position on agenda items.  Any comment
received that is in the nature of asking a question, will be referred to an appropriate
member of the City staff for a response.

Sign ups: 

Tyler Moore and Wendy Flett appeared before City Council to speak in support of 
pickleball courts under item 2.2 (Continuing American Rescue Plan Act [ARPA] 
Discussion).

2. Hear and discuss presentations regarding the following and provide guidance to staff as
appropriate.

2. 1. Comprehensive Downtown Parking Study



2. 1. Comprehensive Downtown Parking Study

Brianna Gerardi, director of business development; and Benjamin Sands, with WGI, Inc., gave
a presentation on the Comprehensive Downtown Parking Study and answered questions from
City Council. Topics discussed included: project history; community input results; occupancy
observations; study workflow; downtown parking districts; and key recommendations included
in the proposed Downtown Parking Master Plan, including consolidated parking management,
improvement of wayfinding and branding, shared parking, enhancements of the pedestrian
realm, curb management, adjustment of current parking policies, enforcement strategies,
Downtown Parking Task Force implementation, event parking planning, right size parking
plans, and the implementation time frame for the key recommendations. 

2. 2. Continuing American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Discussion

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, introduced the item, gave comments, and answered questions
from City Council.

Bill Howerton, deputy city manager; Brooke Witcher, assistant city manager; and Erik Rejino,
assistant city manager, gave a presentation and answered questions from City Council on the
affordable housing project, small business relief program, non-profit assistance program, art
business grant program, independent artist grant program, and job training programs. 

Colby VanGundy, director of parks and recreation, gave a presentation on proposed ARPA
funded projects related to parks and recreation and answered questions from City Council.
Topics discussed included: walking trails, playgrounds and amenities, cattail cleanup in the
Canyon Lakes system, pickleball courts, the proposed new parking lot at Mae Simmons Park,
the proposed Canyon Lake #6 restroom, Tom Martin Youth Sports Complex lighting
improvements, and the renovation/replacement of various park restroom facilities throughout
the community. Mr. Atkinson gave comments on the proposed parks and recreation projects
and answered questions from City Council.

Mr. Atkinson gave a presentation on American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds as they relate
to the City of Lubbock and answered questions from City Council. Topics discussed included:
an update on the ledger, available balances, the status of projects that have been approved, and
the status of projects currently in development. 

At the completion of the Work Session, City Council recessed into Executive Session.

3. Executive Session

The meeting recessed at 3:52 p.m. and reconvened in Executive Session under the
provisions of Section 551, Texas Government Code. City Council reconvened in open
session at 4:53 p.m., and the meeting was called to order at 5:08 p.m.

3. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.071, with
legal counsel for advice about pending or contemplated litigation or settlement agreement and
on matters in which the duty of the attorney under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional
Conduct conflicts with Chapter 551.

Regular City Council Meeting
April 26, 2022 Page 2 of 17



3. 1. 1. Chapter 21, Texas Property Code

3. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Section 551.072,
to deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real property.

3. 2. 1. Loop 88 Land Acquisition

3. 2. 2. Texas Parks and Wildlife Department - Park Land Dedication

3. 3. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 551.074, to
discuss personnel matters, regarding the duties, responsibilities, and/or appointments to the
Community Development and Service Board.

4:30 p.m. - City Council reconvenes in Open Session in City Council Chambers.

City Council reconvened at 4:53 p.m.

4. Ceremonial Items

4. 1. Invocation

Monsignor David Cruz, St. John the Baptist Catholic Church, led the invocation.

4. 2. Pledges of Allegiance

Pledges of Allegiance, to the United States and Texas Flags, were led by Mayor Pro Tem
Steve Massengale.

4. 3. Proclamations and Presentations

4. 3. 1. Presentation of a Special Recognition to the Lubbock Economic Recovery Taskforce in
appreciation for their work during the COVID-19 Pandemic

Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale presented a Special Recognition to the Lubbock
Economic Recovery Task Force in appreciation for their work during the COVID-19
Pandemic. Robert Taylor, co-chair of the Lubbock Economic Recovery Task Force, gave
comments and thanked his fellow Committee members for their hard work and efforts in
assisting Lubbock businesses that were adversely affected by the COVID-19 Pandemic. 

4. 3. 2. Employee Recognitions:

Josh Flud - Elected to the Board of Directors of the Damage Prevention Council of
Texas

Regular City Council Meeting 
April 26, 2022 Page 3 of 17



Mike Keenum - Recognized by the South Plains Chapter of the Texas Society of
Professional Engineers (TSPE) as Engineer of the Year

Jesica McEachern, assistant city manager, presented employee recognitions to Josh
Flud, recognizing his election to the Board of Directors of the Damage Prevention
Council of Texas; and Mike Keenum, celebrating his recognition as Engineer of the
Year by the South Plains Chapter of the Texas Society of Professional Engineers. 

Call to Order

The meeting was called to order at 5:08 p.m.

5. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to
appear in-person before a regular meeting of the City Council, regarding any matter
posted on the City Council Agenda below, shall complete the sign-up form provided at
the meeting, no later than 5:00 p.m. on April 26, 2022. Citizen Comments provide an
opportunity for citizens to make comments and express a position on agenda items.  Any
comment received that is in the nature of asking a question will be referred to an
appropriate member of the City staff for a response.

Sign ups:

Mont McClendon, city of Lubbock's downtown master developer/McDougal
Properties; and Larry Simmons appeared before City Council to speak in favor of item 8.9
(resolution approving a Downtown Parking Master Plan). 
Robert Taylor, member of the Central Business District TIF Board of Directors, appeared
before City Council to speak in favor of item 7.28 (resolution authorizing a License
Agreement with Lubbock Experience, Inc., for the construction of a Civic Park).

6. Minutes

6. 1. March 22, 2022 Regular City Council Meeting

Motion by Council Member Jeff Griffith, seconded by Council Member Randy Christian,
to approve the March 22, 2022 Regular City Council Meeting minutes. 

Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

7. Consent Agenda - Items considered to be routine are enacted by one motion without
separate discussion. If the City Council desires to discuss an item, the item is removed
from the Consent Agenda and considered separately.

Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Juan A.
Chadis, to approve items 7.1-7.3; 7.5-7.16; 7.19-7.26; 7.29-7.35; 7.37-7.42; and
7.44-7.57. 

Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

Regular City Council Meeting
April 26, 2022 Page 4 of 17



Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

7. 1. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2022-O0044,
Amendment 18, amending the FY 2021-22 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Grant Fund to accept and appropriate funding from the Texas State Library and Archives
Commission and the Federal Communications Commission; providing for filing; and
providing for a savings clause.

7. 2. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2022-O0045, 
Amendment 19, amending the FY 2021-22 Budget for municipal purposes respecting 
the Water Capital Fund to Establish Capital Improvement Project 8673 Water/
Wastewater Analysis; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

7. 3. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2022-O0046,
Amendment 20, amending the FY 2021-22 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Lubbock Power & Light Capital Program; providing for filing; and providing for a savings
clause.

7. 4. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2022-O0047,
Amendment 21, amending the FY 2021-22 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
General Fund and General Capital Fund to establish Capital Improvement Project 92760,
Avenue Q TAP, and to appropriate funding for Capital Improvement Project 92737, 114th
Street, Quaker Avenue to Indiana Avenue; providing for filing; and providing for a savings
clause.

Wood Franklin, division director of public works; and Mike Keenum, division director of
engineering/city engineer, gave comments and answered questions from City Council.

Motion by Council Member Juan A. Chadis, seconded by Council Member Latrelle Joy,
to approve Ordinance No. 2022-O0047. 

Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

7. 5. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2022-O0069,
Amendment 22, amending the FY 2021-22 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Operating Budget for Lubbock Economic Development Alliance (LEDA) and Market
Lubbock, Inc. (MLI) – Visit Lubbock and Sports Authority; providing for filing; and providing
for a savings clause.

7. 6. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2022-O0070,
Amendment 23, amending the FY 2021-22 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Airport Capital Fund to appropriate funding for Capital Improvement Project 92619 Construct
Federal Inspection Services Facility; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

7. 7. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2022-O0071,

Regular City Council Meeting
April 26, 2022 Page 5 of 17



7. 7. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2022-O0071,
Amendment 24, amending the FY 2021-22 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Parks Capital Fund to establish Capital Improvement Project 92761, Parks
Improvements-ARPA , and the General Capital Fund to establish Capital Improvement Project
92762, Homelessness-ARPA; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

  

 
7. 8. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2022-O0072, 

Amendment 25, amending the FY 2021-22 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
General Fund and the General Capital Fund to appropriate funding for Capital Improvement
Project 8633, Comprehensive Plan Implementation; providing for filing; and providing for a
savings clause

  

 
7. 9. Resolution - Finance: Resolution No. 2022-R0185 authorizing the Mayor to execute an

Interlocal Agreement, between the City of Lubbock and the Lubbock Central Appraisal
District, for the collection of assessments levied on property within the Northwest Passage
Public Improvement District.

  

 
7. 10. Resolution - Finance: Resolution No. 2022-R0186 authorizing the Mayor to execute an

Interlocal Agreement, between the City of Lubbock and the Lubbock Central Appraisal
District, for the collection of assessments levied on property within the Willow Bend Villas
Public Improvement District.

  

 
7. 11. Resolution - Finance: Resolution No. 2022-R0187 authorizing the Mayor to execute a

Certificate of Approval for Issuance of Tax-Exempt Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds for
the Lubbock Housing Finance Corporation, and all related documents. 

  

 
7. 12. Resolution - Risk Management: Resolution No. 2022-R0188 authorizing and directing the

City Manager to purchase, for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, excess liability insurance
coverage from Texas Insurance Company and Upland Specialty Insurance Company, for
which the premium amount shall not exceed $909,019.85.

  

 
7. 13. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Right-of-Way: Ordinance No. 2022-O0048, abandoning and

closing an Underground Utility Easement, located in Block 228, Original Town of Lubbock
Addition to the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas.

  

 
7. 14. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Right-of-Way: Ordinance No. 2022-O0049, abandoning and

closing a portion of an alley right-of-way, located in Section 41, Block AK, and between Lots
16-21, Jetland Terrace Addition to the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas.  

  

 
7. 15. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Right-of-Way: Ordinance No. 2022-O0050, abandoning and

closing portions of an underground utility easement and a down guy easement, located in Tract
A6, High Plains Addition to the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas.

  

 
7. 16. Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Ordinance No. 2022-O0073, abandoning and

closing a portion of a utility easement and a portion of an access easement, located in Lot 4A,
Spectra Lubbock Southwest Addition to the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas.

  

 

Regular City Council Meeting 
April 26, 2022 Page 6 of 17



 
7. 17. Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Ordinance No. 2022-O0076, abandoning and

closing a Water Line and Sewer Line Easement, located on unsubdivided land in Section 11,
Block A, Lubbock County, Texas.

Mike Keenum, division director of engineering/city engineer, gave a presentation and
answered questions from City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Latrelle Joy, seconded by Council Member Jeff Griffith, to

approve Ordinance No. 2022-O0076. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
7. 18. Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Ordinance No. 2022-O0077, abandoning and

closing a stormwater drainage and impoundment easement, a drainage easement, and a water
and sewer line easement, located in Tract A, Lubbock County Expo Center Addition to the
City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas.

Mike Keenum, division director of engineering/city engineer, gave a presentation and
answered questions from City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Latrelle Joy, seconded by Council Member Jeff Griffith, to

approve Ordinance No. 2022-O0077. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
7. 19. Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Ordinance No. 2022-O0074, abandoning and

closing portions of right-of-way, located in Blocks 13 and 14, Woodlawn Addition to the City
of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas.

  

 
7. 20. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Resolution No. 2022-R0189 authorizing the Mayor to accept, on

behalf of the City of Lubbock, two (2) Street and Public Use Dedication Deeds, in connection
with certain real property located in Section 26, Block AK, Lubbock County, Texas, to be
utilized for the Upland Avenue Roadway Project.

  

 
7. 21. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Engineering: Ordinance No. 2022-O0068, amending Chapter 41,

Impact Fees; adopting an updated Impact Fee study; updating Roadway Impact Fee Collection
Rates, and adding a section for annexed areas.  

  

 
7. 22. Resolution - Engineering: Resolution No. 2022-R0190 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Change Order No. 3 to Contract 14965, with MH Civil Constructors, Inc., for the construction
of the North Water Treatment Plant Improvements Phase III and the South Water Treatment
Plant Uprating Improvements.

  

 
7. 23. Resolution - Engineering: Resolution No. 2022-R0191 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Contract 16399, with Cruz Tec, Inc., for the construction of the Canyon Lakes Sanitary Sewer
Interceptor Phase 3A.

  

Regular City Council Meeting 
April 26, 2022 Page 7 of 17



 
7. 24. Resolution - Engineering: Resolution No. 2022-R0192 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Amendment No. 2 to Contract 14456, with Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc., for additional
engineering services related to the Future Infrastructure Funding Study (Impact Fee Program).

  

 
7. 25. Resolution - Engineering: Resolution No. 2022-R0193 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Change Order No. 2 to Contract 15792, with MH Civil Constructors, Inc., for the construction
of Pressure Zone Delineation and Elevated Storage Tank Off-Site Water Lines.

  

 
7. 26. Resolution - Engineering: Resolution No. 2022-R0194 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Change Order No. 1 to Contract 15819, with DN Tanks, LLC, for the construction of the new
North Water Treatment Plant 8-Million Gallon Ground Storage Tank.

  

 
7. 27. Resolution - Water Utilities: Resolution No. 2022-R0208 authorizing the Mayor to execute

an Interlocal Wholesale Wastewater Contract, with the Lubbock Reese Redevelopment
Authority, for the continued discharge of wastewater into the City’s wastewater collection
system. 

Aubrey Spear, director of water utilities, gave comments and answered questions from City
Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Juan A. Chadis, seconded by Council Member Randy

Christian, to approve Resolution No. 2022-R0208. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
7. 28. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2022-R0209 authorizing a License

Agreement with Lubbock Experience, Inc., a 501(c)(3) nonprofit organization, for the
construction of a Civic Park that will serve as a civic gathering space in Downtown Lubbock. 

Brianna Gerardi, director of business development, gave a presentation and answered
questions from City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Jeff Griffith, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Steve

Massengale, to approve Resolution No. 2022-R0209. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
7. 29. Ordinance 1st Reading - Community Development: Ordinance No. 2022-O0075, amending

Article 2.03 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Lubbock, with regard to the
Composition; Appointment and Terms of the Members of the Community Development and
Services Board; providing a savings clause and providing for publication.

  

 
7. 30. Resolution - Community Development: Resolution No. 2022-R0195 authorizing the Mayor   

Regular City Council Meeting 
April 26, 2022 Page 8 of 17



7. 30. Resolution - Community Development: Resolution No. 2022-R0195 authorizing the Mayor
to execute Community Development Funding Contract 16531, and all related documents, with
the Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs (TDHCA), for the Comprehensive
Energy Assistance Program (CEAP), to assist low-income households in meeting their
immediate energy needs and to encourage consumers to control energy costs for years to come
through education.

  

 
7. 31. Resolution - Community Development: Resolution No. 2022-R0196 authorizing the Mayor

to execute Community Development Funding Contract 16532, and all related documents, with
the Lutheran Social Services of the South, Inc. (LSSS), to provide utility assistance to
qualified low-income persons and families through the Comprehensive Energy Assistance
Program (CEAP) administered by the Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs
(TDHCA).

  

 
7. 32. Resolution - Facilities Management: Resolution No. 2022-R0197 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Amendment No. 2 to Construction Manager at Risk Contract 14224, with Lee Lewis
Construction, Inc. (LLCI), for services related to the construction of three Police Patrol
Division Stations.

  

 
7. 33. Resolution - Public Transit Services: Resolution No. 2022-R0198 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Purchase Order 27121320, with Stewart & Stevenson Power Products, LLC, for the
purchase of an Allison Dual Power Inverter Module for a 2011 Gillig hybrid-diesel bus.

  

 
7. 34. Resolution - Public Transit Services: Resolution No. 2022-R0199 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Purchase Order 27121599, with RCN Communications d/b/a/ RCN Technologies, to
purchase modems to be placed on Citibus vehicles.

  

 
7. 35. Resolution - Parks and Recreation: Resolution No. 2022-R0200 authorizing the Mayor to

execute, for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, Contract 16395, with Erlys Janitorial
Services, for grounds maintenance at three Lubbock Police Department Patrol Division
Stations.

  

 
7. 36. Resolution - City Manager: Resolution No. 2022- R0210 authorizing the Mayor to execute

ARPA Funding Agreement No. 16514, and related documents, with MB3, LLC, of Lubbock,
Texas for the construction of infrastructure to serve an affordable housing development in a
qualified census tract.

This item was amended.

Bill Howerton, deputy city manager, gave comments and answered questions from City
Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Shelia Patterson Harris, seconded by Council Member Juan

A. Chadis, to approve Resolution No. 2022-R0210, with the following amendment: 
  

Amendment of Article III, Section 3, of the agreement to read as follows: "The Final
Payment of three hundred twelve thousand five-hundred dollars and NO/100

Regular City Council Meeting 
April 26, 2022 Page 9 of 17



($312,500) shall be disbursed to the Subrecipient upon the completed construction
of the first thirty-three single-family residences decribed herein."

  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
7. 37. Resolution - City Manager: Resolution No. 2022-R0201 approving American Rescue Plan

Act (ARPA) Agreement No. 16565, between the City of Lubbock and Lubbock Experience,
Inc., d/b/a Lubbock Cultural Arts Foundation, for administration of ARPA funds to be
granted to qualified applicants in the cultural and arts sectors.

  

 
7. 38. Resolution - City Manager: Resolution No. 2022-R0202 approving American Rescue Plan

Act (ARPA) Agreement No. 16516, between the City of Lubbock and Lubbock Christian
University, for healthcare training scholarships.  

  

 
7. 39. Resolution - City Manager: Resolution No. 2022-R0203 approving American Rescue Plan

Act (ARPA) Agreement No. 16517, between the City of Lubbock and Covenant School of
Nursing, for healthcare training scholarships.  

  

 
7. 40. Resolution - City Manager: Resolution No. 2022-R0204 approving American Rescue Plan

Act (ARPA) Agreement No. 16519, between the City of Lubbock and Wayland Baptist
University, for healthcare training scholarships.

  

 
7. 41. Resolution - City Manager: Resolution No. 2022-R0205 authorizing the Mayor to execute

American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Funding Agreement No. 16526, by and between the City
of Lubbock, and the South Plains Association of Governments (SPAG), for the administration
of a small business relief funding program.

  

 
7. 42. Resolution - City Manager: Resolution No. 2022-R0206 authorizing the Mayor to execute

the City of Lubbock, American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Funding Agreement No. 16527, by
and between the City of Lubbock, and the Community Foundation of West Texas, for the
administration of nonprofit funding program services.

  

 
7. 43. Resolution - City Council: Resolution No. 2022-R0211 declaring a commitment to designate

and convey land in Tracts 1 and R, Section 10, Block S, Lubbock County, Texas, to the Texas
Veterans Land Board for the purpose of constructing, operating, and maintaining a Texas State
Veterans Cemetery.

Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale and Jesica McEachern, assistant city manager, gave
comments and answered questions from City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Jeff

Griffith, to approve Resolution No. 2022-R0211. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
7. 44. Resolution - Lubbock Power & Light: Resolution No. 2022-R0207 approving and accepting   

Regular City Council Meeting 
April 26, 2022 Page 10 of 17



7. 44. Resolution - Lubbock Power & Light: Resolution No. 2022-R0207 approving and accepting
the Permanent Right of Access and Use from Texas Tech University, consisting of
approximately 48,311 square feet, located in Section 22, Block A, Lubbock County, Texas,
being situated in that tract of land conveyed to the State of Texas, described in a deed recorded
in Volume 81, Page 345 of the Deed Records of Lubbock County, Texas, and as more fully
described as Easement #2 in Exhibit A attached to the Permanent Right of Access and Use,
and authorizing the Mayor of the City of Lubbock to execute same.

  

 
7. 45. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 1): Ordinance No. 2022-O0052, for Zone Case

3081-C, a request of SK Architecture Group for JKLM Investments, for a zone change from
Garden Office District (GO) to High-Density Apartment District (A-2), at 1801 Main Street,
located west of Avenue R and south of Main Street, Overton Addition, Block 120, Lots 1 and
2.

  

 
7. 46. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 1): Ordinance No. 2022-O0053, for Zone Case

3460, a request of OJD Engineering, LLC for Lyndal & Leslie Hurst, for a zone change from
Transition District (T) and Single-Family District (R-1) to General Retail District (C-3), at
2402 North Quaker Avenue, located south of Clovis Road and east of North Quaker Avenue,
on 9.03 acres of unplatted land out of Block A, Section 13.

  

 
7. 47. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 2): Ordinance No. 2022-O0054, for Zone Case

3029-A, request of M & M Homes, Inc., for a zone change from Single-Family District (R-1)
to Two-Family District (R-2), at 2937 East Cornell Street, Donlon Addition, Block 1.

  

 
7. 48. Ordinance 2nd Reading- Planning (District 2): Ordinance No. 2022-O0055, for Zone Case

3462, a request of Ganatra Holdings, LLC and Ganatra Investments, LLC, for a zone change
from Transition District (T) to High-Density Apartment District (A-2), generally located east
of University Avenue and south of 106th Street, on 3.18 acres of unplatted land out of Block
E, Section 10.

  

 
7. 49. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 2): Ordinance No. 2022-O0063, for Zone Case

3463, a request of West Texas Engineering, LLC for Tigris Development, LLC, for a zone
change from Transition District (T) to High-Density Apartment District (A-2), generally
located east of University Avenue and north of 114th Street on 30.57 acres of unplatted land
out of Block E, Section 10.

  

 
7. 50. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 4): Ordinance No. 2022-O0056, a request for

Zone Case 2508-Q, a request of AMD Engineering, LLC for Red Canyon Development, LLC,
for a zone change from General Retail District (C-3) to Local Retail District (C-2) Specific
Use for a self-storage facility, at 11211 Indiana Avenue, located east of Indiana and north of
114th Street, on 4.52 acres of unplatted land out of Block E-2, Section 19.

  

 
7. 51. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 4): Ordinance No. 2022-O0064, for Zone Case

3104-A, a request of Centerline Engineering & Consulting, LLC for T Market Properties,
LLC-Series Five, for a zone change from Transition District (T) and Apartment-Medical
District (AM) to General Retail District (C-3) and Garden Office District (GO), generally
located west of Quaker Avenue and south of 124th Street, on 2.67 acres of unplatted land out

  

Regular City Council Meeting 
April 26, 2022 Page 11 of 17



of Block E-2, Section 23.
 
7. 52. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 5): Ordinance No. 2022-O0057, for Zone Case

2416-C, a request of Fullingim Bros Enterprises for AFP Rockridge 2019, LLC, for a zone
change from General Retail District (C-3) to Commercial District (C-4) with a Specific Use for
a bar, at 5217 82nd Street, Suite 205, located west of Slide Road and south of 82nd Street,
Heald Addition, Tract B-2-A.

  

 
7. 53. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 5): Ordinance No. 2022-O0058, for Zone Case

2916-C, a request of AMD Engineering, LLC for LCDEV, LLC, for a zone change from
General Retail District (C-3) to Local Retail District (C-2) with a Specific Use for a
Self-Storage Facility, generally located south of 82nd Street and west of Upland Avenue, on
3.97 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 26.

  

 
7. 54. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 5): Ordinance No. 2022-O0059, for Zone Case

3058-B, a request of Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. for Red Spike Development, LLC, for a
zone change from Single-Family District (R-1) Specific Use for Residential Estates to
Reduced Setback Single-Family District (R-1A), at 6802, 6804, 6911, and 6913 51st Street;
5002 Prentiss Avenue, 5002 and 5014 Quincy Avenue, located south of 50th Street and west of
Pontiac Avenue, Westmont Addition, Lots 1, 2, 6, 27, 33, 35, and 36.

  

 
7. 55. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 5): Ordinance No. 2022-O0060, for Zone Case

3058-C, a request of Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. for Red Spike Development, LLC, for a
zone change from Single-Family District (R-1) Specific Use for Residential Estates and
High-Density Apartment District (A-2) to Family Apartment District (A-1), generally located
north of 50th Street and west of Milwaukee Avenue, on 31.9 acres of unplatted land out of
Block AK, Section 38.

  

 
7. 56. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 5): Ordinance No. 2022-O0061, for Zone Case

3058-D, a request of Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. for Red Spike Development, LLC, for a
zone change from High-Density Apartment District (A-2) to Local Retail District (C-2),
generally located on the north and south sides of 50th Street, west of Milwaukee Avenue, on
8.1 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 35 and Section 38.

  

 
7. 57. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 6): Ordinance No. 2022-O0062, for Zone Case

2538-BB, a request of Hugo Reed & Associates, Inc. for Hideaway West, LLC, for a zone
change from Transition District (T) and Single-Family District (R-1) to Reduced Setback
Single-Family District (R-1A), generally located east of Alcove Avenue and south of 4th
Street, on 80.538 acres of unplatted land out of Block D-6, Section 1.

  

 
8. Regular Agenda
 
8. 1. Board Appointments - City Secretary: Consider appointments to the Audit & Investment

Committee, Community Development and Services Board, and the Libraries Board.

Audit & Investment Committee: Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale, seconded by
Council Member Jeff Griffith, to appoint Edwin "Eddie" Schulz to replace Greg Taylor. 

  

Regular City Council Meeting 
April 26, 2022 Page 12 of 17



Vote: 7-0 Motion carried

Community Development & Services Board: Motion by Council Member Latrelle Joy,
seconded by Council Member Juan A. Chadis, to reappoint Gilbert Flores and Rachel Forbes. 

Vote: 7-0 Motion carried

Libraries Board: Motion by Council Member Juan A. Chadis, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem
Steve Massengale, to appoint James Brian Beauchamp to replace Desiree Freyburger. 

Vote: 7-0 Motion carried
 
8. 2. Resolution - Planning: Resolution No. 2022-R0212 terminating the Chapter 212 Agreement

related to property located south of 122nd Street and east of Frankford Avenue, containing
approximately 5.0 acres out of Section 24, Block E-2, Lubbock County, Texas, and identified
by the Lubbock Central Appraisal District Reference Number R68745, and authorizing City
staff to develop annexation documents for the subject property.

Kristen Sager, planning & zoning manager, gave a presentation and answered questions from
City Council. 

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Juan A. Chadis, seconded by Council Member Jeff Griffith,

to approve Resolution No. 2022-R0212. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
8. 3. Public Hearing - Planning: Ordinance No. 2022-O0078,  pursuant to Chapter 43 of the Texas

Local Government Code for annexation of the property located south of 122nd Street and east
of Frankford Avenue, containing approximately 5.0 acres, out of Section 24, Block E-2,
Lubbock County, Texas, and commonly identified by the Lubbock Central Appraisal District
Reference Number R68745.

Kristen Sager, planning & zoning manager, gave a presentation and answered questions from
City Council.

Mayor Daniel M. Pope, read into the record, the following statement: "The Local Government
Code requires a public hearing for the City Council to consider the annexation of property. At
this time, I will open the public hearing in regard to the annexation of property located south
of 122nd Street and east of Frankford Avenue, containing approximately 5.0 acres, out of
Section 24, Block E-2, Lubbock County, Texas, and commonly identified by the Lubbock
Central Appraisal District reference number R68745."

Mayor Pope opened the public hearing at 5:57 p.m.

No one appeared to speak in favor or opposition.

Mayor Pope closed the public hearing at 5:58 p.m. 

  

 

Regular City Council Meeting 
April 26, 2022 Page 13 of 17



 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Randy

Christian, to approve Ordinance No 2022-O0078. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
8. 4. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Ordinance No. 2022-O0065, pursuant to Chapter 43 of

the Texas Local Government Code, for a request for annexation from Canyon Rock
Development, LLC, to annex property located south of 122nd Street and east of Frankford
Avenue, containing approximately 5 acres, out of Section 24, Block E-2, Lubbock County,
Texas, and commonly identified by the Lubbock Central Appraisal District Reference
Numbers R68662 and R317247.

Kristen Sager, planning & zoning manager, gave a presentation and answered questions from
City Council.  

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Jeff Griffith, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Steve

Massengale, to approve Ordinance No. 2022-O0065. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
8. 5. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Ordinance No. 2022-O0066, for a request for

annexation, from Mona Lewis and Cody Kinsey, as Trustee of the Kinsey 2015 Real Estate
Trust, to annex an area of approximately 124.511 acres, adjacent to the northwestern city limits
of the City of Lubbock, north of 4th Street and east of Upland Avenue.

Kristen Sager, planning & zoning manager, gave a presentation and answered questions from
City Council. Wood Franklin, division director of public works, gave comments and answered
questions from City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Jeff Griffith, seconded by Council Member Randy Christian,

to approve Ordinance No. 2022-O0066. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
8. 6. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Ordinance No. 2022-O0067, for a request for

annexation from JDR Family, LP, to annex an area of approximately 76.15 acres, adjacent to
the northwestern city limits of the City of Lubbock, north of Erskine Street and west of North
Milwaukee Avenue.

Kristen Sager, planning & zoning manager, gave a presentation and answered questions from
City Council. 

  

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Juan A.

Chadis, to approve Ordinance No. 2022-O0067. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 

Regular City Council Meeting 
April 26, 2022 Page 14 of 17



8. 7. Resolution - Planning: Resolution No. 2022-R0213 adopting a Neighborhood Project
Program, in conjunction with the Neighborhood Planning Program, to provide up to $10,000 in
funding for neighborhood initiated projects on City property.

Wilson Bowling, neighborhood planner, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Shelia Patterson Harris, seconded by Council Member Juan

A. Chadis, to approve Resolution No. 2022-R0213. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
8. 8. Resolution - Planning: Resolution No. 2022-R0214 approving and adopting the

recommendation of the Neighborhood Planning Committee regarding the
initial neighborhoods located in East and North Lubbock to participate in the Neighborhood
Planning Program.

Wilson Bowling, neighborhood planner, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Juan A. Chadis, seconded by Council Member Jeff Griffith,

to approve Resolution No. 2022-R0214. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
8. 9. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2022-R0215 approving a Downtown

Parking Master Plan. 

This item was amended.

Brianna Gerardi, director of business development, gave a presentation and answered
questions from City Council. Chad Weaver, city attorney, gave comments and answered
questions from City Council. 

Main Motion by Council Member Randy Christian, seconded by Council Member Juan
A. Chadis, to approve Resolution No. 2022-R0215, as presented at the dais.

Motion to Amend by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale to amend the Main Motion as
follows: 
 

The addition of an amendment directing City Council to appoint the members of the
Downtown Parking Task Force at the May 10, 2022, Regular City Council Meeting.

Vote on Motion to Amend*
Vote: 7-0 Motion carried

Vote on Main Motion with Amendment
Vote: 7-0 Motion carried

  

Regular City Council Meeting 
April 26, 2022 Page 15 of 17



*The motion to amend by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale was not seconded;
however, Roberts Rules of Order Newly Revised, 11th edition, states as
follows: "After debate has begun or, if there is no debate, after any member has
voted, the lack of a second has become immaterial...If a motion is considered and
adopted without having been seconded - even in a case where there was no reason
for the chair to overlook the requirement - the absence of a second does not affect
the validity of the motion's adoption." 

 
8. 10. Public Hearing:  Finance:  Resolution No. 2022-R0216 regarding the adoption of an

amendment to the Guidelines and Criteria Governing Tax Abatement for Industrial Projects in
the City of Lubbock, in accordance with the Property Redevelopment and Tax Abatement Act.

Cheryl Brock, director of financial planning & analysis, gave a presentation and answered
questions from City Council. 

Mayor Daniel M. Pope, read into the record, the following statement: "The Tax Code requires
a public hearing for the City Council to consider the proposed adoption of the guidelines and
criteria governing tax abatements for industrial projects. At this time, I will open the public
hearing regarding the adoption of these proposed guidelines."

Mayor Pope opened the public hearing at 6:42 p.m.

No one appeared to speak in favor or opposition. 

Mayor Pope closed the public hearing at 6:43 p.m.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Jeff Griffith, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Steve

Massengale, to approve Resolution No. 2022-R0216. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
8. 11. Resolution - Finance: Resolution No. 2022-R0217 authorizing the Mayor to execute an

industrial tax abatement agreement with Leprino Foods Company.

Cheryl Brock, director of financial planning & analysis, gave a presentation and answered
questions from City Council. Mark Cramer, with Leprino Foods Company, gave comments
and answered questions from City Council. 

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Shelia Patterson Harris, seconded by Council Member Juan

A. Chadis, to approve Resolution No. 2022-R0217. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 

6:49 P.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED
 

There being no further business to come before Council, Mayor Pope adjourned the meeting.

 

Regular City Council Meeting 
April 26, 2022 Page 16 of 17



The April 26, 2022 Regular City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the 24th day
of May, 2022.

____________________________________ 
TRAY PAYNE, MAYOR

ATTEST:

___________________________________
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

Regular City Council Meeting
April 26, 2022 Page 17 of 17



CITY OF LUBBOCK
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING

April 27, 2022
7:30 A.M.

 
The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in special session on the 27th of April, 2022, at
Newk's Eatery, 1500 Broadway, Suite #101B, Lubbock, Texas at 7:30 a.m.

  
7:32 A.M. 
            

CITY COUNCIL CONVENED
Newk's Eatery, 1500 Broadway, Suite #101B, Lubbock, Texas

Present:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope; Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale; Council Member Randy Christian;
Council Member Jeff Griffith; Council Member Shelia Patterson Harris; City Manager W.
Jarrett Atkinson; City Secretary Rebecca Garza; City Attorney Chad Weaver 

Absent:  Council Member Juan A. Chadis; Council Member Latrelle Joy 
 

Note:      City Council addressed agenda items in the following order: 
1.1

1. Regular Session
 
1. 1. A discussion concerning the Lubbock economy, employment, core services, including but not limited

to: utilities, water, wastewater, development and redevelopment, public safety, crime, streets and
transportation, community services, facilities, infrastructure, parks and recreation, and other modes of
delivery of governmental services; budgetary matters, and the operations, communications, programs,
and personnel of the City of Lubbock. No action will be taken by the Lubbock City Council.

Mayor Pope, Council Members, and staff members engaged in a Questions & Answers (Q&A)
session with citizens, in attendance, on various topics including the following: Downtown Parking
Master Plan, Parks & Recreation Master Plan, code enforcement, neighborhood planning efforts, and
water conservation. 

Mayor Pope gave closing remarks and thanked Newk's Eatery for hosting. 
 

8:30 A.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED
 

There being no further business to come before Council, the meeting was adjourned.

 
The April 27, 2022 Special City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the 24th day



The April 27, 2022 Special City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the 24th day
of May, 2022.

____________________________________ 
TRAY PAYNE, MAYOR

ATTEST:

___________________________________
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

Special City Council Meeting
April 27, 2022 Page 2 of 2



 AI# 10723 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 1. 
05/24/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No.
2022-O0079, Amendment 26, amending the FY 2021-22 Budget for municipal purposes respecting Civil
Service Positions; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

Item Summary
On April 26, 2022, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

Exhibit A of the FY 2021-22 Adopted Budget, as passed by City Council on September 14, 2021, and
amended on February 22, 2022, is hereby amended a second time to replace Page 197 of said Exhibit A,
entitled "Police – Job Grade Summary," with the second amended Page 197, which is attached hereto
and made a part of this ordinance for all purposes (the “Second Amendment”), as it relates to the civil
service positions. In accordance with Section 2.06.109 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of
Lubbock, the civil service positions, as set forth in the Second Amendment, are hereby established by
Ordinance.

Fiscal Impact
Included in Item Summary

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Budget Amendment 26 
Exhibit A - BA 26 







Police - Job Grade Summary Exhibit A

Actual Actual Actual Budget Amended Change 

CLASSIFIED/SWORN JOB GRADE SUMMARY GRADE FY 2018-19 FY 2019-20 FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2021-22 from Budget

Police Chief 143 1                       1                       1                       1                       1                       -                          

Assistant Police Chief PCS6 3                       3                       3                       3                       3                       -                          

Deputy Police Chief/Police Captain PCS5 8                       8                       7                       7                       7                       -                          

Police Lieutenant PCS4 18                     18                     19                     19                     19                     -                          

Police Sergeant PCS3 58                     60                     66                     68                     68                     -                          

Police Detective/Corporal PCS2 75                     77                     79                     79                     71                     (8)                        

Patrol Officer PCS1 204                   283                   277                   255                   263                   8                         

Police Entry Level II PNCE2 76                     -                        -                        -                        -                        -                          

Police Entry Level 1-B PNCE1B -                        3                       13                     13                     13                     -                          

TOTAL CLASSIFIED SWORN JOB GRADE SUMMARY 443                   453                   465                   445                   445                   -                          

Actual Actual Budget Budget Amended Change 

NON-CLASSIFIED NON-SWORN JOB GRADE SUMMARY GRADE FY 2018-19 FY 2019-20 FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2021-22 from Budget
Administrative Assistant 112 7                       7                       8                       7                       7                       -                          
Communications Center Coordinator 126 1                       1                       1                       1                       1                       -                          
Communications Shift Supervisor 123 3                       3                       6                       6                       6                       -                          
Communications Training & Dev Coordinator 125 1                       1                       -                        -                        -                        -                          
Crime Analyst 119 2                       2                       2                       4                       4                       -                          
Fleet Services Unit Supervisor 119 -                        -                        -                        1                       1                       -                          
Fleet Services Unit Attendant 116 -                        -                        -                        2                       2                       -                          
Forensic Laboratory Manager 127 -                        -                        -                        1                       1                       -                          
Forensic Specialist i 123 1                       2                       2                       7                       7                       -                          
Juvenile Services Coordinator 121 1                       1                       1                       1                       1                       -                          
Laborer 108 1                       1                       1                       1                       1                       -                          
Lead Administrative Assistant 115 1                       1                       2                       3                       3                       -                          
Management Assistant 122 2                       2                       2                       2                       2                       -                          
Parking Control Officer 108 6                       6                       6                       6                       6                       -                          
Property and Evidence Unit Supervisor 121 -                        -                        -                        1                       1                       -                          
Property Room Attendant 113 4                       4                       4                       4                       4                       -                          
Public Information Officer 123 1                       1                       1                       5                       5                       -                          
Public Information Specialist 119 1                       1                       1                       -                        -                        -                          
Public Safety Call Taker 112 1                       1                       -                        -                        -                        -                          
Public Safety Dispatcher I 114 28                     28                     28                     28                     28                     -                          
Public Safety Dispatcher II 116 14                     14                     15                     15                     15                     -                          
Public Service Officer 110 15                     15                     13                     13                     13                     -                          
Records System Manager 126 1                       1                       1                       1                       1                       -                          
Records System Operator 115 16                     15                     15                     15                     15                     -                          
Records System Shift Supervisor 118 4                       4                       3                       3                       3                       -                          
Sex Offender Registration Coordinator 117 1                       1                       1                       1                       1                       -                          

TOTAL NON-CLASSIFIED NON-SWORN JOB GRADE SUMMARY 112                   112                   113                   128                   128                   -                          

TOTAL JOB GRADE SUMMARY 555                   565                   578                   573                   573                   -                          



 AI# 10757 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 2. 
05/24/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance Amendment 27,
amending the FY 2021-22 Budget for municipal purposes respecting General Fund Fees; providing for
filing; and providing for a savings clause.    

Item Summary
There is no new fee proposed with this item.  The change being proposed is setting a maximum to both
the preliminary plat fee and final plat fee.

Exhibit A of the FY 2021-22 Adopted Budget, as passed by City Council on September 14, 2021, is
hereby amended to replace page 59 to page 61 of said Exhibit A, entitled "Summary of General Fund
Fee Changes," with the amended page 59 to page 61, by creating a maximum fee in addition to the
current rates, which is attached hereto and made a part of this ordinance for all purposes (the
“Amendment”) as set forth in the Amendment, are hereby established by Ordinance.

Fiscal Impact
Included in Item Summary

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Budget Amendment 27 
Exhibit A - BA 27 







Exhibit A

Account  Rate Budget

Department Account Description Number Details 2021‐22

Animal Services LIC‐RABIES VACCINE PERMIT 6230 Rabies vaccination fee                   15.00 

HLTH‐ANIMAL SHELTER RECEIPTS 6502 Impound Fee ‐ Dogs or Cats                   65.00 

Impound Fee ‐ Small Livestock                   50.00 

Impound Fee ‐ Large Livestock                 100.00 

Boarding Fee ‐ Dogs, Cats, or Small Livestock                   10.00 

Boarding Fee ‐ Large Livestock                   25.00 

Humane Euthanasia Process Fee (from within City 

limits)

                  20.00 

Humane Euthanasia Process Fee (from outside City 

limits)

                  75.00 

Store Permit                         ‐   

Groom Shop                         ‐   

Owner Surrender Fee (within City limits)                   40.00 

Owner Surrender Fee (outside City limits)                   60.00 

Owner Surrender Fee (outside County limits)                 100.00 

HLTH ‐ QUARANTINE 

PROCESSING

6533 Animal quarantine processing fee                 150.00 

Building Safety LIC‐BUILDING PERMITS 6222 Certificate of Occupancy (CO) Fee                          ‐   

Investigative Inspection Fee (includes CO)                 120.00 

LIC‐CONTRACTOR REGISTRATION  6240 Contractor Registration Permit: Renewal                         ‐   

Contractor Registration Permit: Jan ‐ Mar                         ‐   

Contractor Registration Permit: Apr ‐ Jun                         ‐   

Contractor Registration  Permit: Jul ‐ Sept                         ‐   

 Contractor RegistraƟon  Permit: Oct ‐ Dec                         ‐   

Contractor Registration Permit                    75.00 

City Secretary LIC‐PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY 

PERMITS 

6235 Block Party Permit                   60.00 

Right‐of‐way for Parade or Walk‐a‐thon, Jog‐a‐thon, 

Bike‐a‐thon

                  75.00 

Barricade (Barr) Rental Fee $25 (4 Type 1 

Barr) Addtl Barr 

$15 ‐ Maximum 

of $200 ( 2 Type 

1 Barr) 

HLTH‐VITAL STATISTICS 6501 Plastic Pouch (NEW) for issuing certificates                      3.00 

Summary of General Fund Fee Changes



Exhibit A

Account  Rate Budget

Department Account Description Number Details 2021‐22

Summary of General Fund Fee Changes

Codes           

Administration

FEE‐MOWING ADMINISTRATION 6122 Fees charged to recover the cost of weed/rubbish 

abatement practices.

                200.00 

LIC‐OUTSIDE SALE PMT ADMIN 6227 Permits issued when a vendor or business wants to 

have a promotional sale. 

                350.00 

FEE‐WEED & RUBBISH LIENS  6414 Fees from the collection on weed liens.                 200.00 

FEE‐CODE ENFORCEMENT 

TRAINING 

6430 Fees received from attendees of educational classes 

presented by Code Administration.

                  75.00 

DEPT‐DEMOLITION CLEANUP SVC 7501 Fees charged to recover the cost of demolition of 

structures determined to be sub‐standard.  

                650.00 

DEPT‐WEED MOWING  7599 Weeds in Back Yard                   20.00 

Weeds in Front Yard                   20.00 

Weeds in Alley                   30.00 

Codes           

Administration

DEPT‐WEED MOWING  7599 Weeds in Right of Way                   30.00 

Rubbish Alley                   35.00 

Weeds in Vacant Lot                   40.00 

Environmental           

Health

LIC‐CAFE PERMITS  6206 Sample Permit Maximum of 14 Days                      7.00 

Temporary Food Establishment ‐ Max of 14 Days                   20.00 

Sample Permit First Day                   35.00 

Temporary Food Establishment First Day                   65.00 

 Food Risk Category 1                 225.00 

Food Risk Category 2                 325.00 

Food Risk Category 3                 425.00 

Food Risk Category 4                 525.00 

LIC‐GREASE HAULER PERMITS 6243 Grease Hauling Permit                 125.00 

Grease Facility Permit                 175.00 

Planning FEE‐ZONING CHANGE FEE  6401 Application fees for zone change requests ‐ 1st acre 

plus $3 for each additional acre.

500 +5/acre 

Application fees for zone change requests to Board of 

Adjustment ‐ Commercial.

                500.00 

Application fees for Administrative Appeal and 

Residential requests to  Zoning Board of Adjustment.

                200.00 

6401 Historic Landmark Designations (NEW)                   50.00 

6401 Certificates of Appropriateness (NEW)                   50.00 

6401 Variances that go to UDHPC (Design Stds) (NEW)                 250.00 

FEE‐ZONING PLATTING FEES  6412 Reapproval plat fee for 1 acre plus $25/acre over 1 

acre

                        ‐   



Exhibit A

Account  Rate Budget

Department Account Description Number Details 2021‐22

Summary of General Fund Fee Changes

Preliminary plat fee for 1 acre plus $35/acre over 1 

acre ‐ Maximum fee of $7,000.

150 + 35/acre 

Final Plat Fee for 1 acre plus $55/acre over 1 acre ‐ 

Maximum fee of $5,000.

350 (1 Acre) + 

55/acre over 1 

Amended Plats (NEW)                 250.00 

Plat Vacations (NEW)                 200.00 

Voluntary/Petition Annexation Requests (NEW)                 500.00 

FEE‐ZONING MAPS, ORD & MISC 6413 Zoning Verification Letters (NEW)                   50.00 

LIC ‐ GROUP HOME PERMITS 6254 Group Home Permits (NEW)                   30.00 

Solid Waste SLD WST‐GEN CONSUM LANDFILL 

Tipping Fees ‐ WTRDF  6630

Revenue derived from tipping fees charged for waste 

disposal at the WTRDF landfill

                 37.25 

SLD WST_MUN DISP ‐ Tipping 

Fees ‐ Per Ton for Special Waste
6631

Revenue derived from tipping fees charged for special 

waste disposal at the landfill
                 71.42 

SW‐GEN CONS METERED 

Residential Collection Rate
7523 Monthly residential garbage charges.                  17.50 

SW‐GEN CONS METERED  

Commercial Collection Rate ‐ 

2 Cu. Yd. Dumpster

7523
Monthly commercial garbage charge for 2 cubic yard 

dumpster.
                 46.56 

SW‐GEN CONS METERED  

Commercial Collection Rate ‐ 

3 Cu. Yd. Dumpster

7523
Monthly commercial garbage charge for 3 cubic yard 

dumpster.
                 69.01 

SW‐GEN CONS METERED  

Commercial Collection Rate ‐ 

4 Cu. Yd. Dumpster

7523
Monthly commercial garbage charge for 4 cubic yard 

dumpster.
                 91.46 

SW‐GEN CONS METERED  

Commercial Collection Rate ‐ 

6 Cu. Yd. Dumpster

7523
Monthly commercial garbage charge for 6 cubic yard 

dumpster.
               132.41 



 AI# 10764 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 3. 
05/24/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance Amendment 28,
amending the FY 2021-22 budget for municipal purposes respecting the General Fund,
Water/Wastewater Fund, Storm Water Fund, and the Fleet Capital Fund to appropriate funding for
Capital Improvement Project 92769, FY 2022-23 Pre-Purchase Vehicles; providing for filing; and
providing for a savings clause.

Item Summary
I. Establish Capital Improvement Project 92769, FY 2022-23 Pre-Purchase Vehicles and appropriate
funding in the amount of $3,400,000. The funding will be from the General Fund fund balance,
Water/Wastewater fund balance, and the Storm Water fund balance.

II. Increase the transfer to Fleet Capital in the General Fund in the amount of $2,769,721, from $613,072
to $3,382,793.

III. Increase the transfer to Fleet Capital in the Water/WasteWater Fund in the amount of $568,386, from
$739,000 to $1,307,386.

IV. Increase the transfer to Fleet Capital in the Storm Water Fund in the amount of $61,893, from
$73,970 to $135,863.

Fiscal Impact
Included in Item Summary

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Budget Amendment 28 







 AI# 10765 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 3. 1. 
05/24/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Fleet: Consider a resolution authorizing the City Manager to purchase vehicles and
equipment for Fiscal Year 2022-23.

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock, like many other organizations, has experienced challenges related to supply chain
shortages, especially vehicles.  The Fleet Operations Department continues to experience issues in
ordering and receiving vehicles for the current fiscal year, and has identified challenges related to the
purchase of vehicles for the upcoming fiscal year.  While most of the vehicles and equipment have been
ordered for this fiscal year, delivery on many of these purchases is delayed with no definitive timeframe.

Several vehicle vendors have expressed that in order to secure 2023 model vehicles, vehicles should be
ordered as vehicle order windows open with the various manufacturers.  2023 model purchasing
windows are opening now.  Historically, these open in the October time-frame.  Staff recommends that
the City Council authorize the purchase of a portion of the most essential vehicles that are up for
replacement in the upcoming fiscal year in the current fiscal year.  Below is a summary of the intended
vehicles for purchase.  

1 - LPD Special Operations - Mid-Size SUV
2 - LPD Investigations - 1/2-Ton Pickup Trucks
39 - LPD Patrol - Mid-Size SUVs
3 - Water Meter and Customer Service - 3/4-Ton Pickup Trucks
1 - Water Distribution and Maintenance - 1/2-Ton Pickup Truck
2 - Water Pumping and Control - 3/4-Ton Pickup Trucks
1 - Water Reservoir - Mid-Size SUV
1 - Water Reservoir -3/4-Ton Pickup Truck
1 - Wastewater Treatment - 1/2-Ton Pickup Truck
1 -  Industrial Monitor -3/4-Ton Pickup Truck
1 - Stormwater Sewer Maintenance - 1-Ton Dump Truck

The Fleet Operations Department estimates the cost of the proposed vehicles referenced above to not
exceed $3.4 million. If approved, the $3.4 million would be added to the Fiscal Year 2021-22 Budget
and would be removed from the proposed Fiscal Year 2022-23 Budget. The resolution that is attached
authorizes the City Manager to move forward with these purchases as soon as 2023 purchasing windows
open.  The resolution is structured so that the vehicles and quantities referenced above can be
modified if necessary based on market conditions. The resolution also states that the cost of these
vehicles will not exceed $3.4 million.  These funds will be appropriated from the General Fund fund
balance, Water/Wastewater fund balance, and the Storm Water fund balance.

Fiscal Impact
The impact to the Fiscal Year 2021-22 Budget will be $3.4 million. The 2022-23 Proposed Vehicle



The impact to the Fiscal Year 2021-22 Budget will be $3.4 million. The 2022-23 Proposed Vehicle
Replacement Budget will be reduced by the same amount.  

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Dominic Esperat, Director of Fleet Operations 

Attachments
Resolution 







 AI# 9942 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 4. 
05/24/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance Amendment
29, amending the FY 2021-22 budget for municipal purposes respecting The Streets Capital Fund to
appropriate additional funding for Capital Improvement Project 92697, Street Maintenance Program;
providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

Item Summary
I. Amend CIP 92697, Street Maintenance Program, and increase the appropriation by $1,000,000, from
$22,078,130 to $23,078,130. The additional funding will come from Lubbock County.

Fiscal Impact
Included in Item Summary

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer.

Attachments
Budget Amendment 29 







 AI# 10762 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 5. 
05/24/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 1st Reading - Finance: Consider an ordinance of the City of Lubbock, Texas, granting to
West Texas Gas, LLC, the franchise and rights to conduct natural gas operations within the municipal
boundaries of the City of Lubbock.

Item Summary
This ordinance and franchise agreement between the City of Lubbock ("City") and West Texas Gas,
LLC ("WTG" or "the Company"), will grant the Company non-exclusive franchise and rights to conduct
the business of acquiring, maintaining, constructing, laying, repairing, removing, replacing, installing,
operating, and disposing of a gas system for the sale, transportation, delivery, and distribution of natural
gas within the municipal boundaries of the City and to the residents and businesses located therein for
light, heat, power, and any other purpose. This agreement will allow WTG the right to use both present
and future streets, roads, highways, alley, public way, and other real property owned by or under the
control of the City, in order to conduct their authorized operations.

For the purposes of this ordinance and agreement, the Company will remit, on a quarterly basis, an
amount equal to five percent (5%) of gross revenues of the system. The amount of 5% is widely used as
a standard rate across the State of Texas for franchise agreements, and mirrors the State Franchise
Agreement amounts for other utility services. Gross revenue in this agreement is defined as all revenue
derived or received by WTG from or in connection with the operation of the natural gas system within
the City, for services provided to residential, commercial, and industrial customers. Gross revenues
applicable to the remittance to the City will not include revenue of any affiliate or subsidiary of WTG
operating solely outside the limits of the City, taxes imposed by law on customers that WTG is obligated
to pass through to the taxing entity, investment earnings, and revenues from the sale, distribution, or
transportation of natural gas, to or for governmental or municipal customers.

This agreement is for a period of 15 years.

Fiscal Impact
Revenues to the City of Lubbock will be 5% of gross revenues derived from the sale, transportation, and
distribution of natural gas by West Texas Gas, LLC, within the municipal boundaries of the City of
Lubbock.

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Ordinance - WTG Franchise Fee-c 



























 AI# 10730 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 6. 
05/24/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Wastewater: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract 16453, with
STP Well Service, for monitor well maintenance and repair services, for the Lubbock Land Application
Site and the Hancock Land Application Site.

Item Summary
The City irrigates crops at the Lubbock and Hancock Land Application Sites with treated effluent water.
Operations of these sites must comply with the City of Lubbock's wastewater discharge permit issued by
the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ). In association with the crop irrigation, the
wastewater discharge permit requires the City to sample and collect groundwater level
measurements every 6 months, from approximately 70 monitor wells located at both sites. 

This contract will provide routine maintenance, repair, and replacement of monitoring well equipment.
Service under this contract will be on an as needed basis. ITB 2-16453-YB, was issued, and the City
received a response from a sole bidder, STP Well Service of Petersburg, Texas, for $52,092.55.

Staff recommends contract award to the sole bidder, STP Well Service, of Petersburg, Texas. The term
of the contract is for 1 year, with the option of 2 additional one-year extensions.

Fiscal Impact
The contract in the amount of $52,092.55, will be paid from the Water/Wastewater FY 2021-22
Operating Budget.

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
Resolution- STPWellService 
Contract- STPWellService 
ProjectSummary-STPWell 















Tray Payne, Mayor

170423
Rectangle















 
 

 

 

Purchasing and Contract Management  

Project Summary 

ITB 22-16453-YB Well Maintenance and Repair Services  
 

Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on March 13 and March 20, 2022. 

Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 

Notice was published on Bonfire-hub.com from March 16, 2022 to March 30, 2022. 

21 vendors took documents from Bonfire-hub.com 

5 vendors were notified separately.  

1 vendors submitted a bids. 

 



 AI# 10746 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 7. 
05/24/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Community Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an
amendment to Community Development Funding Contract 16033, and all related documents, through
the Emergency Solutions Grant Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act CARES (ESG-CV)
administered by the U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development (HUD), with Paul’s Project of
Lubbock, to provide services to qualified low to moderate income persons and families experiencing
homelessness.

Item Summary
Grantee: Paul’s Project of Lubbock
Funding Source: Emergency Solution Grant Coronavirus Aid Relief and Economic Security Act CARES
(ESG- CV) funds from HUD
Use of Funds: Emergency Shelter Operations/Improvements to prevent, prepare for, and respond to the
Coronavirus pandemic (COVID-19)
Original Allocation: $200,000
Additional Allocation: $640,000
Original Terms: July 1, 2021 – September 30, 2022
Extended Term: September 30, 2023

Fiscal Impact
There is no fiscal impact to the General Fund. The maximum amount allocated to Paul’s Project for the
ESG CV is $840,000.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Karen Murfee, Community Development Director

Attachments
Resolution - Paul's Project 
Amendment to Paul's Project 











 AI# 10745 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 8. 
05/24/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Community Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an
amendment to Community Development Funding Contract 16059, and all related documents, through
the Emergency Solutions Grant Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act CARES (ESG-CV)
administered by the U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development (HUD), with the Salvation
Army of Lubbock, to provide services to qualified low to moderate income persons and families
experiencing homelessness.

Item Summary
Grantee: The Salvation Army of Lubbock
Funding Source: Emergency Solution Grant Coronavirus Aid Relief and Economic Security Act CARES
(ESG- CV) funds from HUD
Use of Funds: Emergency Shelter Operations/ Improvements to prevent, prepare for, and respond to the
Coronavirus pandemic (COVID-19)
Original Allocation: $200,000
Additional Allocation: $410,000
Original Terms: July 1, 2021 – September 30, 2022
Extended Term: September 30, 2023

Fiscal Impact
There is no fiscal impact to the General Fund. The maximum amount allocated to the Salvation Army
for the ESG CV is $610,000.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Karen Murfee, Community Development Director

Attachments
Amendment to Salvation Army 
Resolution - Salvation Army 











 AI# 10760 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 9. 
05/24/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Aviation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract 16447, with
Tommy Klein Construction, Inc., to construct a Federal Inspection Service Facility at the Lubbock
Preston Smith International Airport.

Item Summary
U.S. Customs and Border Protection (CBP) has maintained an official presence at the Lubbock Preston
Smith International Airport for many years, providing international passenger, cargo, and crew
inspection services, to small general aviation and air cargo operators.  In October 2018, airport staff was
advised the existing operational space was not compliant with Airport Technical Design Standards, and
CBP formally requested a proper general aviation facility.

The existing space, located in the Executive Terminal building on the east side of the airport, was
evaluated, and it was determined the space is not sufficient to meet the required design standards. After
evaluating all options, including new construction and renovation of all available spaces located on
airport property, relocation to a renovated space at 6202 N I-27 Suite 200 is the most viable option.

This contract is for the construction and relocation of the Federal Inspection Service Facility for the U.S.
Customs and Border Patrol at Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport.  ITB 21-16447-TF was
issued, and the sole bid was received from Tommy Klein Construction, Inc. of Lubbock, Texas, in the
lump sum amount of $2,728,000.

Airport staff and the Airport Advisory Board recommend Contract 16447 be awarded to Tommy Klein
Construction, Inc. of Lubbock, Texas, to construct a Federal Inspection Service Facility at Lubbock
Preston Smith International Airport. Time for final completion is 273 consecutive calendar days.

Fiscal Impact
Contract 16447, for $2,728,000, with Tommy Klein Construction, Inc., will be funded from
Capital Project 92619.8302.10000.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Kelly Campbell, Executive Director of Aviation
Airport Advisory Board

Attachments
Resolution - Tommy Klein 
Contract - Tommy Klein 
Bid Submittal Form - Tommy Klein Construction Inc 



CBP Letter 
Budget Detail 
Project Summary 







City of Lubbock, TX

LPSIA

ITB 22-16447-TF

Construct Federal Inspection Service Facility

# Items

Qty

(+/-) UoM

Unit

Cost

Extended

Cost

#0-1

Base bid consists of the materials and 

labor for the necessary improvements 

for the referenced project, as specified 

herein.

1 LS $2,728,000.00 $2,728,000.00 

Tommy Klein Construction, Inc. of Lubbock, TX







City of Lubbock, TX

LPSIA

ITB 22-16447-TF

Construct Federal Inspection Service Facility

# Items

Qty

(+/-) UoM

Unit

Cost

Extended

Cost

#0-1

Base bid consists of the materials and 

labor for the necessary improvements 

for the referenced project, as specified 

herein.

1 LS $2,728,000.00 $2,728,000.00 

Tommy Klein Construction, Inc. of Lubbock, TX











Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Budget

Encumbered/Expended

RS&H, Inc. Amendment 2 574,000$               

Agenda Item May 24, 2022

Tommy Klein Construction, Inc. Contract 16447 2,728,000              

  Encumbered/Expended To Date 3,302,000              

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation

Renovations/Construction 300,000                 

  Remaining Appropriation 300,000                 

Total Appropriation 3,602,000$            

92619

Federal Inspection Services Facility

City of Lubbock, TX

Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail

May 24, 2022



 
 

 

 

Purchasing and Contract Management 

 

Project Summary 

 

ITB 22-16447-TF 

Construct Federal Inspection Service Facility 

 

Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on March 6 & March 13, 2022. 

Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 

Notice was published on Bonfire.com from March 6 to April 7, 2022. 

8 individuals attended the pre-bid meeting. 

33 vendors viewed using Bonfire.com.  

33 vendors downloaded the documents. 

8 vendors were notified separately.  

1 vendor submitted a bid. 

 



 AI# 10620 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 10. 
05/24/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Fleet Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Purchase Order
31066317, per BuyBoard Contract 601-19, with Grapevine Dodge Chrysler Jeep Ram, for the purchase
of five 1/2-ton, Extended Cab, 4x4 Pickup Trucks for Codes Administration, Water-Industrial
Monitoring, and Stormwater Utility Departments, and one 1/2-ton Extended Cab 4x2 Pickup for the
Building Safety Department.

Item Summary
Four 1/2-ton, Extended Cab, 4x4 Pickup Trucks will replace the following vehicles, all of which are in
need of extensive repairs and past their useful lives:
2006 Model – 1 (Water-Industrial Monitoring)
2010 Model – 2 (Codes Administration)
2010 Model – 1 (Storm Water Utility)
Four Pickup Trucks at $38,060 each = $152,240

One 1/2-ton, Extended Cab, 4x4 Pickup Truck will be an approved expanded level purchase for Codes
Administration.
One Pickup Truck at $38,060

One 1/2-ton, Extended Cab, 4x2 Pickup Truck will replace the following vehicle, which is in need of
extensive repairs and past its useful life:
2010 Model - 1 (Building Safety)
One Pickup Truck at $33,496
 
Purchase Order 31066317 for $223,796, to Grapevine Dodge Chrysler Jeep Ram of Grapevine, Texas,
for the purchase of six 1/2-ton Pickup Trucks, is made through the Texas Association of School Boards
Local Government Purchasing Cooperative, Contract 601-19, using the electronic purchasing system,
BuyBoard. The purchasing cooperative is an administrative agency created in accordance with Section
791.001 of the Texas Government Code and used to obtain the benefits and efficiencies that can accrue
to members of a cooperative, to comply with state bidding requirements, and to identify qualified
vendors of commodities, goods, and services.

Fiscal Impact
$147,676 of the Purchase Order is funded in CIP 92720.9220.40000, General Fund Vehicle Replacement
FY 2021-22.
 
$38,060 of the Purchase Order is funded in CIP 92724.9220.40000, Water/Wastewater Vehicle
Replacement FY 2021-22

$38,060 of the Purchase Order is funded in CIP 92725.9220.40000, Storm Water Vehicle Replacement
FY 2021-22



Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Dominic R. Esperat, Director of Fleet Operations

Attachments
Resolution - 31066317 
Purchase Order 31066317 
Budget Summary_92720 
Budget Detail 
Budget Summary_92725 
CIP Detail_92720 
CIP Detail_92724 
CIP Detail_92725 





1Page    -
Date    - 5/6/2022P U R C H A S E   O R D E R
Order Number 31066317 OP000
Branch/Plant         3526

GRAPEVINE DCJ LLC CITY OF LUBBOCK
2601 WILLIAM D TATE FLEET SERVICES

206 MUNICIPAL DRIVEGRAPEVINE TX 76051
LUBBOCK TX 79404

Ordered .Freight5/6/2022
Taken ByRequested 11/20/2022 S BALLANCE

BUYBOARD 601-19Delivery PER B RODRIGUEZ, REQ 58809

Description/Supplier Item Ordered Unit Cost UM Extension Request Date
5.000 38,060.0000 EA 190,300.00 11/20/2022

1.000 33,496.0000 EA 33,496.00 11/20/2022

2022 DODGE 1/2 TON 4X4

2022 DODGE 1/2 TON 4X2

Total Order

NET 30Terms 223,796.00

This purchase order encumbers funds in the amount of $223,796.00 awarded to Grapevine DCJ LLC of Grapevine, 
TX, on _________________, 2022. The following is incorporated into and made part of this purchase order by reference: 
Quote dated May 4, 2022, from Grapevine DCJ LLC of Grapevine, TX, and BuyBoard Contract 601-19.

 Resolution #____________________ 

CITY OF LUBBOCK ATTEST: 

_______________________________________ ___________________________________________  

Mayor Rebecca Garza, City Secretary 

If you have any questions, please contact Breanna Rodriguez: BRodriguez@mylubbock.us or 806-775-2374

178410
Line

178410
Line



  REV. 3/2022     

    Rev. 3/2022 
 

Seller and Buyer agree as 
follows: 

PURCHASE ORDER                                                                                        
TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

ACCEPTANCE OF THIS PURCHASE ORDER:  

CONTRACTOR ACKNOWLEDGES, by supplying any Goods or Services that the Contractor has read, fully 

understands, and will be in full compliance with all terms and conditions and the descriptive material contained herein 

and any additional associated documents and Amendments.  The City disclaims any terms and conditions provided by 

the Contractor unless agreed upon in writing by the parties.  In the event of conflict between the City’s terms and 

conditions and any terms and conditions provided by the Contractor, the terms and conditions provided herein shall 

prevail.  The terms and conditions provided herein are the final terms agreed upon by the parties, and any prior 

conflicting terms shall be of no force or effect. 

 

1. SELLER TO PACKAGE GOODS.   Seller will package goods in accordance with good commercial practice.   

Each shipping container shall be clearly and permanently marked as follows  (a)  Seller’s name and address, (b) 

Consignee’s name, address and purchase order or purchase release number and the supply agreement number if 

applicable, (c) Container number and total number of containers, e.g. box 1 of 4 boxes, and (d) the number of the 

container bearing the packing slip. Seller shall bear cost of packaging unless otherwise provided. Goods shall be 

suitably packed to secure lowest transportation costs and to conform with requirements of common carriers and any 

applicable specifications.  Buyer’s count or weight shall be final and conclusive on shipments not accompanied by 

packing lists. 

2. SHIPMENT UNDER RESERVATION PROHIBITED.  Seller is not authorized to ship the goods under 

reservation and no tender of a bill of lading will operate as a tender of goods. 

3. TITLE AND RISK OF LOSS.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to Buyer until Buyer actually 

receives and takes possession of the goods at the point or points of delivery. 

4. NO REPLACEMENT OF DEFECTIVE TENDER.  Every tender of delivery of goods must fully comply with all 

provisions of this contract as to time of delivery, quality and the like. If a tender is made which does not fully conform, 

this shall constitute a breach and Seller shall not have the right to substitute a conforming tender, provided, where the 

time for performance has not yet expired, the Seller may reasonably notify Buyer of his intention to cure and may 

then make a conforming tender within the contract time but not afterward. 

5. INVOICES & PAYMENTS. a. S e l l e r  shall submit separate invoices, in duplicate, one each purchase order or 

purchase release after each delivery.  Invoices shall indicate the purchase order or purchase release number and 

the supply agreement number if applicable.  Invoices shall be itemized and transportation charges, if any, shall be 

listed separately.  A copy of the bill of lading, and the freight waybill when applicable, should be attached to the 

invoice. Mail To: Accounts Payable, City of Lubbock, P. O. Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas 79457.  Payment shall not 

be due until the above instruments are submitted after delivery. 

6. GRATUITIES.  The Buyer may, by written notice to the Seller, cancel this contract without liability to Seller if 

it is determined by Buyer that gratuities, in the form of entertainment, gifts or otherwise, were offered or given by the 

Seller, or any agent or representative of the Seller, to any officer or employee of the City of Lubbock with a view to 

securing a contract or securing favorable treatment with respect to the awarding or amending, or the making of any 

determinations with respect to the performing of such a contract.  In the event this contract is canceled by Buyer 

pursuant to this provision, Buyer shall be entitled, in addition to any other rights and remedies, to recover or withhold 

the amount of the cost incurred by Seller in providing such gratuities. 

7. SPECIAL TOOLS & TEST EQUIPMENT.  If the price stated on the face hereof includes the cost of any special 

tooling or special test equipment fabricated or required by Seller for the purpose of filling this order, such special 

tooling equipment and any process sheets related thereto shall become the property of the Buyer and to the extent 

feasible shall be identified by the Seller as such. 

8. WARRANTY-PRICE. a. The price to be paid by the Buyer shall be that contained in Seller’s bid which 

Seller warrants to be no higher than Seller’s current process on orders by others for products of the kind and 

specification covered by this agreement for similar quantities under similar of like conditions and methods of purchase.  

In the event Seller breaches this warranty, the prices of the  items  shall  be  reduced  to  the  Seller’s  current  prices  

on  orders  by others, or  in  the alternative.  Buyer may cancel this contract without liability to Seller for breach 

or Seller’s actual expense. b. The Seller warrants that no person or selling agency has been employed or retained to 

solicit or secure this contract upon an agreement or understanding for commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent 

fee excepting bona fide employees of bona fide established commercial or selling agencies maintained by the Seller for 

the purpose of securing business.  For breach of viciation of this warranty the Buyer shall have the right in addition to 

any other right of rights to cancel this contract without liability and to deduct from the contract price, or otherwise 

recover without liability and to deduct from the contract price, or otherwise recover the full amount of such commission, 

percentage, brokerage or contingent fee. 

9. WARRANTY-PRODUCT.  Seller shall not limit or exclude any implied warranties and any attempt to do so shall 

render this contract voidable at the option of the Buyer.  Seller warrants that the goods furnished will conform to the 

specification, drawings, and descriptions listed in the bid invitation, and to the sample(s) furnished by the Seller, if any. 

In the event of a conflict or between the specifications, drawings, and descriptions, the specifications shall govern. 

Notwithstanding any provisions contained in the contractual agreement, the Seller represents and warrants fault-free 

performance and fault-free result in the processing date and date related data (including, but not limited to calculating, 

comparing and sequencing) of all hardware, software and firmware products delivered and services provided under 

this Contract, individually or in combination, as the case may be from the effective date of this Contract. The 

obligations contained herein apply to products and services provided by the Seller, its sub- Seller or any third party 

involved in the creation or development of the products and services to be delivered to the City of Lubbock under this 

Contract.  Failure to comply with any of the obligations contained herein, may result in the City of Lubbock 

availing itself of any of its rights under the law and under this Contract including, but not limited to, its right pertaining 

to termination or default. The warranties contained herein are separate and discrete from any other warranties 

specified in this Contract, and are not subject to any disclaimer of warranty, implied or expressed, or limitation of the 

Seller’s liability which may be specified in this Contract, its appendices, its schedules, its annexes or any document 

incorporated in this Contract by reference. 

10. SAFETY WARRANTY.  Seller warrants that the product sold to the Buyer shall conform to the standards 

promulgated by the U. S. Department of Labor under the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970.  In the event the 

product does not conform to OSHA standards, Buyer may return the product for correction or replacement at the 

Seller’s expense.  In the event Seller fails to make the appropriate correction within a reasonable time, correction 

made by Buyer will be at the Seller’s expense. 

11. NO WARRANTY BY BUYER AGAINST INFRINGEMENTS.  As part of this contract for sale Seller agrees 

to ascertain whether goods manufactured in accordance with the specifications attached to this agreement will give 

rise to the rightful claim of any third person by way of infringement of the like.  Buyer makes no warranty that the 

production of goods according to the specification will not give rise to such a claim, and in no event shall Buyer be 

liable to Seller for indemnification in the event that Seller is sued on the grounds of infringement of the like.  If Seller 

is of the opinion that an infringement or the like will result, he will notify the Buyer to this effect in writing within two 

weeks after the signing of this agreement.    If  Buyer  does  not  receive  notice  and  is  subsequently  held  liable  for  

the infringement or the like, Seller will save Buyer harmless.  If Seller in good faith ascertains the production of the 

goods in accordance with the specifications will result in infringement or the like, the contract shall be null and void. 

12. NON APPROPRIATION. All funds for payment by the City under this contract are subject to the availability of an 

annual appropriation for this purpose by the City.  In the event of nonappropriation of funds by the City Council of the 

City of Lubbock for the goods or services provided under the contract, the City will terminate the contract, without 

termination charge or other liability, on the last day of the then-current fiscal year or when the appropriation made for 

the then-current year for the goods or services covered by this contract is spent, whichever event occurs first.  If at any 

time funds are not appropriated for the continuance of this contract, cancellation shall be accepted by the Seller on 

thirty (30) days prior written notice, but failure to give such notice shall be of no effect and the City shall not be 

obligated under this contract beyond the date of termination. 

13. RIGHT OF INSPECTION.  Buyer shall have the right to inspect the goods at delivery before accepting them. 

14. CANCELLATION.  Buyer shall have the right to cancel for default all or any part of the undelivered portion of 

this order if Seller breaches any of the terms hereof including warranties of Seller or if the Seller becomes insolvent or 

commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of cancellation is in addition to and not in lieu of any other remedies which 

Buyer may have in law or equity. 

15. TERMINATION. The performance of work under this order may be terminated in whole, or in part by the Buyer 

in accordance with this provision.  Termination of work hereunder shall be effected by the delivery of the Seller of 

a “Notice of Termination” specifying the extent to which performance of work under the order is terminated and the 

date upon which such termination becomes effective. Such right or termination is in addition to and not in lieu of the 

rights of Buyer set forth in Clause 14, herein. 

16. FORCE MAJEURE.    Neither party shall be held responsible for losses, resulting if the fulfillment of any 

terms of provisions of this contract is delayed or prevented by any cause not within the control of the party whose 

performance is interfered with, and which by the exercise of reasonable diligence said party is unable to prevent. 

17. ASSIGNMENT-DELEGATION.  No right or interest in this contract shall be assigned or delegation of any 

obligation made by Seller without the written permission of the Buyer.  Any attempted assignment or delegation by 

Seller shall be wholly void and totally ineffective for all purpose unless made in conformity with this paragraph. 

18. WAIVER. No claim or right arising out of a breach of this contract can be discharged in whole or in part by a 

waiver or renunciation of the claim or right unless the waiver or renunciation is supported by consideration and is in 

writing signed by the aggrieved party. 

19. INTERPRETATION-PAROLE EVIDENCE. This writing, plus any specifications for bids and performance  

provided  by  Buyer  in  its  advertisement for  bids,  and  any  other  documents provided by Seller as part of his bid, 

is intended by the parties as a final expression of their agreement and intended also as a complete and exclusive 

statement of the terms of their agreement.   Whenever a term defined by the Uniform Commercial Code is used in this 

agreement, the definition contained in the Code is to control. 

20. APPLICABLE LAW.  This agreement shall be governed by the Uniform Commercial Code. Wherever the term 

“Uniform Commercial Code” is used, it shall be construed as meaning the Uniform Commercial Code as adopted in 

the State of Texas as effective and in force on the date of this agreement. 

21. RIGHT TO ASSURANCE.  Whenever one party to this contract in good faith has reason to question the other 

party’s intent to perform he may demand that the other party give written assurance of his intent to perform.  In the 

event that a demand is made and no assurance is given within five (5) days, the demanding party may treat this 

failure as an anticipatory repudiation of the contract. 

22. INDEMNIFICATION.  Seller shall indemnify, keep and save harmless the Buyer, its agents, officials and 

employees, against all injuries, deaths, loss, damages, claims, patent claims, suits, liabilities, judgments, costs and 

expenses, which may in anywise accrue against the Buyer in consequence of the granting of this Contract or which 

may anywise result therefrom, whether or not it shall be alleged or determined that the act was caused through 

negligence or omission of the Seller or its employees, or of the subSeller or assignee or its employees, if any, and the 

Seller shall, at his own expense, appear, defend and pay all charges of attorneys and all costs and other expenses 

arising therefrom of incurred in connection therewith, and, if any judgment shall be rendered against the Buyer in any 

such action, the Seller shall, at its own expenses, satisfy and discharge the same Seller expressly understands and 

agrees that any bond required by this contract, or otherwise provided by Seller, shall in no way limit the 

responsibility to indemnify, keep and save harmless and defend the Buyer as herein provided. 

23. TIME.   It is hereby expressly agreed and understood that time is of the essence for the performance of this 

contract, and failure by contract to meet the time specifications of this agreement will cause Seller to be in default 

of this agreement. 

24. MBE.  The City of Lubbock hereby notifies all bidders that in regard to any contract entered into pursuant to 

this request, minority and women business enterprises will be afforded equal opportunities to submit bids in response 

to this invitation and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, sex or natural origin in 

consideration for an award. 

25. NON-ARBITRATION. The City reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy to it by law, contract, equity, or 

otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and all forms of relief in a court of competent 

jurisdiction. Further, the City shall not be subject to any arbitration process prior to exercising its unrestricted 

right to seek judicial remedy. The remedies set forth herein are cumulative and not exclusive, and may be exercised 

concurrently. To the extent of any conflict between this provision and another provision in, or related to, this document, 

this provision shall control. 

26. RIGHT TO AUDIT. At any time during the term of the contract, or thereafter, the City, or a duly authorized 

audit representative of the City or the State of Texas, at its expense and at reasonable times, reserves the right to 

audit Contractor's records and books relevant to all services provided to the City under this Contract. In the event such 

an audit by the City reveals any errors or overpayments by the City, Contractor shall refund the City the full amount 

of such overpayments within thirty (30) days of such audit findings, or the City, at its option, reserves the right to 

deduct such amounts owing the City from any payments due Contractor. 

27. The Contractor shall not assign or sublet the contract, or any portion of the contract, without written consent from 

the Director of Purchasing and Contract Management. 

28. Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist Organization Prohibited.  

Pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code, prohibits the City from entering into a contract with a 

vendor that is identified by The Comptroller as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or service 

with Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization 

29. Texas Government Code. Section 2252.908 requires a business entity entering into certain contracts with a 

governmental entity or state agency to file with the governmental entity or state agency a disclosure of interested parties 

at the time the business entity submits the signed contract to the governmental entity or state agency.  Instructions for 

completing Form 1295 are available at: http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-

websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information 

30. No Boycott of Israel.  Pursuant to Section 2271.002 of the Texas Government Code, Respondent certifies that 

either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2271.002; or (ii) it does not boycott Israel and will not boycott 

Israel during the term of the contract resulting from this solicitation. Respondent shall state any facts that make it 

exempt from the boycott certification in its Response.  

31. No Boycott of Energy Companies.  Pursuant to Section 2274 of the Texas Government Code, Respondent 

certifies that either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2274.002; or (ii) it does not boycott Energy 

Companies and will not boycott Energy Companies during the term of the contract resulting from this solicitation. 

Respondent shall state any facts that make it exempt from the boycott certification in its Response. 

32. No Boycott of a Firearm Entity or Firearm Trade Association.  Pursuant to Section 2274 of the Texas 

Government Code, Respondent certifies that either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2274.002; or (ii) it 

does not boycott a Firearm Entity or Firearm Trade Association and will not boycott a Firearm Entity or Firearm 

Trade Association during the term of the contract resulting from this solicitation. Respondent shall state any facts that 

make it exempt from the boycott certification in its Response. 

33.  Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist Organization Prohibited.  

Pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code, prohibits the City from entering into a contract with a 

vendor that is identified by The Comptroller as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or 

service with Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization 

34. TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT. The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code, 

may apply to this contract and the contractor or vendor agrees that the contract can be terminated if the contractor or 

vendor knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a requirement of that subchapter. 

35. Pursuant to Section 552.301(c) of the Texas Government Code, the City of Lubbock has designated the following 

email address for which public information requests may be made by an emailed request: orr@mylubbock.us. Please 

send this request to this email address for it to be processed

http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information
http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information
mailto:orr@mylubbock.us


kkkkk 

 

 
End Use: CITY OF LUBBOCK                                                                           Rep:       Dennis Thomas           

Contact:DOMINIC ESPERAT                       Phone: 817‐410‐7541   

Phone/Email:DESPERAT@MAIL.CI.LUBBOCK.TX                                     Email:  dthomas@grapevinedcj.com 

Product Description:2022 RAM 1500 QUAD CAB 4X2                             Date: 05/04/2022 

 
A.       Bid Series:1500                A. Base Price:  
 
B.      Published Options [Itemize each below] 

Code  Options  Bid Price  Code  Options  Bid Price 

DS1L41  QUAD CAB 4X2  4,981  29B  TRADESMAN V6/AUTO  STD 

PW7  WHITE  NC  V9X9  CLOTH SEAT  306 

DSA  ANTI SPIN AXLE  480          

GXM  REMOTE KEYLESS ENTRY  184  XCH  2 EXTRA KEYS  189 

AHC  TOW GROUP: TOW MIRRORS  543          

    HITCH, BRAKE CONTROLLER          

           

           

           

           

           

Total of B. Published Options:   6,683 

             
 
C.      Unpublished Options                          $=           0.0% 

Options  Bid Price  Options  Bid Price 

       

        

        

        

        

       

Total of C. Unpublished Options:    

 

D.  Pre‐delivery Inspection:                       

E.  Texas State Inspection:                                                                                                                                                        $   

F.  Manufacturer Destination/Delivery:                                                                                                                                 $       

G.  Floor Plan Interest (for in‐stock and/or equipped vehicles):                                                                                        $ 

H.  Lot Insurance (for in stock and/or equipped vehicles):                                                                                                 $ 

I.  Contract Price Adjustment:2021‐2022 GOVERNMENT INCENTIVE DROP                                        $8600                           

J.  Additional Delivery Charge:          miles                                                        $325 

K.  Subtotal:                                                                                                                                                                                $33,496 

L.  Quantity Ordered   1                x K =                                                                                                          $33,496 

M.  Trade in: 

N.  BUYBOARD Administrative Fee ($400 per purchase order)                                                                                        OTHER QT 

O.  TOTAL PURCHASE PRICE INCLUDING BUYBOARD FEE                                                                                                   $33,496 

PRODUCT PRICING SUMMARY BASED ON CONTRACT 
BUYBOARD #601‐19 

Grapevine Dodge Chrysler Jeep  2601 William D Tate, Grapevine, TX 76051 

17,888



kkkkk 

 

 
End Use: CITY OF LUBBOCK                                                                           Rep:       Dennis Thomas           

Contact:DOMINIC ESPERAT                       Phone: 817‐410‐7541   

Phone/Email:DESPERAT@MAIL.CI.LUBBOCK.TX                                     Email:  dthomas@grapevinedcj.com 

Product Description:2022 RAM 1500 QUAD CAB 4X4                             Date: 05/04/2022 

 
A.       Bid Series:1500                A. Base Price:  
 
B.      Published Options [Itemize each below] 

Code  Options  Bid Price  Code  Options  Bid Price 

DS6L41  QUAD CAB 4X4  8,376  29B  TRADESMAN V6/AUTO  STD 

PW7  WHITE  NC  V9X9  CLOTH SEAT  306 

DSA  ANTI SPIN AXLE  480  AM8  TOW HOOKS  189 

GXM  REMOTE KEYLESS ENTRY  184  XCH  2 EXTRA KEYS  189 

AHC  TOW GROUP: TOW MIRRORS  543     ELECTRONIC SHIFT ON FLY 
2SPD 

STD 

    HITCH, BRAKE CONTROLLER          

           

           

           

           

           

Total of B. Published Options:  10,267  

             
 
C.      Unpublished Options                          $=           0.0% 

Options  Bid Price  Options  Bid Price 

       

        

        

        

        

       

Total of C. Unpublished Options:    

 

D.  Pre‐delivery Inspection:                       

E.  Texas State Inspection:                                                                                                                                                        $   

F.  Manufacturer Destination/Delivery:                                                                                                                                 $       

G.  Floor Plan Interest (for in‐stock and/or equipped vehicles):                                                                                        $ 

H.  Lot Insurance (for in stock and/or equipped vehicles):                                                                                                 $ 

I.  Contract Price Adjustment:2021‐2022 GOVERNMENT INCENTIVE DROP                                        $9500                           

J.  Additional Delivery Charge:          miles                                                        $325 

K.  Subtotal:                                                                                                                                                                                $37,980 

L.  Quantity Ordered   5                x K =                                                                                                          $189,900 

M.  Trade in: 

N.  BUYBOARD Administrative Fee ($400 per purchase order)                                                                                         $400.00 

PRODUCT PRICING SUMMARY BASED ON CONTRACT 
BUYBOARD #601‐19 

Grapevine Dodge Chrysler Jeep  2601 William D Tate, Grapevine, TX 76051 

17,888



O.  TOTAL PURCHASE PRICE INCLUDING BUYBOARD FEE                                                                                                   $190,300 











Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Budget

Encumbered/Expended

(4) LP61 Gasoline Skid (5221) 72,732$                       

TerrainCut Rough Mower (5221) 73,404                         

2 Units Half Ton Pick Up (5615) 69,555                         

64,187                         

50' Aerial Truck (5615) 189,416                       

2 Units of Mack ASL (5815) 690,596                       

3 Units of KANN CSL (5815) 345,858                       

3 Units of Freightliner (5815) 312,960                       

66,196                         

248,800                       

Agenda Item May 24, 2022

114,180                       

33,496                         

Encumbered/Expended To Date 2,281,380                    

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation

Vehicles and Equipment 621,598                       

Remaining Appropriation 621,598                       

Total Appropriation 2,902,978$                  

Split Drum Vibratory Roller (4531)

3 units of 1/2 ton pickup 4X4 (4211)

Carterpillar 120JOY Motor Grader (5812)

1 unit of 1/2 ton pickup 4X2 (4311)

City of Lubbock, TX

Capital Project 

May 24, 2022

92720

General Fund Vehicle Replacement FY 21-22

Dynapac double drum roller (4531)





Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Encumbered/Expended Budget

Concrete Truck (6331) 208,153$                  

2 Units John Deere Backhoes (6331) 230,000                    

Agenda Item  May 24, 2022

38,060                      

Encumbered/Expended To Date 476,213                    

Estimated Cost for Remaining Appropriation

Vehicles and Equipment 262,787                    

Remaining Appropriation 262,787                    

Total Appropriation 739,000$                  

City of Lubbock

92724

Water Fund Vehicle Replacement FY 21-22

Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail

May 24, 2022

1 unit of 1/2 ton Ext Cab  4X4 Pickup (6417)



Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Budget

Encumbered/Expended

Broce Broom (6513) 64,482                                 

Agenda Item December 1, 2020

1 unit of 1/2 ton Ext Cab  4X4 Pickup (6511) 38,060                                 

Encumbered/Expended To Date 102,542                               

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation

Vehicles and Equipment 8,458                                   

Remaining Appropriation 8,458                                   

Total Appropriation 111,000$                             

City of Lubbock, TX

Capital Project 

May 24, 2022

92725

Storm Water Fund Vehicle Replacement FY 21-22



Project Name General Fund Vehicle Replacement FY 21-22 Project Number 92720

Managing Department

Project Manager

Project Classification

Project Status

Project Scope

Fleet Maintenance

Billy Taylor

Replacement Equipment/Fleet

Approved

This project is for the annual vehicle replacement for the General Fund.

4211 - Codes Administration

(2) 1/2 ton, extended cab, 4x4 (replacing 12010030 and 12010038) - $56,000

(1) 3/4 ton, extended cab, 4x4 (replacing 22001050) - $32,000

(1) 1/2 ton pickup, toolbox, lightbar, radios (NEW) - $29,978

4311 - Building Safety

(1) 1/2 ton pick-up (replacing 12010055) - $25,000

4525 - Traffic Operations

(1) 48" digging depth trencher (replacing 92001015) - $55,000

4531 - Paved Streets

(1) Steel Drum Roller with 51"-55" width (replacing 92009162) - $65,000

(1) Towable roller with rear vibration and split front drum (replacing 92010063) - $75,000

(1) Walk behind roller (replacing N/A) - $8,000

5221 - Park Maintenance

(1) John Deere 9009A Terrain Cut Mower (replacing 02004001) - $85,000

(3) Litter Vacuum LP61-G (replacing N/A) - $75,000

(1) Tandem 10k Utility Trailer (replacing 02001116) - $6,000

5311 - Animal Services 

(1) 3/4 ton, extended cab, 4x4 with animal transport body (replacing 22011119) - $52,000

5414 - Environmental Health

(1) Mid-size SUV (NEW) - $32,000

5419 - Vector Control

(2) 3/4 ton 4x4 with Flatbed (replacing 22003168 and 22004082) - $60,000

5615 - Lubbock Fire Rescue

(1) 50' Aerial (NEW) - $200,000

(2) 1/2 ton, crew cab, 4x4 pickup (replacing 12009169 and 12007135) - $64,000

5811 - Residential Collection

(1) Roll-Off (replacing 82010001) - $160,000

(1) 3/4 Ton, Crew Cab, 4x4 (replacing 12008154) - $33,000

(4) Automated Side Loader (replacing 82012019, 82014014, 82014032, and 82014029) - $1,280,000

5812 - Alley Maintenance 

(1) 12 yard dump with salt spreader hookups (replacing 82008181) - $200,000

(1) CAT 120 Motor Grader (replacing 82008204) - $265,000



Project Name General Fund Vehicle Replacement FY 21-22 Project Number 92720

5815 - Solid Waste Disposal

(1) 3/4 Ton, Crew Cab, 4x4, service body, Air Compressor (replacing 32013016) - $45,000

Replacement of vehicles and equipment that are at the end of their useful life.

Project Justification

Project History

$2,902,978 was appropriated in the FY 2021-22 Budget, Ord. No. 2021-O0126, October 1, 2021.

Unappropriated Planning Years

Appropriation Detail

Appropriation to

Date

Total Project 

Amount
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

Other Activities  0  2,902,978  0  0  0  0  0  2,902,978 

Total Project Appropriation  0  2,902,978  0  0  0  0  0  2,902,978 

Unappropriated Planning Years

Funding to

Date

Total

FundingFunding Detail
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

FY 2022 General Fund Cash  0  2,902,978  0  0  0  0  0  2,902,978 

Total Funding Sources  0  2,902,978  0  0  0  0  0  2,902,978 

Unappropriated Planning Years

Total ImpactFY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27Operating Budget Impact

 0 No Impact Anticipated  0  0  0  0  0  0 

Total Operating Budget Impact  0  0  0  0  0  0  0 



Project Name Water/Wastewater Vehicle Replacement FY 21-22 Project Number 92724

Managing Department

Project Manager

Project Classification

Project Status

Project Scope

Fleet Maintenance

Billy Taylor

Replacement Equipment/Fleet

Approved

This project is for the annual vehicle replacement for the Water/Wastewater Fund.

6311 Water Meter and Customer Service

(3) 3/4 Ton, Extended Cab, 4x4, Service Body (replacing 22009014, 22008134, and 22013015) - $114,000

6331 Water Distribution & Maintenance

(1) Concrete Truck (replacing 82011007) - $185,000

(2) Backhoe (replacing 92009249 and 92009182) - $240,000

(1) Crew Truck W/ Flatbed (replacing 72010005) - $110,000

6349 Water Reservoir

(1) Land Pride RC2684 3 Point Shredder

(replacing 02012010) - $5,000

6413 Wastewater Collection

(1) 8" trailer mounted pump (replacing 02000178) - $50,000

6417 Industrial Monitoring

(1) 1/2 ton, extended cab, 4x4 with crane (replacing 22006237) - $35,000

Replacement of vehicles and equipment that are at the end of their useful life.

Project Justification

Project History

$739,000 was appropriated in the FY 2021-22 Budget, Ord. No. 2021-O0126, October 1, 2021.

Unappropriated Planning Years

Appropriation Detail

Appropriation to

Date

Total Project 

Amount
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

Other Activities  0  739,000  0  0  0  0  0  739,000 

Total Project Appropriation  0  739,000  0  0  0  0  0  739,000 



Project Name Water/Wastewater Vehicle Replacement FY 21-22 Project Number 92724

Unappropriated Planning Years

Funding to

Date

Total

FundingFunding Detail
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

FY 2022 Water/Wastewater Cash  0  739,000  0  0  0  0  0  739,000 

Total Funding Sources  0  739,000  0  0  0  0  0  739,000 

Unappropriated Planning Years

Total ImpactFY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27Operating Budget Impact

 0 No Impact Anticipated  0  0  0  0  0  0 

Total Operating Budget Impact  0  0  0  0  0  0  0 



Project Name Storm Water Vehicle Replacement FY 21-22 Project Number 92725

Managing Department

Project Manager

Project Classification

Project Status

Project Scope

Fleet Maintenance

Billy Taylor

Replacement Equipment/Fleet

Approved

This project is for the annual vehicle replacement for the Storm Water Fund.

6511 Storm Water Utility

(1) 1/2 ton, extended cab, 4x4 (replacing 12010090) - $28,000

6513 Storm Sewer Maintenance

(1) Broce Broom (replacing 92009161) - $65,000

(1) Triple Axle Backhoe Trailer (replacing 02009169) - $18,000

Replacement of vehicles and equipment that are at the end of their useful life.

Project Justification

Project History

Unappropriated Planning Years

Appropriation Detail

Appropriation to

Date

Total Project 

Amount
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

Other Activities  0  111,000  0  0  0  0  0  111,000 

Total Project Appropriation  0  111,000  0  0  0  0  0  111,000 

Unappropriated Planning Years

Funding to

Date

Total

FundingFunding Detail
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

FY 2022 Storm Water Cash  0  111,000  0  0  0  0  0  111,000 

Total Funding Sources  0  111,000  0  0  0  0  0  111,000 

Unappropriated Planning Years

Total ImpactFY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27Operating Budget Impact

 0 No Impact Anticipated  0  0  0  0  0  0 

Total Operating Budget Impact  0  0  0  0  0  0  0 



 AI# 10715 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 11. 
05/24/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Parks and Recreation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Purchase
Order 10025317 and Purchase Order 10025319 per BuyBoard Contract 592-19, with Child's Play, Inc.,
for playground replacement at Stumpy Hamilton Park located at 22nd Street and Ave X, and
Washington Park located at East 22nd Street and Cedar Avenue.

Item Summary
The Parks and Recreation Department manages a total of 56 playgrounds throughout the City. Beginning
in 2021, the department developed an in-depth Playground Safety Maintenance Checklist, which will be
utilized in subsequent years, in order to determine the overall condition of each playground. The
evaluation process provided a number rating that indicated the replacement need of each City
playground.

The Department brought 4 playgrounds for consideration to the City Council on March 8, 2022. Those
playgrounds were located at Aztlan Park, Ribble Park, Strong Park and Wheelock Park. The City
Council approved Aztlan Park and Strong Park, and asked staff to recommend 2 other playgrounds in
place of Ribble Park and Wheelock Park, while taking into consideration the proximity to schools with
existing playgrounds. Staff reviewed the playground evaluations and determined the next 2 playgrounds
in need of replacement would be Stumpy Hamilton Park and Washington Park. These parks were chosen
based on their ranking within parks that are not located near a school.

Staff contacted Child's Play, Inc., to provide quotes to replace the play equipment, stabilize and install
site drainage systems, and install fall zone materials.

The contract includes:
• Site soil preparation
• Installation of sub-surface drainage system
• Installation of new playground equipment and pieces
• Installation of new Bondflex safety surfacing
• Shipping and handling

Time for completion of the installation process is 60 consecutive calendar days from the notice to
proceed, with a 10-week lead time for materials. Liquidated damages are $100 per day, assessed after the
project due date.

The resolution for consideration will approve Purchase Order 10025317 for Stumpy Hamilton Park in
the amount of $121,490.15, and Purchase Order 10025319 for Washington Park in the amount of
$204,511.87. The total cost for the 2 playground replacements is $326,002.02, from Child's Play, Inc., of
Dallas, Texas, through the BuyBoard purchasing program. BuyBoard is a local Government Purchasing
Cooperative created to increase the purchasing power of government entities and to simplify their
purchasing by using a customized online purchasing system. Its purpose is to obtain the benefits and
efficiencies that can accrue to members.



efficiencies that can accrue to members.

This project was approved for recommendation to the City Council by the Lubbock Parks and
Recreation Advisory Board on January 24, 2022.

Fiscal Impact
The total cost of playground replacement at these 2 parks is $326,002.02, and is funded in Capital
Improvement Project 92718 Parks Playground Phase II.

Staff/Board Recommending
Brooke Witcher, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
Resolution 
PO 10025317 0 Stumpy Hamilton 
Stumpy Hamilton Rendering 
PO 10025319 - Washington 
Washington Rendering 
CIP Budget Detail 

























Capital Project Number: 92718

Capital Project Name: Park Playground Phase II

Budget

Encumbered/Expended

Child's Play, Inc. - Aztlan Playground 204,834$             

Child's Play, Inc. - Strong Playground 215,549               

Agenda Items - May 24, 2022

Child's Play, Inc. - Stumpy Hamilton Playground 121,490               

Child's Play, Inc. - Washington Playground 204,512               

746,385               

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation

Park Playgrounds Phase II -                           

Remaining Appropriation -                           

Total Appropriation 746,385$             

Encumbered/Expended To Date

City of Lubbock, TX

Capital Project

May 24, 2022



 AI# 10627 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 12. 
05/24/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - City Manager: Consider a resolution approving American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA)
Agreement No. 16518, by and between the City of Lubbock, and Texas Tech University Health Sciences
Center, for healthcare training scholarships.  

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock has allocated $3.5 million from the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds for
the development of job training programs.  One of the job training programs that the City is considering
is the creation of a Healthcare Training Scholarship Program for students enrolled in health sciences
programs.  The purpose of the program is to support individuals looking to enter the medical field or
advance within the medical field.  In addition, the program is for students specifically enrolled in one of
the five major institutions that currently have health science programs, including South Plains College,
Wayland Baptist University, Lubbock Christian University, Texas Tech University Health Sciences
Center, and Covenant Hospital.

This effort is part of a broader effort called the Talent Pipeline Management (TPM) Program.  Through
the TPM process, a shortage of over 5,500 health care positions on the South Plains have been
identified.  The annual capacity of the area-training providers consists of only 1,300 student slots. 

In order to help encourage more individuals to enter the medical field or advance within the medical
field, the proposed Healthcare Training Scholarship Program includes a total of $1.3 million from the job
training ARPA allocation.  This particular agreement is in the amount of $390,000 to help fund up to 195
$2,000 scholarships for students enrolled in a health sciences program at Texas Tech University Health
Sciences Center.  This will fund approximately half of the health sciences students enrolled at Texas
Tech University Health Sciences Center.

Fiscal Impact
The agreement in the amount of $390,000 will be funded in Capital Improvement
Project 8669.8302.10000, Job Training – ARPA. 

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
Resolution 
Agreement 
Budget Detail - 8669 



















Capital Project Number:
Capital Project Name:

Budget

Encumbered/Expended
South Plains College Contract 416,000$                  
Lubbock Christian University Contract 150,000                    
Covenant Hospital Contract 224,000                    
Wayland Baptist University Contract 120,000                    

Agenda Item  May 24, 2022
Texas Tech University Health Sciences Center Contract 390,000                    

Encumbered/Expended To Date 1,300,000                 

Estimated Cost for Remaining Appropriation
Job Training 2,200,000                 

Remaining Appropriation 2,200,000                 

Total Appropriation 3,500,000$               

City of Lubbock

8669
Job Training - ARPA

Capital Project 
Project Cost Detail

May 24, 2022



 AI# 10749 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 8. 1. 
05/24/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Board Appointments - City Secretary: Consider appointments of City Council members to the South
Plains Association of Governments (SPAG) Board.

Item Summary
SPAG was created to maintain and improve the quality of life for all people in the region by promoting
the orderly development of the total regional environment: economic, social, and physical.
 
The City of Lubbock is entitled to five positions on the SPAG Board. This is based on one representative
for each 50,000 persons total population. Two vacated positions were created with the leaving of Council
members Juan Chadis and Jeff Griffith. Council members Latrelle Joy, Sheila Patterson Harris and Steve
Massengale currently serve in the other three positions.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



 AI# 10753 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 8. 2. 
05/24/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Board Appointments - City Secretary: Consider appointments to the Ports-to-Plains Trade Corridor
Coalition Board.

Item Summary
This committee was established to provide the department with information on concerns and interests
along the Ports-to-Plains Corridor; and advise the department on transportation improvements impacting
the Ports-to-Plains Corridor. According to Transportation Code Sec. 201.623 (c)(1), “The advisory
committee is composed of: 10 members, one of whom represents each of the following counties and is
the county judge of the county or an elected county official or the administrator of the county road
department designated by the county judge of the county:
Dallam County;
Howard County;
Lubbock County;
Midland County;
Moore County;
Potter County;
Sherman County;
Tom Green County;
Val Verde County; and
Webb County;
(2)  seven members, one of whom represents each of the following municipalities and is the mayor of
the municipality or the city manager or an assistant city manager designated by the mayor of the
municipality:
Amarillo;
Big Spring;
Del Rio;
Laredo;
Lubbock;
Midland; and
San Angelo;
- three members who are economic development professionals, to be selected based on geographic
segments that were established for the feasibility study;
-  one member who is a business representative from the agriculture industry;
-  one member who is a business representative from the international trade industry; and
-  one member who is a business representative from the energy industry.
 
The position for the City of Lubbock was held by Dan Pope, former Mayor.  Traditionally, this position
is filled with the appointment of the current sitting Mayor.

Fiscal Impact



None

Staff/Board Recommending
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

Attachments
Bylaws 
Senate Bill 1474 



SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED BYLAWS 
OF 

PORTS-TO-PLAINS TRADE CORRIDOR COALITION 
 

ARTICLE ONE 
NAME AND PURPOSE 

 
 1.1 Name.  The name of the corporation is Ports-to-Plains Trade Corridor 
Coalition (the “Corporation”). 
 
 1.2 Principal Office.  The principal office of the Corporation shall be at such 
place within the City of Lubbock, Texas, or such other city within Texas, as the Board of 
Directors of the Corporation may determine to be in the best interest of the Corporation.  
The Corporation may have such other offices as the Board of Directors may determine 
and as the affairs of the Corporation may require. 
 
 1.3 Purpose.  This Corporation is organized as a business league within the 
meaning of Section 501(c) (6) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the 
“Code”), for the purposes set forth in its Articles of Incorporation. 
 

ARTICLE TWO 
MEMBERS 

 
 2.1 Member Classes.  The Corporation shall have one class of voting members 
(“Members”) and one class of non-voting members (“Associate Members”).  Unless the 
context clearly indicates otherwise, as used herein, the term “members” means both 
“Members” and “Associate Members”. 
  

2.2 Members.   
2.2.1 States of the United States of America, provinces of Canada, states 

of Mexico, counties, municipalities, political subdivisions, metropolitan planning 
organizations, economic development corporations, other public entities that are located 
in any of the aforementioned sovereign or political entities, and chambers of commerce 
may apply to join the Corporation as Members.   

2.2.2 Subject to approval by the Board of Directors, execution of a 
membership application and agreement, and payment of the dues and application fee, if 
any, determined pursuant to Section 2.4, such entity shall become a Member.   

2.2.3 Members shall have voting rights with respect to the election of 
Directors and shall have voting rights with respect to other matters only as may be 
required by law. Each Member shall be entitled to one vote for dues payments of up to 
$10,000, one additional vote for dues payments up to $20,000, and one vote for each 
additional $10,000 dues payments up to a maximum of 10 votes.  

2.2.4 No fractional votes are allowed.  It is expressly provided, however, 
that the members shall not be entitled to vote on changes to, the repeal of, or the adoption 
of new Bylaws.     
 



 2

 For a county, municipality, political subdivision, metropolitan planning 
organization, economic development corporation, any other public entities that are 
located in any state within the United States of America or Mexico or province of 
Canada, or a chamber of commerce to be a Member, it is not necessary that the State in 
which the entity is located be a Member. 
 
 An entity that is entitled to participate as a Member may designate in writing to 
the Corporation a department, agency or private non-profit entity (“designated entity”) 
that is to act in its stead, which designated entity shall then be registered as the Member 
and have all the rights to which the entity (“sponsoring entity”) that so designated it 
would be eligible.  The sponsoring entity may withdraw such designation by written 
notice to the Corporation, in which event the designated entity shall be deemed to have 
withdrawn as a Member of the Corporation. 
 
 2.3 Associate Members.  

2.3.1 Private sector individuals and entities which are interested in 
advancing the Corporation’s purposes may apply to join the Corporation as non-voting 
Associate Members.   

2.3.2 Subject to approval by the Board of Directors, execution of an 
associate membership application and agreement, and upon payment of the dues and 
application fee, if any, determined pursuant to Section 2.4, such individual or entity shall 
become an Associate Member.   

2.3.3 Associate Members have no right to vote on any matter on which 
corporate members of a Texas non-profit corporation are entitled or required to vote, 
including on any amendment to the Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws of the 
Corporation that adversely affect such Associate Members; provided, however, that upon 
the effectiveness of any such amendment, an Associate Member may ask for a prorated 
(by month) refund of dues for the remainder of such year.   

2.3.4 Associate Members may attend meetings of the Members, except 
in the case of executive sessions.  At meetings which they are allowed to attend, 
Associate Members may participate in discussions as permitted by the President, but may 
not vote. 
  2.3.5 Categories of Associate Members 

2.3.5.1 Alliance Members 
 2.3.5.1.1 Reserved for partner associations who meet 

specific needs or agree to support Ports-to-Plains in functional or subject matter areas in 
which Ports-to-Plains does not already have expertise or leadership.   

2.3.5.1.2 Membership rights shall be identified by 
agreement to be approved by the Board of Directors which may include representation on 
the Board of Directors and Advisory Council as well a representation in workgroups. 

2.3.5.2 Business Members 
 2.3.5.2.1 These members shall receive only the 

benefits approved by the Board of Directors for Business Membership and no other rights 
as members. 
   2.3.5.3 Sponsor Members 



 3

    2.3.5.3.1 These members shall receive only the 
benefits approved by the Board of Directors for Events Sponsorship and no other rights 
as members. 
   2.3.5.4 Other Members.  

2.3.5.4.1 Other members may include Individuals, 
Students, Post-secondary and Research organizations who will, on a case by case basis, 
be a low-cost or reciprocal membership class to encourage university partnerships; 
potential contributor to new programming, particularly workforce development, venture 
cap or entrepreneurship topics. 

2.3.5.4.2 These members shall have no rights as 
members. 

 
2.4 Membership Dues.  All members shall be required to pay annual 

membership dues to the Corporation in such amounts as established from time to time by 
the Board of Directors and may be required to pay an application fee, if any.  The 
membership dues owed and payable for the first year of membership shall be due within 
30 days after the date that the membership application and agreement is executed by the 
member and approved by the Board of Directors.  All dues payable each year thereafter 
shall be payable within 30 days of the beginning of the Corporation’s fiscal year.   
 

The dues and application fee, if any, shall be set by the Board of Directors, which 
may make distinctions in the dues payable by members. No member by its execution of 
the membership application and agreement is assuming or agreeing to pay any monetary 
or other obligation other than the agreement to make the contributions provided by this 
Section 2.4.   
 
 2.5 Term of Membership/Withdrawal/Expulsion.  The member’s membership 
in the Corporation shall be effective on and as of the date all of the requirements in 
Section 2.2 or 2.3, as the case may be, are satisfied and shall automatically continue from 
year to year unless and until the member withdraws from participation in accordance with 
the following sentences or the Board of Directors terminates a member’s membership in 
the Corporation in accordance with this Section.  Any member may withdraw from the 
Corporation at any time, without refund of amounts paid to date, by giving thirty (30) 
days written notice to the Corporation.  Any member who fails to pay the annual 
membership dues, as provided in Section 2.4 above, shall be deemed to automatically 
withdraw from the Corporation as of the first day of the Corporation’s fiscal year in 
which the member failed to pay the annual membership dues, and the member shall not 
be entitled to receive any refund of any amounts paid to the Corporation. 
 
 2.6 Suspension of Members.  The Board of Directors may suspend a member 
from the Corporation for any of the following reasons: 

2.6.1 consistent and continued activity and/or speech by the member or 
representatives of the member that directly contradicts the interests of the Corporation; or 

2.6.2 failure to meet the qualifications stated in this Article Two for 
membership, which does not result in the Member’s automatic withdrawal pursuant to 
Section 2.5 above; or 



 4

2.6.3 failure to attend three consecutive meetings, provided, however, 
that a Member’s vote by proxy at any meeting constitutes attendance; or 

2.6.4 the member’s affiliation with the Corporation will cause the 
Corporation to lose or jeopardizes the Corporation’s exempt status for federal or state tax 
purposes.  

2.6.5 To suspend a member from the Corporation a meeting of Directors 
must take place at least fifteen days after the member subject to suspension receives, by 
registered mail, written notice of the proposed action, the basis therefor, and the date, 
time, and place of the meeting.  The member shall be afforded an opportunity to respond 
to the proposed suspension in person at the meeting.  No Director affiliated with a 
member subject to a suspension action shall be permitted to vote on the suspension.  Such 
suspension shall be for a term as determined by the Board and may be permanent. 

2.6.6 Any member whose membership is permanently suspended by the 
Board of Directors in accordance with Subsection 2.6(d), shall be entitled to a refund of a 
pro rata portion of the annual membership dues such member paid for the Corporation’s 
fiscal year in which such member’s membership is permanently suspended.  Any member 
whose membership is permanently suspended by the Board of Directors for any other 
reason, shall not be entitled to receive any refund of any amounts paid to the Corporation 
 
 2.7 Annual Meetings of Members.  The annual meeting of the Members shall be 
held at the time and place designated by the Board of Directors.  Written or printed notice 
stating the place, day and hour of the meeting shall be delivered to each Member and 
Associate Member at the address for such member on the books of the Corporation, 
either personally, by facsimile, or by mail, by or at the direction of the Chairman or 
Secretary not less than thirty (30) days nor more than sixty (60) days before the date of 
the meeting. 
 
 2.8 Special Meetings of Members.  Special meetings of the Members may be 
called by the Chairman, the Board of Directors, or by ten percent (10%) or more of 
Members.  Written or printed notice stating the place, day, hour and purpose of the 
meeting shall be delivered to each member not less than ten (10) days nor more than sixty 
(60) days before the date of the meeting, either personally, by facsimile, or by mail, by or 
at the direction of the Chairman, Secretary or the Members calling such special meeting. 
 
 2.9 Regular Meetings of the Members.   The Board of Directors may establish a 
schedule for regular meetings of the Members in a location and at such time as the Board 
deems appropriate.  Notice need not be given to members of the time, place or purpose of 
a regular meeting once such schedule has been provided to the members at least ten (10) 
days before the first such meeting. 
 
 2.10 Place and Manner of Meetings.  Meetings of the Members shall be held at 
the principal office of the Corporation, unless some other place is designated in the notice 
of the meeting.  Accurate minutes of any meeting of the Members shall be maintained by 
the Secretary of the Corporation or other officer designated for that purpose. 
 



 5

 2.11   Agendas for Meetings.  Unless otherwise provided by these Bylaws or the 
Articles of Incorporation, neither the business to be transacted at, nor the purpose of, any 
annual or regular meeting of the Members need be specified in the notice or waiver of 
notice of such meeting in order for action to be taken at the meeting. 
 
 2.12 Quorum for Member Meetings / Voting.  The presence of ten percent (10%) 
of the Members present in person shall be a quorum for the transaction of business at all 
meetings; provided, that a Member who has submitted a Ballot pursuant to Section 2.14 
shall be counted as present for purposes of a quorum for the business to which the Ballot 
relates.  The affirmative vote of a majority (as defined in Section 3.11) of the Members 
present in person or by Ballot at any meeting at which there is a quorum shall be the act 
of the Members, unless otherwise provided by law, the Articles of Incorporation, or these 
Bylaws.  Cumulative voting shall not be permitted. 
 
 2.13 Notice of Adjournment.  Notice of the time and place of holding an 
adjourned meeting at which a quorum was present need not be given to absent members 
if the time and place is fixed at the meeting adjourned and it is held within seventy-two 
(72) hours, notice shall be given to all Members (but not Associate Members) not present 
at the time of adjournment.  A quorum must be present at the reconvened meeting in 
order to transact business. 
 
 2.14 Limited Proxies.  Members may vote by proxy only as provided in this 
Section.  Along with the notice of a meeting of Members at which Directors are to be 
elected or any other issue with respect to which the law requires a vote of the Members, 
the individual giving such notice shall include a proxy in the form of a ballot (a “Ballot”) 
listing the individuals who are running for election to the Board for whom the Member is 
entitled to vote and setting forth each such issue.  The Ballot must be written so as to 
require either a “yes” or “no” vote on each issue and must also provide a space where the 
Member can indicate how it wishes to vote on each director position for which the 
Member is entitled to vote.  Each Ballot with respect to an issue must be approved as to 
form by the Board.  A Member may vote by mailing in the completed and signed Ballot 
or in person at the meeting.  To be counted, a Ballot must be received at the address 
indicated on the Ballot at or prior to the time and day specified therein.  Ballots not 
received at the required address by the required time will not be counted at the meeting.  
A Member who submits a Ballot and who then attends the meeting may revoke the Ballot 
and vote in person by so notifying the Secretary of the Corporation in writing prior to the 
start of the applicable meeting.  Unless revoked, a Ballot duly and timely submitted is a 
proxy authorizing and directing the Secretary of the Corporation to vote the Member’s 
vote(s) as stated in the Ballot.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 6

ARTICLE THREE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
 3.1  General powers.  Except as provided by applicable law, in the Corporation’s 
Articles of Incorporation, or in these Bylaws, the business, property and affairs of the 
Corporation shall be managed and directed, and all corporate powers of the Corporation 
exercised, by or under the direction of a Board of Directors (the “Board of Directors” or 
the “Board”).  The Board of Directors may make appropriate delegations of authority to 
the officers of the Corporation and may authorize one or more other committees to act on 
its behalf. 
 
 3.2  Number; Classification; Term; Election.   The Board of Directors shall 
consist initially of twelve (12) Directors.  The number of Directors may thereafter be 
increased or decreased by a majority vote of the Board of Directors; provided, however, 
that the number of Directors shall not be less than twelve. 
 
 The Directors named in the Articles of Incorporation will hold office until the first 
annual meeting of the Members and until their successors are elected and qualified.  At 
the first annual meeting of the Members, at least twelve (12) Directors will be elected, 
who will be divided into two classes.  There will be six (6) (or in the event more than 
twelve directors are elected, then one-half of the directors elected) Directors in the first 
class, who will hold office until the first annual meeting of the Members after their 
election and until their successors are elected and qualified; there will be six (6) (or in the 
event more than twelve directors are elected, then one-half of the directors elected) 
Directors in the second class, who will hold office until the second annual meeting of the 
Members after their election and until their successors are elected and qualified; at each 
annual meeting of the Members thereafter, Directors will be elected for the class whose 
term of office expires at that meeting, and they will hold office until the second annual 
meeting of the Members after their election and until their successors are elected and 
qualified. 
 
 3.3  Vacancies.  If a vacancy on the Board of Directors occurs because of 
resignation, removal, death or for any reason, the vacancy shall be filled by a majority 
vote of the remaining Directors of the applicable component. 
 
 3.4  Qualifications.  Any person that is an appointed representative of a Member 
may serve on the Board.  However, no more than one Board member from each county 
may serve on the Board at any one time.  
 
 3.5  Resignations.  Any Director may resign at any time by giving written notice 
to the Chairman of the Board of Directors.  Such resignation shall take effect when the 
notice is received, unless the notice specifies a future date.  Unless otherwise specified 
therein, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective. 
 



 7

 3.6  Removals.  The Board of Directors may, by a supermajority vote (as defined 
in Article Seven herein) of Directors present at a regular or special meeting called for this 
purpose, suspend or remove a Director for any of the following reasons: 
 
 (a) breach of the Director’s fiduciary duty to the Corporation; 
 

(b) violation of the Corporation’s Articles of Incorporation, these Bylaws, or a 
policy duly adopted by the Board of Directors; 

 
(c)   conviction of a felony or misdemeanor (other than a traffic violation not 

involving substance or alcohol abuse); 
 
(d) consistent, continued activity and/or speech that directly contradicts the 

interests of the Corporation; 
 
(e) failure to meet the qualifications identified in Section 3.4; and/or 
 
(f) failure to attend (unexcused) three consecutive Board meetings. 
 

The meeting must take place at least fifteen (15) days after the Director subject to 
removal or suspension receives, by registered mail, written notice of the proposed action, 
including the identity of the date, time, and place of the meeting.  The Director shall be 
afforded an opportunity to present a defense to the charges in person. 
 
 3.7  Place and Manner of Meetings.  Meetings of the Board of Directors shall be 
held at the principal office of the Corporation, unless some other place is designated in 
the notice of the meeting.  Accurate minutes of any meeting of the Board or any 
committee thereof shall be maintained by the Secretary or other officer designated for 
that purpose. 
 
 3.8  Regular Meetings.  An annual meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held 
at the time and place designated by the Board.  The Board may also establish regular 
quarterly meetings.  Annual meetings and any quarterly meetings established by the 
Board are sometimes referenced to herein as regular meetings.  Such annual meetings and 
if applicable, quarterly meetings, shall be held upon at least ten (10) days advance written 
notice to the Directors and members of the Advisory Council. 
 
 3.9  Special Meetings.  Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called 
by the Chairman of the Board or a majority of the Directors.  Notice of the date, time, 
purpose, and place of each special meeting of the Board shall be given to each Director 
and, unless the meeting is closed to them, each member of the Advisory Council at least 
twenty-four (24) hours before the time of the meeting.  Notice of a special meeting may 
be by telephone followed by written confirmation. 
 
 3.10  Agenda for Meetings.  Unless otherwise provided by these Bylaws or the 
Corporation's Articles of Incorporation, neither the business to be transacted at, nor the 



 8

purpose of, any regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors or any committee of 
the Board need be specified in the notice or waiver of notice of such meeting in order for 
action to be taken at the meeting. 
 
 3.11 Quorum for Meeting / Voting.  The presence of at least one-third (1/3) of 
the number of persons then serving as Directors, present in person or by telephone, shall 
be a quorum for the transaction of business at all meetings.  Presence by proxy does not 
constitute presence for establishing a quorum.  Each Director shall have one vote on all 
matters coming before the Board, subject to Section 3.15.  Except as otherwise provided 
in these Bylaws, all matters voted upon by the Directors shall be decided by majority 
vote.  As used herein the term “majority vote” or “majority” shall mean more than one-
half (1/2) of the votes eligible to be cast in person or by proxy with respect to the 
particular matter.  The affirmative vote of a majority of the Directors present in person or 
by proxy at any meeting at which there is a quorum, shall be the act of the Board of 
Directors, unless otherwise provided by law, the Articles of Incorporation, or these 
Bylaws. 
 
 3.12 Limited Proxies.  A Director may vote by proxy at any meeting of the 
Board of Directors or of any committee of the Board of Directors only as provided in this 
Section 3.12.  A Director may designate in writing either another representative of the 
same Member which said Director represents or another Director as authorized to 
participate and vote on behalf of the Director making such designation in any meeting of 
the Board of Directors or of any committee of the Board which is specified in such 
designation.  Such designation must be delivered to the person presiding over such 
meeting prior to the participation by the designee in the meeting.  A facsimile of such 
designation is acceptable.  The designation shall be deemed to be a proxy for the 
purposes and meetings specified therein, and the same shall be revocable at any time in 
writing signed by the Director which issued the same, which writing shall be delivered to 
the Secretary of the Corporation or the presiding officer of the applicable meeting.  Such 
revocation shall not affect votes cast by the designee prior to such delivery of the 
revocation. 
 
 3.13 Notice of Adjournment.  Notice of the time and place of holding an 
adjourned meeting at which a quorum was present need not be given to absent Directors 
if the time and place is fixed at the meeting adjourned and it is held within seventy-two 
(72) hours.  If a meeting is adjourned for more than seventy-two (72) hours, notice shall 
be given to all Directors not present at the time of adjournment.  A quorum must be 
present at the reconvened meeting in order to transact business. 
 
 3.14 Compensation.  Directors shall serve in such capacity without 
compensation on a voluntary basis, but may receive reasonable and appropriate 
reimbursement of expenses from the Corporation, as determined from time to time by the 
Board of Directors. 
 
 3.15 Conflict of Interest.  Whenever a Director has a conflict of interest based 
upon the possibility of personal gain to such Director, such conflict of interest shall be 



 9

declared by the Director and such Director may not vote on those issues where a conflict 
of interest has been declared.  He or she may discuss the nature of his or her conflict of 
interest and otherwise provide information to the Board.  Further, such Director may not 
be counted towards a quorum in respect of a vote on such issue.  This Section of these 
Bylaws is not to be construed so as to prevent, preclude, or otherwise  discourage 
Directors (or entities which they control or which they represent) from transacting 
business with the Corporation on a competitive, arms-length basis, and being awarded 
contracts, business, or other contractual relationships based upon such Directors' ability 
to provide (or that of the controlled or represented entity to provide), the Corporation 
with services or products considering price, quality and service, for what is being 
considered, so long as the express requirements of this Section and the requirements, if 
any, of applicable law are met.  A Director shall not be deemed to have a conflict of 
interest by virtue of benefits that might accrue to the Member that such Director 
represents. 
 

3.16 Advisory Council.   
3.16.1 There shall be an Advisory Council consisting of:  

3.16.1.1 a representative from each Associate Member who, 
in the current fiscal year of the Corporation has paid membership dues in an amount to be 
determined by the Board of Directors in accordance with Section 2.4, and  

3.16.1.2 individuals appointed by the Chairman from time to 
time, as the Chairman determines in the Chairman’s sole and absolute discretion.   

3.16.2 The purpose of the Advisory Council shall be to provide input and 
expertise to the Board of Director on an as needed basis. 

3.16.3 Each member of the Advisory Council, who is a representative of 
an Associate Member, shall serve as a member of the Advisory Council for as long as the 
Associate Member has paid membership dues in an amount to be determined by the 
Board of Directors in accordance with Section 2.4 or until the Associate Member notifies 
the Corporation in writing that the Associate Member has appointed a new representative 
to serve on the Advisory Council, whichever time period is shorter.   

3.16.4 Each member of the Advisory Council who is appointed by the 
Chairman shall serve for a term of one (1) year from the date such member is appointed 
as a member of the Advisory Council.   

3.16.5 The members of the Advisory Council may attend meetings of the 
Board of Directors; provided, however, the Chairman may close special meetings of the 
Board of Directors to the Advisory Council.   

3.16.6 At meetings they are permitted to attend, members of the Advisory 
Council may participate in discussions to the extent permitted by the Chairman, but 
members of the Advisory Council shall not be entitled to vote on any matter coming 
before the Board of Directors and members of the Advisory Council shall not participate 
whatsoever in the management of the Corporation. 
 
 
 
 
 



 10

 
ARTICLE FOUR 

NOTICES 
 
 4.1 Form of Notice.  Whenever under the provisions of these Bylaws, notice is 
required to be given to any member, Director or committee member, and no provision is 
made as to how such notice shall be given, it shall not be construed to mean personal 
notice, but any such notice may be given in writing, by mail, postage prepaid, or by 
facsimile transmission or other electronic communication followed by mailed, written 
notice, addressed to such member, Director or committee member at such address as 
appears on the books of the Corporation.  Any notice required or permitted to be given by 
mail shall be deemed to be given at the time the notice is deposited, postage prepaid, in 
the United States mail; provided, however, that facsimile or other electronically 
transmitted notice is deemed to be given upon successful transmission of the facsimile or 
the electronic communication.  With respect to meetings of the Board of Directors or 
committees of the Board, telephonic notice followed by mailed written notice is 
sufficient, and such notice shall be deemed given at the time it is communicated by 
telephone. 
 
 4.2 Waiver.  Whenever any notice is required to be given to a member, 
Director or committee member under the provisions of the Texas Non-Profit Corporation 
Act, the Corporation's Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws, a waiver thereof in 
writing signed by the person or persons entitled to such notice, whether before or after the 
time stated therein, shall be equivalent to the giving of such notice.  Attendance of a 
member, Director or committee member at any meeting shall constitute a waiver of 
notice of such meeting, except where a member, Director or committee member attends a 
meeting for the express purpose of objection to the transaction of any business on the 
ground that the meeting is not lawfully called or convened. 
 

ARTICLE FIVE 
OFFICERS 

 
 5.1 Number, Appointment and Tenure, Resignation, and Removal. 
 

(a) Number and Appointment.  The Officers of this Corporation shall 
be a Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Board, a President, a Secretary, a Treasurer, 
and such other officers as may be designated and elected by the Board of Directors from 
time to time.  Two or more offices may be held by the same person, except that the office 
of the President and Secretary may not be held by the same person.  The Chairman and 
Vice-Chairman shall be Directors.  No other officers need be Directors. 

 
(b) Term.  At each annual meeting of the Board of Directors, the 

Board of Directors shall elect the officers for a one year term; provided that each officer 
so elected shall continue to hold such office until the earlier of the date that his or her 
successor shall have been duly elected and qualified, or until the date such officer resigns 
or is removed. 



 11

 
(c) Resignation.  Any officer may resign at any time by giving written 

notice thereof to the Chairman or Secretary of the Corporation.  Unless otherwise 
specified in the notice, the resignation shall take effect upon receipt thereof, and the 
acceptance of the resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective. 

 
(d) Removal.  Any officer may be removed, either with or without 

cause, by a majority vote of the entire Board of Directors. 
 

 5.2 Attendance at Meetings.  The Chairman, and in his or her absence the 
Vice-Chairman, shall call meetings of the Board of Directors to order, and conduct such 
meetings, and the Secretary of the Corporation shall act as Secretary of all such meetings, 
but in the absence of the Secretary, the Chairman or Vice-Chairman, as the case may be, 
may appoint any person present to act as Secretary of the meeting. 
 
 5.3 Duties.  The principal duties of the several officers are as follows: 
 

5.3.1 Chairman of the Board.  The Chairman shall preside at all 
meetings of the Board of Directors and shall perform such other duties as may be 
assigned to him or her by the Board of Directors. 

 
5.3.2 Vice-Chairman of the Board.  The Vice-Chairman shall discharge 

the duties of the Chairman in the event of the Chairman's absence or disability for any 
cause whatsoever.  If for whatever reason, the Vice-Chairman is unable to fulfill his 
duties, the Chairman may appoint a Board member to discharge any or all of the Vice-
Chairman’s duties. 

 
5.3.3    President.  The President shall be the chief executive officer and 

executive director of the Corporation, and subject to the control of the Board of Directors, 
shall have general charge and supervision of the administration of the activities and 
affairs of the Corporation.  The President shall see that all orders and resolutions of the 
Board of Directors are carried into effect.  The President shall sign and execute all legal 
documents and instruments in the name of the Corporation when authorized to do so by 
the Board of Directors, prepare an annual budget showing expected receipts and 
expenditures for consideration by the Board of Directors, and shall perform such other 
duties as may be prescribed from time to time by the Board of Directors.  The President 
shall also have the power to appoint and remove subordinate employees.  The President 
shall submit to the Board of Directors plans and suggestions for the activities of the 
Corporation, shall direct its general correspondence and shall present recommendations 
in each case to the Board of Directors for decision.  The President shall also submit a 
report of the activities and affairs of the Corporation at each annual meeting of the Board 
and at other times when called upon so to do by the Board. 

 
 5.3.4 Secretary.  The Secretary shall have charge of the records and 

correspondence of the Corporation under the direction of the President, and shall be the 
custodian of the seal of the Corporation, if any.  The Secretary shall attend all meetings of 



 12

the Board of Directors and give such notice of meetings as is required by these Bylaws.  
The Secretary shall take and keep true minutes of all meetings of the Board of Directors.  
The Secretary shall discharge such other duties as shall be prescribed from time to time 
by the President or the Board of Directors.  The Board of Directors may appoint an 
Assistant Secretary to perform the duties of the Secretary during any absence or disability 
of the Secretary. 

 
5.3.5  Treasurer.  The Treasurer shall keep account all moneys, credits 

and property of the Corporation which shall come into the Treasurer's hands and keep a 
full and accurate account of all moneys received and discharged.  Except as otherwise 
ordered by the Board of Directors, the Treasurer shall have the custody of all the funds 
and securities of the Corporation and shall deposit the same in the name and to the credit 
of the Corporation in such banks or depositories as the Board of Directors shall designate.  
The Treasurer shall keep proper books of account and other books showing at all times 
the amount of the funds and other property belonging to the Corporation, all of which 
books shall be open at all times to the inspection of the Board of Directors.  The 
Treasurer shall also submit a report of the accounts and financial condition of the 
Corporation at each annual meeting of the Board of Directors.  The Treasurer shall, under 
the direction of the Board of Directors, disburse all moneys and sign all checks and other 
instruments drawn on or payable out of the funds of the Corporation, unless the Board of 
Directors authorizes other officers, employees or agents of the Corporation to sign checks 
without the counter signature of the Treasurer, which checks, however, may also be 
required by the Board of Directors to be signed by the President.  The Treasurer shall also 
make such transfers and alterations in the securities of the Corporation as may be ordered 
by the Board of Directors.  In general, the Treasurer shall perform all the duties which are 
incident to the office of Treasurer, subject to the control of the Board of Directors, and 
shall perform such additional duties as may be prescribed from time to time by the Board 
of Directors or the President.  The Treasurer shall give bond only if required by the Board 
of Directors.  The Board of Directors may appoint an Assistant Treasurer to perform the 
duties of the Treasurer during any absence or disability of the Treasurer. 

 
 5.4 Vacancies.  A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation, 
removal, disqualification or any other cause shall be filled in the manner prescribed in 
these Bylaws for regular election to that office. 
 

ARTICLE SIX 
COMMITTEES 

 
 6.1 General.  The Board of Directors may designate one or more committees 
as it deems appropriate.  The duties of any such committees shall be as prescribed by the 
Board of Directors.  Each such committee shall consist of two (2) or more persons 
appointed by the Chairman of the Board of Directors.  A committee shall limit its 
activities to the accomplishment of the tasks for which it is designated and shall have no 
power to act except as specifically conferred by action of the Board of Directors.  A 
majority of the members of any such committee that is authorized by the Board of 
Directors to exercise the authority of the Board of Directors, in whole or in part, shall be 



 13

composed of Directors.  The Board of Directors shall appoint a chairman for each 
committee to preside at all meetings of the committee and to perform such other duties as 
may be assigned to him or her by the Board of Directors.  
 
 6.2 Chairman as Member of Committees.  The Chairman of the Board of 
Directors shall serve as an ex-officio and non-voting member of each standing and ad hoc 
committee, except as otherwise specified by the Board of Directors. 
 
 6.3 Quorum and Voting.  A majority of the members of a committee shall 
constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting of such committee and 
the act of a majority of the committee members present at a meeting at which a quorum is 
present shall be the act of the committee. 
 
 6.4 Meetings and Notices.  Meetings of a committee may be called by the 
President or the chairman of the committee.  Each committee shall meet as often as is 
necessary to perform its duties.  Notice may be given at any time and in any manner 
reasonably designed to inform the committee members of the time and place of the 
meetings.  Each committee shall keep minutes of its proceedings. 
 
 6.5 Resignations and Removals.  Any committee member may resign at any 
time by giving notice to the chairman of the committee or the Secretary of the 
Corporation.  Unless otherwise specified in the notice, such resignation shall take effect 
upon receipt thereof, and the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to 
make it effective.  The Board of Directors may remove any committee member at any 
time with or without cause.   
 
 6.6 Vacancies.  A vacancy on a committee shall be filled for the unexpired 
portion of the term of the former occupant in the same manner in which an original 
appointment to such committee is made. 
 

ARTICLE SEVEN 
AMENDMENTS 

 
 The Board of Directors, by a supermajority vote, shall have exclusive authority to 
alter, amend and repeal these Bylaws and to make and adopt new and other Bylaws, and 
the Members shall not be entitled to vote thereon.  As used herein the term 
“supermajority vote” shall mean more than two-thirds (2/3) of the votes eligible to be cast 
in person or by proxy with respect to the particular matter. 
 

ARTICLE EIGHT 
INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS, OFFICERS,  

EMPLOYEES, AND AGENTS 
 

 The Corporation shall indemnify Directors, officers, employees, and agents of the 
Corporation to the fullest extent required by Article 1396-2.22A of the Texas Non-Profit 
Corporation Act, as amended, and may indemnify such persons to the fullest extent 



 14

permitted by Article 1396-2.22A of the Texas Non-Profit Corporation Act as amended, 
subject in each case to restrictions, if any, in the Corporation's Articles of Incorporation.  
The Corporation shall have the power to purchase and maintain at its cost and expense 
insurance on behalf of such persons to the fullest extent permitted by Article 1396-2.22A 
of the Texas Non-Profit Corporation Act, as amended. 
 

ARTICLE NINE 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 
 9.1 Fiscal Year.  The fiscal year of the Corporation shall end on December 31 
of each year, unless otherwise fixed by resolution of the Board of Directors.  At the end 
of each fiscal year a certified audit or review shall be performed regarding all financial 
transactions of the Corporation. 
 
 9.2 Books and Records.  The Corporation shall keep correct and complete 
books and records of account and shall also keep minutes of the proceedings of the 
meetings of the Board of Directors and committees. 
 
 9.3 Inspection of Books and Records.  The Corporation's books and records 
shall be open to inspection of the Directors upon reasonable request, and as provided by 
the Texas Non-Profit Corporation Act or other applicable law. 
 
 
 9.4 Annual Budget.  The Board of Directors shall adopt an annual budget after 
considering a proposed budget submitted by the President to the Board of Directors, or if 
so directed by the Board of Directors, by an appointed committee, and shall provide a 
copy of the adopted budget to each Member. 
 
 9.5 Seal.  The Board of Directors may, but need not, adopt a corporate seal to 
be in such form and to be used in such manner as the Board of Directors shall direct. 
 
 9.6 Checks.  All checks or demands for money and notes of the Corporation 
shall be signed by such officer or officers or such other person or persons as the Board of 
Directors may from time to time designate. 
 
 9.7   Contracts.  The Board of Directors may authorize any officer or officers 
or agent or agents of the Corporation to enter into any contract or execute and deliver any 
instrument in the name and on behalf of the Corporation. 
 
 9.8 Deposits.  All funds of the Corporation shall be deposited from time to 
time to the credit of the Corporation in such banks, trust companies, or other depositories 
as the Board of Directors may from time to time select. 
 
 9.9. Telephone Meetings.  The members, Directors and committee members 
may participate in and act at any meeting through use of a conference telephone or other 
communication equipment by means of which all persons participating in the meeting can 



 15

hear each other.  Participation in such meeting by such means shall constitute attendance 
and presence in person at the meeting, except where a person participates for the express 
purpose of objecting to the transaction of any business on the ground that the meeting is 
not lawfully called or convened. 
 
 9.10 Action Without a Meeting.  Any action required or which may be taken at 
a meeting of the Members, Board of Directors or any committee may be taken without a 
meeting, if a consent in writing, setting forth the action to be taken, shall be signed by all 
Members or then serving Directors or committee members, as the case may be.  A 
telegram, telex, cablegram, or similar transmission by a Member, a Director or a 
committee member, or a photographic, photostatic, facsimile, or similar reproduction of a 
writing signed by a Member, a Director or a committee member, shall be regarded as 
signed by the Member, the Director or the committee member for purposes of this 
Section. 
 
 9.11 Prohibition Against Loans.  The Corporation is prohibited from making 
any loan to any Director or officer of the Corporation. 
 
 9.12 Construction.  Whenever the context so requires, the masculine shall 
include the feminine and neuter, and the singular shall include the plural, and conversely.  
If any portion of these Bylaws shall be invalid or inoperative, then, so far as is reasonable 
and possible: (a) the remainder of these bylaws shall be considered valid and operative, 
and (b) effect shall be given to the intent manifested by the portion held invalid and 
inoperative. 
 
 9.13 Headings.  The headings are for organization, convenience and clarity.  In 
interpreting these Bylaws, they shall be subordinated in importance to the other written 
material. 
 
 9.14 Relation to Articles of Incorporation.  These Bylaws are subject to, and 
governed by, the Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation. 
 
 The above and foregoing Bylaws of PORTS-TO-PLAINS TRADE 
CORRIDOR COALITION were unanimously adopted by all of the Directors by 
written consent. 
 

PORTS-TO-PLAINS 
TRADE CORRIDOR COALITION 
 
By:_________________________________ 
     Michael Reeves, President

 
 

Certified  
 

 
Certinfied copy  

      
 



 16

 These are certified bylaws of the Ports-to-Plains Trade Corridor Coalition



S.B.ANo.A1474

AN ACT

relating to the I-27 Advisory Committee.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF TEXAS:

SECTIONA1.AASubchapter H, Chapter 201, Transportation Code,

is amended by adding Section 201.623 to read as follows:

Sec.A201.623.AAI-27 ADVISORY COMMITTEE. (a) In this

section:

(1)AA"Advisory committee" means the I-27 Advisory

Committee established under this section.

(2)AA"Feasibility study" means the study on the

Ports-to-Plains Corridor conducted by the department as required by

Chapter 756 (H.B. 1079), Acts of the 86th Legislature, Regular

Session, 2019.

(3)AA"Ports-to-Plains Corridor" means the highways

designated as the Ports-to-Plains Corridor under Section 225.069.

(b)AAThe I-27 Advisory Committee is established to:

(1)AAprovide the department with information on

concerns and interests along the Ports-to-Plains Corridor; and

(2)AAadvise the department on transportation

improvements impacting the Ports-to-Plains Corridor.

(c)AAThe advisory committee is composed of:

(1)AA10 members, one of whom represents each of the

following counties and is the county judge of the county or an

elected county official or the administrator of the county road

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

1

http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=TN&Value=201.601&Date=5/19/2021
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=TN&Value=201&Date=5/19/2021
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=TN&Value=225.069&Date=5/19/2021


department designated by the county judge of the county:

(A)AADallam County;

(B)AAHoward County;

(C)AALubbock County;

(D)AAMidland County;

(E)AAMoore County;

(F)AAPotter County;

(G)AASherman County;

(H)AATom Green County;

(I)AAVal Verde County; and

(J)AAWebb County;

(2)AAseven members, one of whom represents each of the

following municipalities and is the mayor of the municipality or

the city manager or an assistant city manager designated by the

mayor of the municipality:

(A)AAAmarillo;

(B)AABig Spring;

(C)AADel Rio;

(D)AALaredo;

(E)AALubbock;

(F)AAMidland; and

(G)AASan Angelo;

(3)AAthree members who are economic development

professionals, to be selected based on geographic segments that

were established for the feasibility study;

(4)AAone member who is a business representative from

the agriculture industry;

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

S.B.ANo.A1474

2



(5)AAone member who is a business representative from

the international trade industry; and

(6)AAone member who is a business representative from

the energy industry.

(d)AAThe members of the advisory committee described by

Subsection (c)(2) shall appoint the members of the advisory

committee described by Subsections (c)(3), (4), (5), and (6) by

majority vote.

(e)AAAn advisory committee member serves until the member:

(1)AAceases to hold the underlying position that

qualifies the member for service on the committee; or

(2)AAresigns.

(f)AAA vacancy on the advisory committee is filled:

(1)AAfor a vacancy for a position qualified under

Subsection (c)(1) or (2), by the person holding the elected

position vacated by the former member or another person designated

by the person holding the elected position vacated by the former

member, in accordance with Subsection (c)(1) or (2), as applicable;

and

(2)AAfor a vacancy for a position described by

Subsection (c)(3), (4), (5), or (6), by majority vote of the

advisory committee members described by Subsection (c)(2).

(g)AAThe advisory committee shall elect by majority vote of

the committee:

(1)AAa chair to serve as the committee’s presiding

officer; and

(2)AAa vice-chair to serve as the committee’s presiding

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

S.B.ANo.A1474

3



officer in the absence of the chair.

(h)AAThe advisory committee shall meet at least twice each

state fiscal year and at such other times as requested by the

department or the chair. The advisory committee may meet remotely

or by teleconference as determined by the chair or the department.

(i)AAAn advisory committee member is not entitled to receive

compensation for service on the committee or reimbursement for

expenses incurred in the performance of official duties as a member

of the committee.

(j)AAThe commission may adopt rules to govern the operations

of the committee that are consistent with existing commission rules

and do not conflict with this section.

(k)AAAll advisory committee meetings, whether remote or in

person, must be open to the public.

(l)AAChapter 2110, Government Code, does not apply to the

advisory committee.

SECTIONA2.AA(a) The members of the I-27 Advisory Committee

established under Section 201.623, Transportation Code, as added by

this Act, described by Section 201.623(c)(2), Transportation Code,

as added by this Act, shall make the appointments required by that

section not later than October 1, 2021.

(b)AAThe I-27 Advisory Committee established under Section

201.623, Transportation Code, as added by this Act, shall meet on or

before the 30th day after the completion of appointments under

Subsection (a) of this section.

SECTIONA3.AAThis Act takes effect immediately if it receives

a vote of two-thirds of all the members elected to each house, as

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

S.B.ANo.A1474

4

http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=GV&Value=2110&Date=5/19/2021


provided by Section 39, Article III, Texas Constitution. If this

Act does not receive the vote necessary for immediate effect, this

Act takes effect September 1, 2021.

1

2

3

S.B.ANo.A1474

5

http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=CN&Value=3.39&Date=5/19/2021


S.B. No. 1474

__

erofeHou4ecAdedt of the Senate

______ ___________

/
erLy certify that S.B. No. 1474 passed the Senate on

April 23, 2021, by the following vote: Yeas 31, Nays 0.

____________

Secretar& Senate

I hereby certify that S.B. No. 1474 passed the House on

May 18, 2021, by the following vote: Yeas 121, Nays 16, two

present not voting.

fC1eeHous

Approved:

a -1/
Date

r or

FILED IN THE OFFICE oF THE
SECRETARY OF STATE

OCLOCK

JUN -t 2021



 AI# 10769 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 8. 3. 
05/24/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Board Appointments - City Secretary: Consider appointments to the Transportation Policy Committee
of the Lubbock Metropolitan Planning Organization (LMPO).

Item Summary
City of Lubbock has an open position, to replace former Mayor Dan Pope, on the Transportation Policy
Committee (TPC).This Committee is the decision-making body of the Lubbock Metropolitan Planning
Organization (LMPO). The LMPO, is a federally mandated organization developed to coordinate the
highway, transit, and land use planning process, in order to receive federal funds for highway and transit
improvements. The LMPO is comprised of a Transportation Policy Committee (TPC), Transportation
Advisory Committee (TAC), Transportation Planning Director, LMPO Staff, and a Fiscal Agent. The
LMPO is the organization that brings together the following agencies, through the Transportation Policy
Committee, to make continuing, cooperative, and comprehensive transportation decisions:
 
- City of Lubbock (3 representatives of the City of Lubbock, including at least 2 elected officials,
appointed by the Lubbock City Council.) 

Current representatives are Council Member Steve Massengale, Council Member Sheila Patterson
Harris, and one open position to replace former Mayor Dan Pope. - City of Lubbock City Manager,
Jarrett Atkinson

 - City of Lubbock City Manager, Jarrett Atkinson
- Citibus General Manager 
- City of Wolfforth Mayor
- Lubbock County (1 elected County official – Lubbock County appointed by the County
Commissioners Court, plus the County Judge)
- Texas Department of Transportation, Lubbock District Engineer

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



 AI# 10750 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 8. 4. 
05/24/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - City Council: Take nominations and consider a resolution electing a Mayor Pro Tem.

Item Summary
City Charter, Chapter 1, Article IX, Section 12, requires City Council members to elect a Mayor Pro
Tem from their members after newly elected members have qualified and taken their seats on the City
Council.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

Attachments
Resolution 





 AI# 10734 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 8. 5. 
05/24/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning (District 1): Consider a request for Zone Case 2904-K, a request of Casey
Sherwood for Jackie Mize, for a zone change from Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC) to
Family Apartment District (A-1) at 408 Avenue T, located south of Marsha Sharp Freeway and west of
Avenue T, Overton Addition, Block 34, the south 75 feet of Lots 1-5 less the northwest corner of Lot 5,
and consider an ordinance.

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on May 5, 2022, and recommended approval of the request by a unanimous
vote. 

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Attachments
Ordinance 2904-K 
Staff Report 2904-K 
Documentation 2904-K 







Page 1 of 2 

 

 
Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 

 

Staff Report  Zone Case 2904-K 
City Council Meeting  May 24, 2022 

 
Applicant Casey Sherwood 

 

Property Owner  Jackie Mize 

 

Council District   1 

 

Recommendations   

 Staff recommends Approval. 

 

Prior Board or Council Action 

 March 13, 1941: This property was zoned Light Manufacturing District (M-1) through Ordinance No. 661. 

 March 22, 2001; Zone Case 2904: This property was rezoned from Light Manufacturing District (M-1) to 

Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC) through Ordinance No. 2001-O0017. 

 May 5, 2022; Zone Case 2904-K: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a zone 

change from Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC) to Family Apartment District (A-1) by a vote 

of 6-0-0. 

 

Notification Summary   

 Notifications Sent: 6 

 Received In Favor: 0 

 Received In Opposition: 0 

 

Site Conditions and History 

This property was previously developed with a storage unit. The property is now vacant. 

 

Adjacent Property Development  

This property is surrounded by vacant land to the north, a water bottling company to the west, and a commercial 

servicing building to the east, all zoned Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC), and by an apartment 

complex zoned High-Rise Apartment District (A-3) to the south. 

 

Zoning Request and Analysis 

Item Summary 

The subject property is located at 408 Avenue T, located south of Marsha Sharp Freeway and west of Avenue T, 

Overton Addition, Block 34, the south 75 feet of Lots 1-5 less the northwest corner of Lot 5. The applicant is 

requesting a zone change from Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC) to Family Apartment District (A-1). 

Current zoning:  Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC) 

 

Requested zoning:  Family Apartment District (A-1) 

 

Intent Statements 

The intent of the current IHC zoning is “to provide for quality commercial office, retail and wholesale uses which 

serve a city-wide or regional area. Such uses require careful consideration when adjacent to residential areas.” 

 

The intent of the proposed A-1 zoning is “to promote medium-density, multiple-occupancy development. The 

regulations are designed to promote family-oriented development which provides the occupants with the proper 

environmental quality, and compatibility with lower-density development. The purpose of this district is not to 



Page 2 of 2 

 

isolate multi-family units, but to encourage compatible residential land uses through effective planning and 

urban design.” 

 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 

The property is located south of Marsha Sharp Freeway, which is designated as a Freeway and west of Avenue T, 

which is designated as a Local Street by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Freeways are intended to move 

high volumes of automobile traffic at relatively high speeds over long distances. 

 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 

existing development. It is appropriate adjacent to other apartment districts. 

 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map  
The Future Land Use Map designates the subject property for mixed uses. The request for A-1 zoning is consistent 

with this designation. 

 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zone change request is in conformance with the Zoning Ordinance and will be appropriate at the 

proposed location. 

 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property is suitable for the proposed zoning and will not require additional public improvements to support 

the intensity of the proposed use. 

 

Attachments 

A. Case Information 

B. Thoroughfare Plan Map 

C. Aerial Map 

D. Zoning Map 

E. Future Land Use Map 

F. Photos 

G. Application and Supporting Documentation 

 

Staff Contacts 

Aslyn Henry    Kristen Sager 

Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 

Planning Department   Planning Department 

806-775-2021    806-775-2109 

ahenry@mylubbock.us     ksager@mylubbock.us  

  

 

mailto:ahenry@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 2904-K 

 

Allowable Uses:    Family Apartment District (A-1) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has point of access from Avenue T.  

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Avenue T, 
Local Street  

R.O.W. 50 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 50 feet, two-
lane, undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments.  

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

 

5.1 District 1 

Case 2904-K: Casey Sherwood for Jackie Mize 

Request for a zone change from Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC) to Family 

Apartment District (A-1) at: 

 408 Avenue T, located south of Marsha Sharp Freeway and west of Avenue T, 

Overton Addition, Block 34, the south 75 feet of Lots 1-5 less the northwest corner of 

Lot 5.  

PLANNER ASLYN HENRY stated there were six (6) notifications sent out. There has been zero 

returned. Staff shared the location of the property including pictures and maps and discussed the 

surrounding property. Staff recommends approval of this request. 

APPLICANT CASEY SHERWOOD 4801 6th Street stated he is under contract to purchase the 

property with the contingency that the property is rezoned to A-1. He can fit eight (8) units on this 

property within A-1 zoning regulations. 

No one spoke in favor or in opposition to the request. 

 

In the matter of Zone Case 2904-K a motion was made by TANNER NOBLE and seconded by ABEL 

HERNANDEZ to approve the request and the Commission members voted 6 (in favor) to 0 (in 

opposition) to approve the motion. Item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 
 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001064










2904-K

West View—Subject Property. East View.

South View. North View.





private drive

yard

dwelling unit

cedar elms

150’ fire lane

4 0 8  AV E T  S I T E  P L A N

250’

215’

17’ 75’

60’

35’30’30’30’30’30’30’35’

17’

25’ 20’
150’

10’

8’

18’

32’32’32’32’32’32’32’32’

18’12’12’18’18’12’12’18’18’12’18’18’ 12’



4 0 8  AV E T  F L O O R P L A N 1/8 = 1’0’’ scale

S E C O N D L E V E L

G R O U N D L E V E L



4 0 8  AV E T  L A N D S C A P E 1/8 = 1’0’’ scale

FRONT YARD

CONCRETE DRIVE PATH

PERMEABLE PAVERS FOR GRASS

LANDSCAPED SIDE YARD

PRIVATE DRIVE

LANDSCAPED SIDE YARD

BACK YARD

FENCED IN YARD

REAR ENTRY APROACH

18’



4 0 8  AV E T  E L E VAT I O N I D E A  



4 0 8  AV E T  I N T E R I O R I D E A  





 AI# 10735 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 8. 6. 
05/24/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning (District 1): Consider a request for Zone Case 3145-I, a request of Deaco
Group for Highwell Real Estate, for a zone change from Central Business District, Civic Center (CB-5)
to Commercial District (C-4), at 1711 Marsha Sharp Freeway, Overton Addition, Block 106, Lots 14-15
and the south part of Lot 16, and consider an ordinance.

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on May 5, 2022, and recommended approval of the request by a unanimous
vote. 

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Attachments
Ordinance 3145-I 
Staff Report 3145-I 
Documentation 3145-I 







Page 1 of 2 

 

 
Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 

 

Staff Report  Zone Case 3145-I 
City Council Meeting   May 24, 2022 

 
Applicant  Deaco Group 

 

Property Owner   Highwell Real Estate 

 

Council District   1 

 

Recommendations   

 Staff recommends Approval. 

 

Prior Board or Council Action 

 April 21, 1909; Ordinance V1 P12. This property was annexed as part of the original city limits. 

 March 13, 1941; Original Zoning Ordinance No. 661. This property was zoned Light Manufacturing 
District (J). 

 March 22, 2001; Ordinance No. 2001-O0017; Zone Case 2904. This property was rezoned from Light 
Manufacturing District (M-1) (formerly District (J)) to Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC). 

 January 12, 2012; Ordinance No. 2012-O0014; Zone Case 3145-A. This property was rezoned from IHC to 
Central Business District, Civic Center (CB-5). 

 May 5, 2022; Zone Case 3145-I: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval for a zone 
change from Central Business District, Civic Center (CB-5) to Commercial District (C-4) by a vote of 6-0-0. 

 
Notification Summary   

 Notifications Sent: 6 

 Received In Favor: 0 

 Received In Opposition: 0 

 

Site Conditions and History 

The subject property was annexed in 1909 and a commercial building was developed on the property in 1983. 

 

Adjacent Property Development  

The property to the west is zoned IHC and is developed with a restaurant. The properties to the east and south 

are zoned CB-5 and are developed with restaurants. To the north is Marsha Sharp Freeway.     

 

Zoning Request and Analysis 

Item Summary 

The subject property is addressed as 1711 Marsha Sharp Freeway, and is located south of Marsha Sharp Freeway 

and east of Avenue R, Overton Addition, Block 106, Lots 14-15 and south part of Lot 16. The applicant requests 

a zone change from CB-5 to C-4 for a drive thru coffee restaurant.  

 

Current zoning:  Central Business District, Civic Center (CB-5)   

 

Requested zoning:  Commercial District (C-4) 

 

Intent Statements 

The intent of the current CB-5 zoning is, “… to provide realistic, modern standards for new development and 

encourage renewal and revitalization of existing development. The review process hereby established promotes 

this purpose.” 



Page 2 of 2 

 

 

The intent of the proposed C-4 zoning is, “… to provide for heavy retail and wholesale commercial uses which 

serve a city-wide or regional area. Such districts should have frontage on regional thoroughfares such as state 

or federal highways. Because of the heavy commercial nature of the permitted uses, compatibility with 

adjacent residential areas should be carefully considered.” 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 

The proposed rezoning location will be along Marsha Sharp Freeway and Avenue R. Marsha Sharp Freeway is 

designated as a Freeway and Avenue R is designated as a Local Street by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. 

The primary function of a freeway is to connect local areas to other regions, rather than serve local traffic needs. 

Local Streets provide access to smaller, destination-oriented areas, such as neighborhoods, subdivisions or local 

business districts.  

 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed zoning is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the existing 

development.  

 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The Future Land Use Map designates this area for “Mixed Use” land uses. Although the proposed zone change to 

C-4 is not consistent with this designation, it would conform to the principles of the 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

and it would be appropriate next to the already established IHC zoning to the west and General Retail District 

(C-3) to the south.  

 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zoning request is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate for this area.  

 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property is suitable for the proposed use and will not need additional public improvements to support the 

intensity of uses described in C-4 zoning district. 

 

 

Attachments 

A. Case Information      

B. Thoroughfare Plan Map  

C. Aerial Map 

D.  Zoning Map 

E.  Future Land Use Map 

F.  Photos 

G.  Application and supporting documentation 

 

Staff Contacts 

Ashley Padilla    Kristen Sager 

Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 

Planning Department   Planning Department 

806-775-2107    806-775-2109 

ashleypadilla@mylubbock.us    ksager@mylubbock.us 

 

mailto:ashleypadilla@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3145-I 

 

Allowable Uses:    Commercial District (C-4) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has point of access from Marsha Sharp Freeway and 

Avenue R.   

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Marsha Sharp 
Freeway, 

Freeway, Completed  

R.O.W. 300 feet, ten-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 300 feet, ten-
lane, undivided, paved 

Avenue R,  
Local Street, 
Completed 

R.O.W. 53 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 53 feet, two-
lane, undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments.  

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

5.2 District 1 

 Case 3145-I: Deaco Group for Highwell Real Estate 

Request for a zone change from Central Business District, Civic Center (CB-5) to 

Commercial District (C-4), at: 

• 1711 Marsha Sharp Freeway, Overton Addition, Block 106, Lots 14-15 

and the south part of Lot 16, located south of Marsha Sharp Freeway west 

of Avenue Q. 

PLANNER ASHLEY PADILLA stated there were six (6) notifications sent out and zero returned. Staff 

shared the location of the property including pictures and maps and discussed the surrounding property. 

Staff recommends approval of this request. 

 

APPLICANT REPRESENTATIVE KENNAN SPURGEON 402 Burl Moore Road, Ennis, TX, stated 

they are requesting C-4 zoning, because the applicant does not want to provide indoor seating at all.  

 

No one spoke in favor or in opposition to the request. 

In the matter of Zone Case 3145-I a motion was made by JAMES BELL and seconded by                                       

TANNER NOBLE to approve the request and the Commission members voted 6 (in favor) to 0 (in 

opposition) to approve the motion. Item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001334










3145-I 

 

Subject property. View to the south. 

 

  

View to the east. 

View to the north. 

 

View to the west. 





EXIT
LANE

MARSHA SHARP FWY
A

V
E

N
U

E
 R

EXISTING DRIVEWAY  TO REMAIN

EXISTING DRIVEWAY

TO REMAIN

A
L
L
E

Y

DUTCH BROS COFFEE
950 S.F.

24.1'

12.0'

5.0'

12.0'R
3
0
.0

'

R15.0'

9.0'

PROPOSED DUMPSTER

43' BUILDING SETBACK

43
' B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 S

E
T

B
A

C
K

 LOT SIZE 20,452 SF

0.47 AC

N88°17'47"W  147.50'

S
0
1
°4

2
'1

3
"W

  
1
4
0
.2

7
'

S88°09'37"E  86.36'

S84°20'57"E  40.74'

N
42

°4
1'
53

"E
  3

1.
25

'

N
0
1
°4

2
'1

3
"E

  
1
1
9
.7

0
'

11.0'11.0'

18.0' 4.5' 12.0' 19.0' 6.0' 12.0' 10.0'

R10.0'
R10.0'

R20.0'

R
20.0'

R20.0'

R
20.0'

R20.0'

R
3
0
.0

'

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

CHECKED BY:

PROJECT NO.

DATE:

O
:\

M
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
\C

A
D

 L
o

g
o

s
 2

0
1

9
\C

A
D

 L
o

g
o

 2
_

T
it
le

b
lo

c
k
 w

it
h

 E
T

 L
o

g
o

.J
P

G

A
v
e
n
u
e
 R

 &
 M

a
rs

h
a
 S

h
a
rp

 F
re

e
w

a
y

L
u
b
b
o
c
k
, 
T

X

C
o
n
c
e
p
tu

a
l 
S

it
e
 P

la
n

JW

JW

CW

2021105

3/15/2022

1 1

0

GRAPHIC SCALE
2010-10

1" = 10'

(IN FEET)

Disclaimer:  This site plan is for conceptual design purposes only.

It is preliminary in nature and subject to change. It is subject to

governmental codes and civil engineering requirements as will be

dictated by the governing city or municipality. All dimensions, site

boundary and area calculations are approximate.  On the ground

survey information has not been provided.





Lubbock Planning Department 
PO Box 2000 / 1314 Avenue K 

Lubbock, TX 79457 
APPLICATION FOR ZONING CHANGE 

 
    Project Information 

     Location or Address:__________________________________________________________________________ 

     Lots/Tracts:_________________________________________________________________________________ 

Survey & Abstract:___________________________________________________________________________ 

Metes and Bounds Attached:     Yes     �      No     � Total Acreage of Request:_______________________ 

Existing Land Use:___________________________ Existing Zoning:_______________________________ 

Requested Zoning:___________________________________________________________________________ 

If property is not subdivided, will a preliminary plat be submitted?   Yes     �       No     � 

    Representative/Agent Information (if different from owner) 

 Firm Name:________________________________________________________________________________ 

 Name:____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 Address:____________________________________  City:__________________________  State:__________ 

ZIP Code:_________________ Telephone:______________________ Email:___________________________ 

Applicant’s Signature:________________________________________________________________________ 

Date:________________________________ Printed Name:_______________________________________ 

    Owner Information 

 Firm Name:________________________________________________________________________________ 

 Owner:___________________________________________________________________________________ 

 Address:____________________________________  City:__________________________  State:__________ 

ZIP Code:_________________ Telephone:______________________ Email:___________________________ 

Property Owner’s Signature:__________________________________________________________________ 

Date:________________________________ Printed Name:________________________________________ 

    Preparer Information 

Preparer’s Signature:________________________________________________________________________ 

Date:________________________________ Printed Name:________________________________________ 

    For City Use Only 

Zone Case No:__________________________ Planning and Zoning Commission Date: __________________ 

Request for zoning change from:____________________________ To:________________________________ 

Lots:___________________________________ Blocks:_____________________________________________ 

Addition:__________________________________________________________________________________ 

If you have any questions pertaining to the zoning process, please contact the City of Lubbock Planning Department 
by phone at (806) 775 - 2108 or by e-mail at cityplanning@mylubbock.us.  

mailto:cityplanning@mylubbock.us


 AI# 10736 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 8. 7. 
05/24/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning (District 1): Consider a request for Zone Case 3286-A, a request of Leslie
Rhodes for Church on the Rock, for a zone change from High-Density Apartment District (A-2) and
Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC) to Commercial District (C-4) with a Specific Use for
prisons, jails, detention facilities, restitution centers, halfway houses for early release programs from
prison, or community-based residential centers certified by the Texas Board of Pardons and Paroles, per
Section 40.03.3103 (b), at 3003 Avenue J, located east of Avenue J and south of 30th Street, Hufstedler
Addition, Block 2, and the west 234 feet of Block 1, and consider an ordinance.

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends denial of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on May 5, 2022, and recommended approval of the request by a unanimous
vote. 

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Attachments
Ordinance 3286-A 
Staff Report 3286-A 
Documentation 3286-A 









Page 1 of 3 

 

 
Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 

 

Staff Report  Zone Case 3286-A 
City Council Meeting  May 24, 2022 

 
Applicant Leslie Rhodes 

 

Property Owner  Church on the Rock 

 

Council District   1 

 

Recommendations   

 Staff recommends DENIAL of this request. 

 

Prior Board or Council Action 

 April 21, 1909: Ordinance V1 P12. This property was annexed as part of the original city limits. 

 March 13, 1941: Original Zoning Ordinance No. 661. This property was zoned Industrial District (J). 

 May 22, 1952: Ordinance No. 1217; Zone Case 350. A portion of this property was rezoned from Industrial 

District (J) to Light Manufacturing District (J) 

 April 6, 1955: Ordinance No. 1695; This property was rezoned from Industrial District (J) to Commercial 

District (C-4).  

 August 14, 1986: Ordinance No. 8947; Zone Case 2565. This property was rezoned from Commercial 

District (C-4) to Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC). 

 June 9, 2016: Ordinance No. 2016-O0092; Zone Case 3286. A portion of this property was rezoned from 

Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC) to High-Density Apartment District (A-2). 

 May 5, 2022: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a zone change from High 

Density Apartment District (A-2) and Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC) to Commercial District 

(C-4) with a Specific Use for prisons, jails, detention facilities, restitution centers, halfway houses for early 

release programs from prison, or community based residential centers certified by the Texas Board of 

Pardons and Paroles with a vote of 6-0-0.  
 

Notification Summary   

 Notifications Sent: 15 

 Received In Favor: 1 

 Received In Opposition: 0 

 

Site Conditions and History 

This site is currently developed with The New Legacy Home for Women which was built in 2016.  

 

Adjacent Property Development  

Properties to the north are developed with a mixture of industrial uses. To the east is Interstate 27, to the west 

is a church, and to the south there is a mixture of single-family homes and industrial uses. All of the surrounding 

properties are zoned IHC. 

 

Zoning Request and Analysis 

Item Summary 

The subject property is addressed as 3003 Avenue J, located east of Avenue J and south of 30th Street. The 

applicant requests a zone change from High Density Apartment District (A-2) and Interstate Highway Commercial 

District (IHC) to Commercial District (C-4) with a Specific Use for prisons, jails, detention facilities, restitution 

centers, halfway houses for early release programs from prison, or community based residential centers certified 

by the Texas Board of Pardons and Paroles. The applicant would continue the current use of the New Legacy 



Page 2 of 3 

 

home for women which is a structured, 15 month residential program that is meant to give its residents the tools 

to lead better lives. The applicant wants to be able to house more than one resident on parole which would 

require the requested specific use. 

 

Current zoning:  High Density Apartment District (A-2) & Interstate Highway Commercial (IHC) 

 

Requested zoning:  Commercial District (C-4) with a Specific Use for prisons, jails, detention 

facilities, restitution centers, halfway houses for early release programs from 

prison, or community based residential centers certified by the Texas Board 

of Pardons and Paroles 

 

Intent Statements 

The intent of the current IHC zoning is, “… to provide for quality commercial office, retail and wholesale uses 

which serve a city-wide or regional area. Such uses require careful consideration when adjacent to residential 

areas.” 

 

The intent of the current A-2 zoning is, “… to promote high-density multi-family developments and compatible 

land uses in harmony with lower-density uses. The regulations are designed to provide the occupants with safe 

and convenient housing within an aesthetically pleasing environment in proper relationship to adjacent land 

uses.” 

 

The intent of the requested C-4 zoning is, “… to provide for heavy retail and wholesale commercial uses which 

serve a city-wide or regional area. Such districts should have frontage on regional thoroughfares such as state or 

federal highways. Because of the heavy commercial nature of the permitted uses, compatibility with adjacent 

residential areas should be carefully considered.” 

 

The intent of the requested Specific Use zoning is, “… to provide for design and land use flexibility in the various 

districts. This district provides for variations in the land use standards within the [zoning] ordinance, provided 

the intent, principles, and innovations of modern urban planning and design are used.” 

 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 

The proposed zone change location is along Texas Avenue, which is designated as a Collector, as well as Avenue 

J, 30th Street, and 31st Street, which are designated as Local Streets by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. 

Collectors are designed for medium volumes of vehicles operating at lower speeds. Local Streets provide access 

to smaller, destination-oriented areas, such as neighborhoods, subdivisions or local business districts. 
 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed specific use is not compatible with the surrounding area as there are single-family homes 

immediately adjacent to the subject property. These homes are zoned Interstate Highway Commercial District 

(IHC) and are non-conforming. Many of these homes were built between the 1930’s and 1950’s. It is important to 

consider how all of the uses allowed by the requested specific use would fit into the area. 

 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map  
The Future Land Use Map designates the subject property for Commercial land uses. This zone change would 

bring the property into conformance with the Future Land Use Plan. The request is in conformance. 

 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zone change is in conformance with the zoning ordinance. However, not all of the requested 

Specific Uses would be appropriate in this location due to the proximity to residential uses. 

 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property may not be suitable for all of the uses allowed in the requested Specific Use due to the proximity 

to residential uses.  

 

 



Page 3 of 3 

 

 

Attachments 

A. Case Information  

B. Thoroughfare Map 

C. Notification Map       

D. Aerial Map 

E.  Zoning Map 

F.  Future Land Use Map 

G.  Photos 

H. Application and supporting documentation 

I.  Notification Replies 

 

Staff Contacts 

Bailey Shillings    Kristen Sager 

Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 

Planning Department   Planning Department 

806-775-3147    806-775-2109 

bshillings@mylubbock.us  ksager@mylubbock.us 

mailto:bshillings@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 2 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3286-A 

 

Allowable Uses:   Commercial District (C-4)  

Specific Use District  

Transportation:  The proposed development has a point of access from Avenue J, 30th Street, 31st 

Street, and Texas Avenue.  

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Avenue J 
Local Street, Completed 

R.O.W. 50 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved. 

R.O.W. 50 feet, two-
lane, undivided, paved. 

30th Street,                  
Local Street, Completed 

R.O.W. 60 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved. 

R.O.W. 60 feet, two-
lane, undivided, paved. 

31st Street,                   
Local Street, Completed 

R.O.W. 50 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved. 

R.O.W. 50 feet, two-
lane, undivided, paved. 

Texas Avenue       
Collector Street, 

Completed 

R.O.W. 30 feet, one-lane, 
paved. 

R.O.W. 30 feet, one 
lane, paved. 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

5.3 District 1 

 

  Case 3286-A: Leslie Rhodes for Church on the Rock 

 

Request for a zone change from High-Density Apartment District (A-2) and Interstate 

Highway Commercial District (IHC) to Commercial District (C-4) with a Specific Use 

for prisons, jails, detention facilities, restitution centers, halfway houses for early release 

programs from prison, or community-based residential centers certified by the Texas 

Board of Pardons and Paroles, per Section 40.03.3103 (b), at: 

 

• 3003 Avenue J, located east of Avenue J and south of 30th Street, Hufstedler 

Addition, Block 2, the west 234 feet of Block 1. 

 

PLANNER BAILEY SHILLINGS stated there were fifteen (15) notifications sent out. There has been 

one (1) returned in favor. Staff shared the location of the property including pictures and maps and 

discussed the surrounding property. Staff recommends denial of this request. 

 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001395
https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001523


Zone Case 3286-A 
 

Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 2 of 2 
 

BOARD MEMBER TANNER NOBLE asked if all of the specific uses listed had to be allowed, if the 

request was approved. Staff advised that was correct. 

 

CHAIR SAWYER asked staff if the case could be approved and revisited in a year when the UDC is 

approved. ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY KELLI LEISURE advised a zoning decision is permanent 

until another zone case is applied for, so a review period could not be added. 

 

APPLICANT LESLIE RHODES 10807 Richmond Avenue, stated she is a member on the advisory 

board for the New Legacy Home for Women. It is a 15-month rehabilitation program and the request is 

not for a halfway house. The program is selective and intensive. All funding is community based with no 

federal funding and recipients must be local. Although the current city code is broad, the only change is 

to allow more than one parolee.  

 

No one spoke in favor or in opposition to the request. 

 

In the matter of Zone Case 3286-A a motion was made by ABEL HERNANDEZ and seconded by 

BRANDON HARDAWAY to approve the request and the Commission members voted 6 (in favor) to 0 

(in opposition) to approve the motion. Item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

 













3286-A 

 

View North 

 

  

View East, Subject Property 

View South 

 

View West 









































 AI# 10737 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 8. 8. 
05/24/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning (District 3): Consider a request for Zone Case 2418-B, a request of Quorum
Shopping Center, for a zone change from Restricted Local Retail District (C-2A) Specific Use for a
game room to Local Retail District (C-2), at 5102 60th Street, Piedmont Addition, Tract B, and consider
an ordinance.

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on May 5, 2022, and recommended approval of the request by a unanimous
vote. 

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Attachments
Ordinance 2418-B 
Staff Report 2418-B 
Documentation 2418-B 







Page 1 of 2 

 

 
Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 

 

Staff Report  Zone Case 2418-B 
City Council Meeting   May 24, 2022 

 
Applicant  Quorum Shopping Center 

 

Property Owner   Quorum Shopping Center 

 

Council District   3 

 

Recommendations   

 Staff recommends Approval. 

 

Prior Board or Council Action 

 May 28, 1957: This property was annexed and zoned Transition District (T) through Ordinance No. 2200. 

 August 22, 1957: Ordinance No. 2273; Zone Case 0648. This property was rezoned from T to Single-
Family District (R-1). 

 July 12, 1984: Ordinance No. 8628; Zone Case 2481. This property was rezoned from R-1 to Restricted 
Local Retail District (C-2A), Specific Use for a shopping center. 

 April 8, 1993: Ordinance No. 9604; Zone Case 2418-A. This property was rezoned from C-2A Specific Use 
for a shopping center to C-2A Specific Use for a game room.  

 May 5, 2022: Zone Case 2418-B: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval for a 
zone change from Restricted Local Retail District (C-2A) Specific Use for a game room to Local Retail 
District (C-2) by a vote of 6-0-0. 

 
Notification Summary   

 Notifications Sent: 34 

 Received In Favor: 1 

 Received In Opposition: 4 

 

Site Conditions and History 

The subject property was annexed in 1957 and is developed with a shopping center. 

 

Adjacent Property Development  

The properties to the north and south are zoned C-2A and are developed with restaurants. The property to the 

west is zoned General Retail District (C-3) and is developed with the South Plains Mall. The properties to the east 

are zoned Single Family District (R-1) and are developed with residential homes.       

 

Zoning Request and Analysis 

Item Summary 

The subject property is addressed as 5102 60th Street and is located east of Slide Road and north of 60th Street, 

Piedmont Addition, Tract B. The applicant requests a zone change from C-2A to C-2. 

 

Current zoning:  Restricted Local Retail District (C-2A), Specific Use    

 

Requested zoning:  Local Retail District (C-2) 

 

Intent Statements 

The intent of the current C-2A zoning is, “… to provide limited local retail and service commercial uses which 



Page 2 of 2 

 

serve one or several neighborhoods. Such districts may be located on existing shallow commercial centers 

adjacent to thoroughfares.” 

 

The intent of the current Specific Use zoning is, “… to provide for design and land use flexibility in the various 

districts. This district provides for variations in the land use standards within the [zoning] ordinance, provided 

the intent, principles, and innovations of modern urban planning and design are used. The regulations require 

specific site planning on all aspects of proposed development to ensure that any variations of land uses or land 

use standards will be in harmony with the purposes and objectives of the zoning ordinance.” 

 

The intent of the proposed C-2 zoning is, “…to provide limited local retail and service commercial uses which 

serve one of several neighborhoods. Such districts may be located on existing thoroughfares or at the 

intersections of major thoroughfares.” 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 

The proposed rezoning location will be along Slide Road, 60th Street and 59th Street. Slide Road is designated as 

a Principal Arterial, 60th Street is designated as a Collector and 59th Street is designated as a Local Street by the 

Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Arterial streets are continuous routes whose function is to serve high volume 

needs of local traffic and regional traffic. Collectors provide access and movement within residential, 

commercial, and industrial areas. Local Streets provide access to smaller, destination-oriented areas, such as 

neighborhoods, subdivisions or local business districts.  

 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed zoning is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the existing 

development.  

 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The Future Land Use Map designates this area for “Commercial” land uses. The proposed zone change to C-2 is 

consistent with this designation and conforms to the principles of the 2040 Comprehensive Plan. 

 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zoning request is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate for this area.  

 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property is suitable for the proposed request and will not need any additional public improvements to support 

the intensity of uses described in C-2 zoning. 

 

 

Attachments 

A. Case Information      

B. Thoroughfare Plan Map  

C.  Notification Map 

D. Aerial Map 

E.  Zoning Map 

F.  Future Land Use Map 

G.  Photos 

H.  Application and supporting documentation 

I. Notification Responses 

 

Staff Contacts 

Ashley Padilla    Kristen Sager 

Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 

Planning Department   Planning Department 

806-775-2107    806-775-2109 

ashleypadilla@mylubbock.us    ksager@mylubbock.us 

 

mailto:ashleypadilla@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 2 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 2418-B 

 

Allowable Uses:    Local Retail (C-2) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has point of access from Slide Road, 60th Street and 

59th Street.  

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Slide Road, 
Minor Arterial,  

Partially Completed  

R.O.W. 120 feet, three-
lane, undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 100 feet, five-
lane, undivided, paved 

60th Street, 
Collector Street, 

Completed  

R.O.W. 50 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 50 feet, two-
lane, undivided, paved 

59th Street, 
Local Street, 
Completed 

R.O.W. 50 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 50 feet, two-
lane, undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments.  

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

5.5 District 3 

 Case 2418-B: Quorum Shopping Center 

Request for a zone change from Restricted Local Retail District (C-2A) specific use for a 

game room to Local Retail District (C-2), at: 

• 5102 60th Street, Piedmont Addition, Tract B. 

 

PLANNER ASHLEY PADILLA stated there were thirty-four (34) notifications sent out. There have 

been four (4) returned in opposition. Three (3) of the opposition letters were concerned about a game room 

going into the location. Staff shared the location of the property including pictures and maps and discussed 

the surrounding property. Staff recommends approval of this request. 

 

APPLICANT KAE LILES 8502 Norfolk Avenue stated as the property manager, finding tenants to 

move into the property with the C-2A zoning is difficult with the large spaces for rent. Ms. Liles added 

that currently six spaces, of 13, are empty. She is requesting C-2 zoning because it is more inclusive. She 

also stated they have a deal with Cici’s Pizza to not allow tenants serving alcohol to rent out at this location, 

as they are family-oriented. 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001195


Zone Case 2418-B 
 

Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 2 of 2 
 

 

No one else spoke in favor or in opposition to the request. 

In the matter of Zone Case 2418-B a motion was made by JAMES BELL and seconded by TANNER 

NOBLE to approve the request and the Commission members voted 6 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to 

approve the motion. Item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

 

 













2418-B 

 

Subject property. View to the north. 

 

  

View to the east. 

View to the south. 

 

View to the west. 















From: CityPlanning
To: Ashley Padilla
Subject: FW: Game Room on Slide Road
Date: Wednesday, May 4, 2022 8:00:37 PM

-----Original Message-----
From: Glenda Hataway <glendagh24@suddenlink.net>
Sent: Wednesday, May 4, 2022 6:43 PM
To: CityPlanning <cityplanning@mail.ci.lubbock.tx.us>
Subject: Game Room on Slide Road

<p style="margin:0in;margin-bottom:.0001pt;font-size:16px;font-family:"Times New Roman",serif;text-
align:center;">WARNING: This message was sent from outside the City of Lubbock's email system. <p
style="margin:0in;margin-bottom:.0001pt;font-size:16px;font-family:"Times New Roman",serif;text-
align:center;">It could contain harmful attachments or links to harmful web pages.

    My name is Glenda and Jon Hataway
                       5112 59yh Street
                       Lubbock, TX  79414
                       (806)687-5374    cell # (806)790-4194

   I misplaced the letter yall sent to me about a game room going in near CC's Pizza on Slide Road.  There are 9
townhomes behind the wall back of CC's and we are all over the age of 65 and do not need a place that brings loud
noise and sometimes shootings occur in places like that and WE DO NOT NEED ANYTHING LIKE THAT IN
OUR AREA!!!!  I thought Game Rooms were  AGAINST THE LAW???

   I VOTE NO FOR IT TO BE PUT IN THAT SMALL SHOPPING CENTER!

   Thank you,
  Glenda and Jonathan Hataway
   5112 59th Street
   Lubbock, Texas
   (806)6875374 or cell # (806)790-4194

  glendagh24@suddenlink.net

mailto:cityplanning@mail.ci.lubbock.tx.us
mailto:AshleyPadilla@mail.ci.lubbock.tx.us




 AI# 10743 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 8. 9. 
05/24/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning (District 3): Consider a request for Zone Case 1511-L, a request of
Williams and Company Real Estate for Great Minds Enterprises, Inc., for a zone change from Restricted
Local Retail District (C-2A) to Local Retail District (C-2), at 4926 50th Street, located north of 50th
Street and west of Utica Avenue, Kuykendall Heights Addition, Lot 526 and the east 41 feet of Lot 527,
and consider an ordinance.

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on May 5, 2022, and recommended denial of the request by a unanimous
vote. Therefore, a minimum of 6 out of 7 Council votes are required to approve the request. 

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Attachments
Ordinance 1511-L 
Staff Report 1511-L 
Documentation 1511-L 







Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 1511-L 
City Council Meeting May 24th, 2022 

Applicant Williams & Co Real Estate 

Property Owner  Great Minds Enterprises, INC 

Council District  3 

Recommendations 
• Staff recommends Approval.

Prior Board or Council Action 
• April 28, 1955: This property was annexed through Ordinance No. 1683.
• November 22, 1955, Zone Case 540: This property was zoned Single-Family District (R-1) through

Ordinance No. 1796.
• February 1, 1968, Zone Case 1511: This property was rezoned from Single-Family District (R-1) to

Restricted Local Retail District (C-2A) through Ordinance No. 5396.
• May 5, 2022, Zone Case 1511-L: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended denial for a zone

change from Restricted Local Retail District (C-2A) to Local Retail District (C-2) by a vote of 0-6-0.

Notification Summary 

• Notifications Sent: 19
• Received In Favor: 0
• Received In Opposition: 2

Site Conditions and History 
This property was annexed in 1955 and is developed with a restaurant. 

Adjacent Property Development  
This property is surrounded by single-family residences zoned R-1 to the north, a retail business zoned C-2 to the 
east, a thrift store zoned C-3 to the south, and a fast food restaurant zoned C-2A to the west. 

Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is located at 4926 50th Street, located north of 50th Street and west of Utica Avenue, 
Kuykendall Heights Addition, Lots 526 and the east 41 feet of Lot 527. The applicant is requesting a zone change 
from Restricted Local Retail District (C-2A) to Local Retail District (C-2). 

Current zoning: 

Requested zoning: 

Restricted Local Retail District (C-2A) 

Local Retail District (C-2) 

Intent Statements 
The intent of the current C-2A zoning is “to provide limited local retail and service commercial uses which serve 
one or several neighborhoods. Such districts may be located on existing shallow commercial centers adjacent to 
thoroughfares.” 

The intent of the proposed C-2 zoning is “to provide limited local retail and service commercial uses which serve 
one of several neighborhoods. Such districts may be located on existing thoroughfares or at the intersections of 
major thoroughfares.” 



Page 2 of 2 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The property is located north of 50th Street, which is designated as a Principal Arterial and west of Utica Avenue, 
which is designated as a Local Street by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Arterials are continuous routes 
whose function is to serve high volume needs of local and regional traffic. 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 
existing development. It is appropriate adjacent to other local retail uses. 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map  
The Future Land Use Map designates the subject property for commercial uses. The request for C-2 zoning is 
consistent with this designation. 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zone change request is in conformance with the Zoning Ordinance and will be appropriate at the 
proposed location. 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed zoning and will not require additional public improvements to support 
the intensity of the proposed use. 

Attachments 
A. Case Information
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map
C. Notification Map
D. Aerial Map
E. Zoning Map
F. Future Land Use Map
G. Photos
H. Application and Supporting Documentation
I. Notification Responses

Staff Contacts 
Aslyn Henry Kristen Sager 
Planner  Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department Planning Department 
806-775-2021 806-775-2109
ahenry@mylubbock.us ksager@mylubbock.us

mailto:ahenry@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 2 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 1511-L 

 

Allowable Uses:    Local Retail District (C-2) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has point of access from 50th Street.  

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

50th Street, 
Principal Arterial  

R.O.W. 110 feet, seven-
lane, undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, seven-
lane, undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments.  

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

5.4 District 3 

   

Case 1511-L: Williams and Co Real Estate for Great Minds Enterprises, Inc. 

 

Request for a zone change from Restricted Local Retail District (C-2A) to Local Retail 

District (C-2), at: 

 

• 4926 50th Street, located north of 50th Street and west of Utica Avenue, 

Kuykendall Heights Addition, Lots 526 and the east 41 feet of  Lot 527. 

 

 

PLANNER ASLYN HENRY stated there were nineteen (19) notifications sent out. There were two (2) 

returned in favor, and one (1) in opposition. The response in opposition stated concerns over safety. 

Staff shared the location of the property including pictures and maps and discussed the surrounding 

property. Staff recommends approval of this request. 

 

APPLICANT REPRESENTATIVE NICK EYHORN 4306 42nd Street stated they are requesting C-2 

zoning because it is less restrictive than C-2A and matches the zoning for the properties around it. The 

property owner did not specify to Mr. Eyhorn what his plans were with the property, just that he planned 

to put it on the market for lease.  

OPPOSITION PASTOR DAVID WILSON 4813 116th Street stated it’s his opinion that the rezoning 

request is for a smoke shop, since the applicant owns others. Specifically, he is concerned about the 

proximity to and temptation of a smoke shop for students at Southcrest Christian School and Stewart 

Elementary. While not within the 200-foot boundary, you can see the property from Southcrest School 

grounds. 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001195


Zone Case 1511-L 
 

Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 2 of 2 
 

OPPOSITION COURTNEY WICKS 4918 50th Street, with J. Hoffman’s stated the business owners on 

west 50th worked hard on their nice façade and she is worried that a smoke shop would ruin the aesthetic. 

Specifically, she was told it would have black splatter paint similar to other businesses owned by the 

applicant and she does not think it would be appropriate for the location. 

OPPOSITION COUNCILMAN JEFF GRIFFITH 4522 22nd Street clarified for the Commission that 

he is coming off City Council and he is a business owner that would be affected by this zone change. Since 

he is at the end of his term, the City Attorney advised he could speak. Councilman Griffith is not voting 

on this case moving forward. He expressed concerns about the value of west 50th depreciating as well as 

the obvious use as a smoke shop within such close proximity to schools. Councilman Griffith stated that 

the difference in zoning restrictions of C-2A to the requested C-2 zoning only makes sense if the applicant 

wants to place a smoke shop at that location. 

OPPOSITION JOHN AND VICKY HOFFMAN 4403 101st Street advised they are concerned for the 

aesthetic, schools, and feel a smoke shop will bring the neighborhood down in the future.  

OPPOSITION KYLE JONES 4816 50th Street, with Mountain Hideaway, stated he is concerned that 

50th Street would lose appeal, much like 34th Street has, if the zoning restrictions are changed.  

No one spoke in favor of the request. 

In the matter of Zone Case 1511-L a motion was made by JAMES BELL and seconded by TANNER 

NOBLE to approve the request and the Commission members voted 0 (in favor) to 6 (in opposition) to 

approve the motion. Item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

 

 













1511-L

North View—Subject Property.

South View. West View.

East View.



Craig Gutow

6360 LBJ Freeway, Suite 200, Dallas, TX75240
4928 50th Street, Lubbock, TX

214-397-0990
craig@gutowco.com

x

1) I sold this property to the current owner, and would never have gone that route had they
told me they were trying to open a smoke shop.   I read the zoning for the building when I
purchased the building and knew this was not an approved use. 
2) I currently own the building next door that is a Taco Bell, and a smoke shop could 
substantially hurt future business.   
3) Most importantly the Taco Bell expires in 2023, and they will not renew with a smoke
shop as their neighbor.   This will most certainly cause my real estate value to go down 
significantly
4) The current owner of this property did not change over the utilites after multiple requests
until just a couple of weeks ago.  In good faith, we kept the utlities on and still have not 
received the back due expenses or even heard from the new owner. 









 AI# 10738 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 8. 10. 
05/24/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning (District 4): Consider a request for Zone Case 1876-A, a request of
Wheelhouse Development for WH LBK Lots, LP, for a zone change from Local Retail District (C-2) to
General Retail District (C-3), at 8101 Indiana Avenue, Melonie Gardens Addition, Tract A, and consider
an ordinance.

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends denial of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on May 5, 2022, and recommended approval of a zone change to General
Retail District (C-3) instead of the requested Commercial District (C-4) by a unanimous vote.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Attachments
Ordinance 1876-A 
Staff Report 1876-A 
Documentation 1876-A 







Page 1 of 2 

 

 
Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 

 

Staff Report  Zone Case 1876-A 
City Council Meeting  May 24, 2022 

 
Applicant  Wheelhouse Development 

 

Property Owner   WH LBK Lots, LP 

 

Council District   4 

 

Recommendations   

 Staff recommends Denial. 

 

Prior Board or Council Action 

 September 11, 1958: This property was annexed and zoned Transition District (T) through Ordinance No. 
2535. 

 June 11, 1959: Ordinance No. 2813; Zone Case 0769. This property was rezoned from T to Single-Family 
District (R-1). 

 July 11, 1968: Ordinance No. 5482; Zone Case 1536. This property was rezoned from R-1 to Single-Family 
District (R-1) Specific Use. 

 March 8, 1973: Ordinance No. 6569; Zone Case 1876. This property was rezoned from (R-1) Specific Use 
to Local Retail District (C-2). 

 May 5, 2022: Zone Case 1876-A: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval for a 
zone change from Local Retail District (C-2) to General Retail District (C-3) by a vote of 6-0-0. 

 
Notification Summary   

 Notifications Sent: 18 

 Received In Favor: 0 

 Received In Opposition: 1 

 

Site Conditions and History 

The subject property was annexed in 1958 and developed with a commercial building in 1973.  

 

Adjacent Property Development  

The properties to the east, south, and west are zoned Local Retail District (C-2). To the east is an office building, 

to the south is a restaurant, and to the west is a shopping center. The property to the north is zoned Two Family 

District (R-2) and is developed with duplexes.  

 

Zoning Request and Analysis 

Item Summary 

The subject property is addressed as 8101 Indiana Avenue and is located east of Indiana Avenue and south of 81st 

Street, Melonie Gardens Addition, Tract A. The applicant requested a zone change from C-2 to C-4 for a drive 

thru coffee restaurant.  

 

Current zoning:  Local Retail District (C-2)   

 

Requested zoning:  Commercial District (C-4)  

*The PZC recommended approval of General Retail District (C-3) 

 



Page 2 of 2 

 

Intent Statements 

The intent of the current C-2 zoning is, “…to provide limited local retail and service commercial uses which 

serve one of several neighborhoods. Such districts may be located on existing thoroughfares or at the 

intersections of major thoroughfares.” 

The intent of the proposed C-3 zoning is, “…to provide for general commercial uses which are medium activity 

centers in terms of generated traffic. Such districts should be adjacent to local or regional thoroughfares such 

as state or federal highways. Because of the commercial nature of the permitted uses, compatibility with 

adjacent residential areas should be considered.” 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 

The proposed rezoning location will be along Indiana Avenue and 81st Street. Indiana Avenue is designated as a 

Principal Arterial and 81st Street is designated as a local street by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Arterial 

streets are continuous routes whose function is to serve high volume needs of local traffic and regional traffic. 

Local streets provide access to smaller, destination-oriented areas, such as neighborhoods, subdivisions or local 

business districts. 

 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed zoning would not be compatible with the surrounding area and will change the character of the 

existing development as there is a residential neighborhood to the north of the subject property.   

 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The Future Land Use Map designates this area for “Commercial” land uses. The proposed zone change to C-3 is 

consistent with this designation, but would not be in conformance to the principles of the 2040 Comprehensive 

Plan. 

 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zoning request is not in conformance with the zoning ordinance and would not be appropriate for 

this area.  

 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property would not be suitable for the zone change request with a neighborhood directly to the north.  

 

 

Attachments 

A. Case Information      

B. Thoroughfare Plan Map  

C.  Notification Map 

D. Aerial Map 

E.  Zoning Map 

F.  Future Land Use Map 

G.  Photos 

H.  Application and supporting documentation 

I. Notification Responses 

 

Staff Contacts 

Ashley Padilla    Kristen Sager 

Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 

Planning Department   Planning Department 

806-775-2107    806-775-2109 

ashleypadilla@mylubbock.us    ksager@mylubbock.us 

 

mailto:ashleypadilla@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A   Page 1 of 2 

Case Information: Zone Case 1876-A 

Allowable Uses:  General Retail District (C-3) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has point of access from Indiana Avenue and 81st 

Street.  

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Indiana Avenue, 
Principal Arterial, 

Completed  

R.O.W. 120 feet, three-
lane, undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 100 feet, five-
lane, undivided, paved 

81st Street,  
Local, Completed 

R.O.W. 56 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 56 feet, two-
lane, undivided, paved 

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments: No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

5.6 District 4 

Case 1876-A: Wheelhouse Development for WH LBK Lots, LP 

Request for a zone change from Local Retail District (C-2) to Commercial District (C-4), 

at: 

• 8101 Indiana Avenue, Melonie Gardens Addition, Tract A.

PLANNER ASHLEY PADILLA stated there were eighteen (18) notifications sent out. There has been 

one (1) returned in opposition. Staff shared the location of the property including pictures and maps and 

discussed the surrounding property. Staff recommends denial of this request. 

APPLICANT REPRESENTATIVE CORY DULIN 6515 68th Street, with AMD Engineering, stated 

that he believes the zone request was a staff recommendation, and added that Sonic was a similar use and 

hard to zone. INTERIM DIRECTOR OF PLANNING KRISTEN SAGER clarified that the zoning of 

C-4 was required for a restaurant that has no indoor seating. Mrs. Sager also stated that staff had multiple

conversations with Wheelhouse Development and encouraged them to add a table and chairs, so they

would not require the C-4 zoning. She also clarified that every Sonic in the city has either C-4 zoning or

C-3 with a conditional use that would have to be approved through the Zoning Board of Adjustment.

OWNER DAX REINITZ of Wheelhouse Development advised he is willing to rezone to C-3 and obtain 

a conditional use through the Zoning Board of Adjustment. He also plans to ask for a variance to the 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001211


Zone Case 1876-A 
 

Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 2 of 2 
 

setbacks from the Zoning Board of Adjustment. If that is granted, the building would be centered, and the 

drive-through would be entered from Indiana on the south side of the building, exiting onto 81st Street.  

No one spoke in favor or in opposition to the request. 

In the matter of Zone Case 1876-A a motion was made to approve (C-3) zoning by TANNER NOBLE 

and seconded by JAMES BELL to approve C-3 zoning instead of the requested C-4 and the Commission 

members voted 6 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the motion. Item will be forwarded to City 

Council for consideration. 

 









K:'"' 
I 

�amibYJ rn"il, I� Ill� 1�6 ill't ';fa 305 

Current Zoning 

;;.. 
13 1� 

r < 

���

�

� 

f-< 

1876-A 

µ,l 343 
79TH ST 

;;.. 
.... 

346 � 
< 

>-< 

Zoning Districts 
0 �"v;" I I 

I 

3J9 31?. Q 315 314 
--

�

� 

TRU 
322 321 320 318 316 323 

I I � " 
I I 

0 Family Apartment � 349 348 347 
' Sihgte Fkmily f-< 

High Density 
' 
' 

326 I 327 I 328 329 330 � 331 332 333 324 ' 325 

< Apartment 
::i::: TR S1A 

80TH ST 
Local Retail 

I 

Local Retail 
I 346 345 344 343 342 351 350 349 348 347 

// 
I 

Specific Use 
I 

I 

General Retail 
I 

-
TR S18 I 

I 
I 

358 359 360 361 3§2 355 356 35l I 

I C-2 to C-3 
353 354 

I 

I 

General Retail 
I 

1
I 

TRS 

Specific Use 81ST ST 

;;.. I 

< 
l�A 

I Single Family 371 370 TR M I < I 
TRC TRD TR E TR F 

- Two Familyz I 

< I 

I .... TR L 
372 Q l:ocal-Retai/ l 

I z 
I .... 

I 373 
I I 

I 

I I I I 

TR H TRG 
I 

TRJ TRI I I l I 

TRK I 

\ 
I I 

TRR � TRV I TRW TRX : TRY 1Rz 
I 

374 
I I I I 

I 
' I 

I I I I 'I I � I I I I 

82ND ST 
N 

Ar-
;;.. 

� 

I 127 

� 

;;.. I 

0 100 200 300 

< 
< I 

Feet
TRK 

128 
< 

____ _?A ____ 11 I 12 

� 
z 6A 

I r - ,---
' 0 I 

�� Cityof

.. -----
< ' 

129 
� 

I 

(f"J I ::i::: I TR M TRN 
I 

Q I f-< TRJ1 : 
130 

Luboock 
2 

� .... 

I 

::i::: I 

TEXAS �7-7 -r� 
131 

w2 
4 9 10' 13 r-

I 

Dall' Ex1,orll'd: April J.022 I 132 -� 





1876-A 

 

Subject property. View to the east. 

 

  

View to the north. 

View to the south. 

 

View to the west. 





 

 

 

 

March 31, 2022 

 

ATTN: Kristen Sager, MPA 

Planning and Zoning Manager 

City of Lubbock Planning Department 

1208 14th St. 

Lubbock, TX 79401 

 

 

Rezoning application for 8101 Indiana Ave 

 

 

Dear Ms. Sager, 

 

We are applying for a zone change from C-2 to C-4 for our property at 8101 Indiana Ave. 

This site was formerly a Schlotzky’s restaurant. Our intent is to demo the old Schlotzky’s 

building and develop a drive-thru coffee concept use on the site (similar to Dutch Bros). 

 

It is our understanding that the proposed drive-thru coffee concept use will be allowed by 

right on this site once the new Unified Development Code (UDC) goes into effect. Our initial 

plan was to wait for the UDC to take effect, but with its adoption being postponed, we’d like 

to move forward with this rezoning application. We trust the Planning and Zoning 

Commission and City Council will support our zone change and allow us to move forward 

with this development, which will bring an excellent coffee / beverage concept to the 

neighborhood and the market. 

 

Included with this letter are: 

 

• Completed and signed application 

• Site survey from 2021 

 

Please let us know if we can help provide anything further. 

 

Thank you, 

 
Garrett Haley 

Project Manager 

D: 806.722.1022 





Lubbock Planning Department 
PO Box 2000 / 1314 Avenue K 

Lubbock, TX 79457 
APPLICATION FOR ZONING CHANGE 

 Project Information 

Location or Address:__________________________________________________________________________ 

Lots/Tracts:_________________________________________________________________________________ 

Survey & Abstract:___________________________________________________________________________ 

Metes and Bounds Attached:     Yes     �      No     � Total Acreage of Request:_______________________ 

Existing Land Use:___________________________ Existing Zoning:_______________________________ 

Requested Zoning:___________________________________________________________________________ 

If property is not subdivided, will a preliminary plat be submitted?   Yes     �       No     � 

    Representative/Agent Information (if different from owner) 

Firm Name:________________________________________________________________________________ 

Name:____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Address:____________________________________  City:__________________________  State:__________ 

ZIP Code:_________________ Telephone:______________________ Email:___________________________ 

Applicant’s Signature:________________________________________________________________________ 

Date:________________________________ Printed Name:_______________________________________ 

 Owner Information 

Firm Name:________________________________________________________________________________ 

Owner:___________________________________________________________________________________ 

Address:____________________________________  City:__________________________  State:__________ 

ZIP Code:_________________ Telephone:______________________ Email:___________________________ 

Property Owner’s Signature:__________________________________________________________________ 

Date:________________________________ Printed Name:________________________________________ 

    Preparer Information 

Preparer’s Signature:________________________________________________________________________ 

Date:________________________________ Printed Name:________________________________________ 

 For City Use Only 

Zone Case No:__________________________ Planning and Zoning Commission Date: __________________ 

Request for zoning change from:____________________________ To:________________________________ 

Lots:___________________________________ Blocks:_____________________________________________ 

Addition:__________________________________________________________________________________ 

If you have any questions pertaining to the zoning process, please contact the City of Lubbock Planning Department 
by phone at (806) 775 - 2108 or by e-mail at cityplanning@mylubbock.us.  

8101 Indiana Ave, Lubbock, TX 79423

Melonie Gardens Tr A

September 2021 Abacus Engineering survey attached

0.301 acres

former Schlotzky's C-2

C-4

Wheelhouse Development

Garrett Haley

6502 Slide Road #200 Lubbock TX

79424 (806) 722-1022 garrett@wheelhousetexas.com

03/30/2022 Garrett Haley 

WH LBK Lots, LP

Brady Collier

6502 Slide Road #200 Lubbock TX

79424 (806) 722-1200 brady@wheelhousetexas.com

03/30/2022 Brady Collier

03/30/2022 Garrett Haley

✔



 AI# 10739 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 8. 11. 
05/24/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning (District 4): Consider a request for Zone Case 3257-N, a request of Hugo
Reed and Associates, Inc. for 1585 Rocket Partners LLC & 1585 Development LLC, for a zone change
from Apartment-Medical District (AM) to Local Retail District (C-2), generally located south of 135th
Street and east of Indiana Avenue, on 6.4 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 1, and
consider an ordinance.

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on May 5, 2022, and recommended approval of the request by a unanimous
vote. 

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Attachments
Ordinance 3257-N 
Staff Report 3257-N 
Documentation 3257-N 













Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 3257-N 
City Council Meeting  May 24, 2022 

Hugo Reed & Associates 

1585 Rocket Partners LLC & 1585 Development LLC 

4 

Applicant 

Property Owner  

Council District  

Recommendations 

• Staff recommends Approval.

Prior Board or Council Action 

• December 18, 2014: The northern portion of this property was annexed through Ordinance No. 2014-
O0148 and zoned Transition District (T).

• July 9, 2015, Zone Case 3257-A: The annexed portion of this property was rezoned from Transition District
(T) to Garden Office District (GO) through Ordinance No. 2015-O0069.

• April 28, 2016: The remaining portion of this property was annexed through Ordinance No. 2016-O0054
and zoned Transition District (T).

• October 13, 2016, Zone Case 3257-B: The remaining portion of the property was rezoned from Transition
District (T) to Garden Office District (GO) through Ordinance No. 2016-O0147.

• November 2, 2017, Zone Case 3257-D: These properties were rezoned from Garden Office District (GO)
to Apartment-Medical District (AM) through Ordinance No. 2017-O0141.

• May 5, 2022, Zone Case 3257-N: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval for a
zone change from Apartment-Medical District (AM) to Local Retail District (C-2) by a vote of 6-0-0.

Notification Summary 

• Notifications Sent: 7
• Received In Favor: 0
• Received In Opposition: 0

Site Conditions and History 
These properties were annexed in 2014 and 2016 and have remained vacant and unsubdivided. 

Adjacent Property Development 
This property is surrounded by vacant land zoned Apartment-Medical District (AM) and Local Retail District (C-2) 
to the north, east, and south; and by an apartment complex zoned High-Density Apartment District (A-2) to the 
west. 

Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is generally located south of 135th Street and east of Indiana Avenue, on 6.4 acres of 
unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 1. The applicant is requesting a zone change from Apartment-Medical 
District (AM) to Local Retail District (C-2). 

Current zoning: Apartment-Medical District (AM) 

Requested zoning: Local Retail District (C-2) 



Page 2 of 2 

Intent Statements 
The intent of the current AM zoning is “to provide for quality medical and related development through proper 
planning and design. The regulations are intended to produce an attractive environment which will ensure the 
compatibility between medical and other uses; encourage and protect future development; provide modern 
facilities for the public; provide proper accessory uses; and promote, stabilize, and enhance the city as a medical 
center. When proposed development in this district is adjacent to any residentially zoned property, the proposed 
development shall be designed to provide for maximum compatibility with the adjacent development.” 

The intent of the proposed C-2 zoning is “to provide limited local retail and service commercial uses which serve 
one of several neighborhoods. Such districts may be located on existing thoroughfares or at the intersections of 
major thoroughfares.” 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The property is located east of Indiana Avenue, which is designated as a Principal Arterial and south of 135th 
Street, which is designated as a Local Street by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Arterials are continuous 
routes whose function is to serve high volume needs of local and regional traffic. 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 
existing development. It is appropriate adjacent to existing local retail districts. 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map  
The Future Land Use Map designates the subject property for commercial and residential low density uses. The 
request for C-2 zoning is consistent with the commercial designation. Though the request for C-2 is not consistent 
with low density residential uses, it is appropriate in the proposed location. 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zone change request is in conformance with the Zoning Ordinance and will be appropriate at the 
proposed location. 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed zoning but may require additional improvements due to the property 
being unplatted. 

Attachments 
A. 
B. 
C. 
D. 
E. 
F. 
G. 

Case Information 
Thoroughfare Plan Map 
Aerial Map 
Zoning Map 
Future Land Use Map 
Photos 
Application and Supporting Documentation 

Staff Contacts 
Aslyn Henry 
Planner  
Planning Department 
806-775-2021  
ahenry@mylubbock.us 

Kristen Sager 
Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department 
806-775-2109 
ksager@mylubbock.us  

mailto:ahenry@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A   Page 1 of 1 

Case Information: Zone Case 3257-N 

Allowable Uses: Local Retail District (C-2)  

Transportation:  The proposed development has a point of access from Indiana Avenue. 

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Indiana Avenue 
Principal Arterial 

R.O.W. 110 feet, seven-
lane, undivided, paved. 

R.O.W. 110 feet, seven-
lane, undivided, paved. 

Engineering Comments: No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments: No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments: No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

5.7 District 4 

Case 3257-N: Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. for 1585 Rocket Partners LLC & 1585      

Development LLC 

Request for a zone change from Apartment-Medical District (AM) to Local Retail 

District (C-2) at: 

• Generally located south of 135th Street and east of Indiana Avenue, on 6.4

acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 1.

PLANNER ASLYN HENRY stated there were seven (7) notifications sent out. There have been zero 

returned.  Staff shared the location of the property including pictures and maps and discussed the 

surrounding property. Staff recommends approval of this request. 

APPLICANT THOMAS PAYNE 15309 FM 1730 stated this request stems from the demand for 

commercial properties on Indiana Avenue. There is a boulevard entrance dividing the land into two tracts, 

and that boulevard is going to be the main entrance from Indiana. This is a demand-driven zone case, not 

a speculative one. 

No one else spoke in favor or in opposition to the request. 

In the matter of Zone Case 3257-N a motion was made by TANNER NOBLE and seconded by ABEL 

HERNANDEZ to approve the request and the Commission members voted 6  (in favor) to 0 (in 

opposition) to approve the motion. Item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001195










3257-N

West View.

South View.

East View—Subject Property.

North View.







 AI# 10740 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 8. 12. 
05/24/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning (District 5): Consider a request for Zone Case 2916-D, a request of
Centerline Engineering & Consulting, LLC for 3R & P Holdings, LLC, for a zone change from
Interstate Highway Industrial District (IHI) to Family Apartment District (A-1), generally located east of
Wausau Avenue and south of 82nd Street, on 9.68 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 26,
and consider an ordinance.

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on May 5, 2022, and recommended approval of the request by a unanimous
vote. 

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Attachments
Ordinance 2916-D 
Staff Report 2916-D 
Documentation 2916-D 











Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 2916-D 
City Council Meeting May 24, 2022 

Applicant Centerline Engineering & Consulting, LLC 

Property Owner 3R & P Holdings, LLC 

Council District 5 

Recommendations 

 Staff recommends APPROVAL of this request.

Prior Board or Council Action 

 January 14, 1999: The property was annexed through Ordinance No. 10117 and zoned Transition District

(T).

 September 13, 2001: Ordinance No. 2001-O0066; Zone Case 2916. This property was rezoned from

Transition District (T) to Interstate Highway Industrial District (IHI)

 May 5, 2022: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a zone change from 
Interstate Highway Industrial District (IHI) to Family Apartment District (A-1) by a vote of 6-0-0.

Notification Summary 

 Notifications Sent: 38

 Received In Favor: 0

 Received In Opposition: 2

Site Conditions and History 

The subject property is addressed as 8805 Wausau Avenue, located east of Wausau Avenue and south of 82nd 

Street. This site is currently undeveloped.  

Adjacent Property Development  

Properties to the north and east are developed with a mixture of commercial and industrial uses including 

warehouses. To the west are single-family homes and to the south is vacant land.  

Zoning Request and Analysis 

Item Summary 

The applicant requests a zone change from Interstate Highway Industrial District (IHI) to Family Apartment 

District (A-1). 

Current zoning: Interstate Highway Industrial District (IHI) 

Requested zoning: Family Apartment District (A-1) 

Intent Statements 

The intent of the current IHI zoning is, “… to provide for planned, quality industrial development within the 

interstate corridor so that persons entering the city along the corridor have a good first impression, and to 

maintain a quality appearance which will stabilize or increase real property values.” 

The intent of the requested A-1 zoning is, “… to promote medium-density, multiple-occupancy development. 

The regulations are designed to promote family-oriented development which provides the occupants with the 

proper environmental quality, and compatibility with lower-density development. The purpose of this district is 



Page 2 of 2 

 

not to isolate multi-family units, but to encourage compatible residential land uses through effective planning 

and urban design.” 

 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 

The proposed zone change location is along Wausau Avenue, which is designated as a Collector by the Master 

Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Collectors are designed for medium volumes of vehicles operating at lower speeds. 

Local Streets provide access to smaller, destination-oriented areas, such as neighborhoods, subdivisions or local 

business districts. 
 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 

existing development. It is appropriate adjacent to other residential uses and will be more appropriate adjacent 

to the existing residential uses than the current IHI Zoning. 

 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map  
This zone change would bring the property out of conformance with the Future Land Use Plan which designates 

the subject property for Commercial land uses. However, it is important to note that there are already residential 

uses existing in this area. 

 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zone change is in conformance with the zoning ordinance. 

 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property is suitable for the proposed zoning. 

 

Attachments 

A. Case Information  

B. Thoroughfare Map 

C. Notification Map       

D. Aerial Map 

E.  Zoning Map 

F.  Future Land Use Map 

G.  Photos 

H. Application and supporting documentation 

I.  Notification Replies 

 

Staff Contacts 

Bailey Shillings    Kristen Sager 

Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 

Planning Department   Planning Department 

806-775-3147    806-775-2109 

bshillings@mylubbock.us  ksager@mylubbock.us 

mailto:bshillings@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 2 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 2916-D 

 

Allowable Uses:    Family Apartment District (A-1)  

Transportation:  The proposed development has a point of access from Wausau Avenue. 

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Wausau Avenue 
Collector, (Future) 

R.O.W. 32 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved. 

R.O.W. 64 feet, three-
lane, undivided, paved. 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

5.9 District 5 

Case 2916-D: Centerline Engineering& Consulting LLC for 3R & P Holdings, LLC 

Request for a zone change from Interstate Highway Industrial District (IHI) to Family 

Apartment District (A-1), at: 

• Generally located east of Wausau Avenue and south of 82nd Street, on 

9.68 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 26. 

PLANNER BAILEY SHILLINGS stated there were thirty-eight (38) notifications sent out. There were 

two (2) returned in opposition and zero (0) returned in favor. Staff shared the location of the property 

including pictures and maps and discussed the surrounding property. Staff recommends approval of this 

request. 

 

APPLICANT JUSTIN CANTWELL CENTERLINE ENGINEERING 8312 Upland Avenue stated 

he was unaware of any opposition. Mr. Cantwell explained a new concept they hope to implement at this 

location. It would be a gated, private rental community of approximately 85 homes that are each 1300-

1500 square feet, with the property being maintained by the developer. He noted the plat had been 

approved earlier in the meeting and it included a street that would also be privately maintained.  

 

BOARD MEMBER TANNER NOBLE asked if there would be amenities offered, and applicant 

responded there would not. 

 

OPPOSITION STEVE SEYMOUR, did not provide an address, stated that he owns the property to the 

east and wants to know what the plans are for the sliver of land that will be left between the subject 

property and his property. He would also like it to be known he is opposed to rentals at that location versus 

just residentially owned lots. 

 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001064


Zone Case 2916-D 
 

Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 2 of 2 
 

APPLICANT JUSTIN CANTWELL advised the southern portion of that L-shaped land was sold.  

 

RAJIV MATAL 2429 34th Street stated the east portion was sold to someone planning to use that land 

for an RV Park. He also stated he is in favor of the use as it will raise property values. 

 

APPLICANT JUSTIN CANTWELL stated the plan is for one tract, not individual lots. The gated 

entrance will probably be a six-foot masonry or wood screening fence on Wausau Avenue. 

 

In the matter of Zone Case 2916-D a motion was made by JAMES BELL and seconded by TANNER 

NOBLE to approve the request and the Commission members voted 6 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to 

approve the motion. Item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

 

 













2916-D 

 

View East, Subject Property. 

 

  

View West. 

View South. 

 

View North. 



Lubbock  Planning  Department

Pa Box 2000  / 1314  Avenue  K

Lubbock,  TX 79457

APPLICATION  FOR ZONING  CHANGE

Project  Information

LocationorAddress:Intersection  or 89th St. and Wausau Ave., East o{ Wausau Ave.

Lots/Tracts: TraC' A
Survey  & Abstract:  Sec. 26, Blk. AK, Abs. 1515, G RR CO Survey

Metes  and Bounds  Attached:  Yes [21 No  €  Total  Acreage  of Request:  9'8  aCreS

Existing  Land Use:  Vacant Existing  zOn;ng:  "IHI"  Intersiaie H!ghWa7 Indusir!al

BequesteBzon;ng:A-lFamailyApartmentDaistr'ict

If property  is not  subdivided,  will  a preliminary  plat  be submitted? Yes (21 No  €

Representative/Agent  Information  (if different  from owner)

Firm  Name:  Centerline Engineering & Consulting LLC.

Name:  Phillip Truong

Address:  8312 Upland Avenue City:  Lubbock State:  TX

ZIP Code:7  9424 Telephone:  (909)-20 'l -49 j0  E mail:  ptruong@centerlineeningeering.net

Date:  3/28/2022 Printed  Name:  Phillip Truong

Owner  Information

Printed  Name:  Phillip Truong

For City  Use Only

Zone  Case No:

Request  for  zoning  change  from:

Lots:

Addition:

Planning  and  Zoning  Commission  Date:

To:

Blocks:

If you have  any questions  pertaining  to  the  zoning  process,  please  contact  the  City  of Lubbock  Planning  Department

by phone at (806)  775  - 2108  or by e-mail at cityplanninz@mylubbock.us.



LUBBOCK COUNTY, TEXAS

BEING A 9.68 Acre Tract of land out of Section
26, Block AK, Abstract 1515, out of the G RR
CO Survey, Lubbock County, Texas, and being
further described by metes and bounds as
follows:
BEGINNING at a 1/2 Inch Iron Rod Found for
the Northwest Corner, same being the Southwest
Corner of the “West 82nd Street Commercial
Business Park” Addition to Lubbock, Lubbock
County, Texas as recorded in Volume 1943, Page
586, Deed Records of Lubbock County, Texas;
THENCE South 88°11'27” East - 908.27 feet
along the South line of said “West 82nd Street
Commercial Business Park” Addition to a 1/2
Inch Iron Rod Found for the Northeast Corner;
THENCE South 1°50'24” West - 464.56 feet
along the West line of an unsubdivided tract of
land as recorded in County Clerk File No.
2007027757, Official Public Records of Lubbock
County, Texas, to a 1/2 Inch Iron Rod with Cap
marked “CEC 10194378” Set for the Southeast
Corner;
THENCE North 88°09'51” West - 908.40 feet to
a 1/2 Inch Iron Rod with Cap marked “CEC
10194378” Set for the Southwest Corner;
THENCE North 1°51'23” East - 464.13 feet
along the East line of the “Cambridge Way”
Addition to Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas as
recorded in County Clerk File No. 2049017266,
Official Public Records of Lubbock County,
Texas, to the POINT OF BEGINNING and
containing within these calls a calculated area of
9.68 Acres more or less.

R.O.W.
CCFN

W
au

sa
u 

A
ve

nu
e

Remainder Tract
3 R&P Holdings LLC
CCFN: 2012011105
Total ± 2.38 Acres

H
al

lg
re

n 
Pr

op
er

tie
s I

N
C

C
C

FN
: 2

00
70

27
75

7

W
/3

2'
 R

.O
.W

. D
ed

ic
at

ed
 b

y 
Pl

at
C

C
FN

: 2
01

90
17

26
6

E/
40

' R
.O

.W
. D

ed
ic

at
ed

 b
y 

Pl
at

V
ol

um
e 

19
43

, P
ag

e 
58

6

20' Alley Dedicated by Plat Volume 1943, Page 586

A
lle

y 
D

ed
ic

at
ed

 b
y 

Pl
at

 V
ol

um
e 

82
95

, P
ag

e 
27

9

11
4.

01
'

C
am

br
id

ge
 W

ay
 S

ub
di

vi
si

on
C

C
FN

: 2
01

90
17

26
6

West 82nd Street Commercial Business Park
Volume 1943, Page 586

"A-1" Family Apartment District
± 9.68 Acres

10
' U

nd
er

gr
ou

nd
 U

til
ity

 E
as

em
en

t D
ed

ic
at

ed
 b

y 
C

C
FN

: 1
99

90
21

34
1

292293294

312

313

314

315

316

317

291290

273 272

35 36 37 38 39 40 41 41A 42 42A

1

2

3

4

5

Nora & Carl Richardson Life Estates
CCFN: 2022004631

Ph
oe

ni
x 

W
es

t A
dd

iti
on

V
ol

um
e:

 8
29

5,
 P

ag
e:

 2
79

289

274

AutoCAD SHX Text
Section 26, Block AK Abstract 1515, G RR CO Survey Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas Total ± 9.68 Acres

AutoCAD SHX Text
22-02-1077 - Zone Exhibit

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTERLINE ENGINEERING & CONSULTING, LLC. 8312 Upland Avenue, Lubbock, Texas  79424 (806) 470-8686 TBPE Reg. No. F-16713 TBPLS Reg. No. 10194378

AutoCAD SHX Text
Zone Exhibit

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
200'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1" =

AutoCAD SHX Text
- Set 1/2" Iron Rod with Cap marked "CEC 10194378" Set 1/2" Iron Rod with Cap marked "CEC 10194378" - Found 1/2" Iron Rod Found 1/2" Iron Rod - Plat Limits Plat Limits - Lot Line Lot Line - Adjoiner Lot Line Adjoiner Lot Line - Easement Line - As Described Easement Line - As Described - Right-of-Way Line Right-of-Way Line - County Clerk File Number County Clerk File Number - Right-of-WayRight-of-Way

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT OF BEGINNING Being the same as the Southwest Corner of the West 82nd Street Commercial Business Park

AutoCAD SHX Text
Storm Water Storage and Drainage Easement  Dedicated by Plat CCFN: 2019017266 











 AI# 10741 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 8. 13. 
05/24/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning (District 6): Consider a request for Zone Case 2538-CC, a request of Kip
Ledgerwood, for a zone change from Single-Family District (R-1) to Commercial District (C-4), at 7419
19th Street, located west of Upland Avenue and south of 19th Street, on 2.52 acres of unplatted land out
of Block AK, Section 42, and consider an ordinance.

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on May 5, 2022, and recommended approval of the request by a unanimous
vote. 

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Attachments
Ordinance 2538-CC 
Staff Report 2538-CC 
Documentation 2538-CC 













Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 2538-CC 
City Council Meeting May 24, 2022 

Applicant Kip Ledgerwood 

Property Owner  Kip Ledgerwood 

Council District  6 

Recommendations 
• Staff recommends APPROVAL of this request.

Prior Board or Council Action 
• September 27, 1984: The property was annexed through Ordinance No. 8660 and zoned Transition District

(T).
• October 10, 1985: Ordinance No. 8827; Zone Case 2538. This property was rezoned from Transition

District (T) to Single-Family District (R-1).
• May 5, 2022: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a zone change from Single-

Family District (R-1) to Commercial District (C-4) by a vote of 6-0-0. 

Notification Summary 
• Notifications Sent: 12
• Received In Favor: 0
• Received In Opposition: 0

Site Conditions and History 
This site is currently developed with a few commercial buildings built in 1958. 

Adjacent Property Development  
Properties immediately adjacent to the subject property are developed with commercial uses and vacant land 
zoned Commercial District (C-4) and Single-Family District (R-1). 

Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is addressed as 7419 19th Street, located west of Upland Avenue and south of 19th Street. 
The applicant requests a zone change from Single-Family District (R-1) to Commercial District (C-4).  

Current zoning: Single-Family District (R-1) 

Requested zoning: Commercial District (C-4)  

Intent Statements 
The intent of the current R-1 zoning is, “… to promote orderly and proper development of single-family 
residential units; to protect established and future single-family residential developments from inharmonious 
and harmful land uses; and to provide a “quality environment” for the residents of the district and city.” 

The intent of the requested C-4 zoning is, “… to provide for heavy retail and wholesale commercial uses which 
serve a city-wide or regional area. Such districts should have frontage on regional thoroughfares such as state or 
federal highways. Because of the heavy commercial nature of the permitted uses, compatibility with adjacent 
residential areas should be carefully considered.” 



Page 2 of 2 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The proposed zone change location is along 19th Street, which is designated as a Principal Arterial by the Master 
Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Arterials are continuous routes whose function is to serve high volume needs of local 
and regional traffic. 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zoning is compatible with the surrounding area as there are existing commercial uses and zoning 
immediately adjacent to the subject property.  

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map  
The Future Land Use Map designates the subject property for Residential Low Density. This zone change would 
not bring the property into conformance with the Future Land Use Plan. It is important to note that there are 
existing commercial uses in this area along the 19th Street frontage. 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zone change is in conformance with the zoning ordinance. 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the requested zone change. 

Attachments 
A. 
B. 
C. 
D. 
E. 
F. 
G. 

Case Information  
Thoroughfare Map 
Aerial Map 
Zoning Map 
Future Land Use Map 
Photos 
Application and supporting documentation 

Staff Contacts 
Bailey Shillings  Kristen Sager 
Planner  Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department Planning Department 
806-775-3147  806-775-2109 
bshillings@mylubbock.us ksager@mylubbock.us 

mailto:bshillings@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 2538-CC 

 

Allowable Uses:    Commercial District (C-4)  

Transportation:  The proposed development has a point of access from 19th Street. 

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

19th Street 
Principal Arterial, 

(Modified) 

R.O.W. 110 feet, five-lane, 
undivided, paved. 

R.O.W. 110 feet, seven-
lane, undivided, paved. 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

5.10 District 6 

 Case 2538-CC: Kip Ledgerwood  

Request for a zone change from Single-Family District (R-1) to Commercial District (C-

4), at: 

• 7419 19th Street, located west of Upland Avenue and south of 19th Street, 

on 2.52 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 42. 

PLANNER BAILEY SHILLINGS stated there were twelve (12) notifications sent out. There have been 

zero returned in favor or opposition. Staff shared the location of the property including pictures and maps 

and discussed the surrounding property. Staff recommends approval of this request. 

APPLICANT KIP LEDGERWOOD 5425 30th stated this property is in the old Carlisle area, where 

there are mixed uses, and he prefers the C-4 zoning for existing uses on the property. 

No one spoke in favor or in opposition to the request. 

In the matter of Zone Case 2538-CC a motion was made by JAMES BELL and seconded by TANNER 

NOBLE to approve the request and the Commission members voted 6 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to 

approve the motion. Item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001334










2538-CC 

 

View South, Subject Property. 

 

  

View East. 

View North. 

 

View West. 





 AI# 10742 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 8. 14. 
05/24/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning (District 6): Consider a request for Zone Case 3461-A, a request of Viniro
Holdings, LLC, for a zone change from Single Family District (R-1) to Garden Office District (GO), at
5503 19th Street, located west of Chicago Avenue and south of 18th Street, Clear Sky Addition, Lot
1, and consider an ordinance.

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on May 5, 2022, and recommended denial of the request by a unanimous
vote. Therefore, a minimum of 6 out of 7 Council votes are required to approve the request. 

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Attachments
Ordinance 3461-A 
Staff Report 3461-A 
Documentation 3461-A 









Page 1 of 2 

 

 
Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 

 

Staff Report  Zone Case 3461-A 
City Council Meeting  May 24, 2022 

 
Applicant Viniro Holdings, LLC 

 

Property Owner  Viniro Holdings, LLC 

 

Council District   6 

 

Recommendations   

 Staff recommends APPROVAL of this request. 

 

Prior Board or Council Action 

 March 30, 1956: This property was annexed through Ordinance No. 1866. 

 August 23, 1956, Zone Case 585: This property was zoned Single-Family District (R-1) through Ordinance 

No. 1989. 

 March 3, 2022: Zone Case 3461; A request to rezone from Single-Family District (R-1) to High-Density 

Apartment District (A-2) was denied by the Planning and Zoning Commission. The applicant withdrew the 

request prior to the City Council hearing.  

 May 5, 2022: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended denial of a zone change from Single-

Family District (R-1) to Garden Office District (GO) by a vote of 0-6-0. 
 

Notification Summary   

 Notifications Sent: 15 

 Received In Favor: 0 

 Received In Opposition: 13 (10 were outside of the notification boundary) 

 

Site Conditions and History 

The property was annexed in 1956 and consists of vacant subdivided land. 

 

Adjacent Property Development  

This property is surrounded by single-family residences zoned R-1 to the east, south, and west; and by a daycare 

zoned High-Density Apartment District (A-2) to the north. 

 

Zoning Request and Analysis 

Item Summary 

The subject property is located at 5503 19th Street, located south of 19th Street and west of Chicago Avenue, 

Clear Sky Addition, Lot 1. The applicant is requesting a zone change from Single-Family District (R-1) to Garden 

Office District (GO). 

 

Current zoning:  Single-Family District (R-1) 

 

Requested zoning:  Garden Office District (GO) 

 

Intent Statements 

The intent of the current R-1 zoning is “to promote orderly and proper development of single-family residential 

units; to protect established and future single-family residential developments from inharmonious and harmful 

land uses; and to provide a “quality environment” for the residents of the district and city.” 

 



Page 2 of 2 

 

The intent of the requested GO zoning is, “… to provide for quality garden office development through proper 

planning and design. The regulations are intended to produce an attractive environment which will ensure the 

compatibility between offices and adjacent uses and promote a stable environment between residential and 

commercial uses. When proposed garden office development is adjacent to any residentially zoned property, 

design standards and site planning shall provide for maximum compatibility with the adjacent residential zoning 

districts.” 

 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 

The property is located south of 19th Street, which is designated as a Principal Arterial and west of Chicago 

Avenue, which is designated as a Collector by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Arterials are continuous routes 

whose function is to serve high volume needs of local and regional traffic. 

 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 

existing development. It is appropriate adjacent to other residential uses and will buffer the existing residences 

from the adjacent thoroughfare. 

 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map  
The Future Land Use Map designates the subject property for low density residential. Although GO is not 

consistent with this designation, it is appropriate in this location. 

 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zone change request is in conformance with the Zoning Ordinance and will be appropriate at the 

proposed location. 

 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property is suitable for the proposed zoning. 

 

Attachments 

A. Case Information  

B. Thoroughfare Map 

C. Notification Map       

D. Aerial Map 

E.  Zoning Map 

F.  Future Land Use Map 

G.  Photos 

H. Application and supporting documentation 

I.  Notification Replies 

 

Staff Contacts 

Bailey Shillings    Kristen Sager 

Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 

Planning Department   Planning Department 

806-775-3147    806-775-2109 

bshillings@mylubbock.us  ksager@mylubbock.us 

mailto:bshillings@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 3 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3461-A 

 

Allowable Uses:    Garden Office District (GO)   

Transportation:  The proposed development has a point of access from 19th Street. 

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

19th Street 
Principal Arterial, 

(Modified) 

R.O.W. 110 feet, seven-
lane, undivided, paved. 

R.O.W. 110 feet, seven-
lane, undivided, paved. 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

5.11 District 6  

Case 3461-A: Viniro Holdings, LLC 

Request for a zone change from Single Family District (R-1) to Garden Office District 

(GO) at: 

• 5503 19th Street, located west of Chicago Avenue and south of 19th 

Street, Clear Sky Addition, Lot 1. 

 

PLANNER BAILEY SHILLINGS stated there were fifteen (15) notifications sent out. There has been 

zero (0) returned in favor and thirteen (13) received in opposition, 10 of which were from outside the 

notification boundary. Staff shared the location of the property including pictures and maps and discussed 

the surrounding property. Ms. Shillings advised the current subdivision regulations do not allow 

residential lots to have primary entrances from thoroughfares without Commission approval. Staff 

recommends approval of this request. 

 

OPPOSTION GLEN NEWSOM 5509 19th Street chose this neighborhood because the deed restrictions 

prohibit commercial buildings or use of the land for anything non-residential. He stated concerns regarding 

increased traffic and a risk of car accidents, especially during peak hours. He asked that the neighborhood 

aesthetic be honored as was stated in the original agreement when land was procured from Lubbock 

Christian College in 1956. 

 

OPPOSITION CHRISTINE WYNNS DELCAMBRY 5507 19th Street stated that her house is next 

door to the property. She is concerned about property values decreasing, taxes increasing and traffic as a 

safety issue. Her ability to egress onto 19th Street is her primary concern. 

 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001130


Zone Case 3461-A 
 

Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 2 of 3 
 

OPPOSITION JOHN PROSSER 5507 20th Street advised the residents in that area chose the location 

because it is residential only. Deed restrictions guaranteed that they would never have commercial in the 

neighborhood. Traffic is a concern. He noted the applicant was aware the property was R-1 at the time of 

purchase and the land was donated with the understanding that these deed restrictions would be honored. 

  

OPPOSITION CHERYL DESMOND 5502 20th Street stated the deed restrictions allow owners to 

approve any building or additions in the neighborhood. She is concerned a commercial property could be 

two-story and cause privacy issues. CHAIR SAWYER interrupted briefly to reiterate that Garden Office 

was not commercial and that building height would be restricted to one story due to setbacks. Mrs. 

Desmond countered that commercial would be the next step, and implored the Commission to keep the 

Greenlawn Addition as one residential addition.  

OPPOSITION DR. RAMZI ABDULRAHMAN 5413 19th Street purchased his home due to deed 

restrictions guaranteeing this neighborhood would stay residential. The applicant knowingly bought a 

residential lot, so it should be kept residential. 

 

OPPOSITION WALID ALS SOUKI 5508 22nd Street understands the differences between GO, 

commercial, and residential, but advised GO is still a business and can generate more traffic than even an 

apartment complex depending on the tenant and service provided.  

 

CHAIR SAWYER asked staff if Garden Office allowed retail sales. INTERIM DIRECTOR OF 

PLANNING KRISTEN SAGER stated that GO prohibited retail sales and limited uses to professional 

offices only. 

 

OPPOSITION DR. KENNETH STEPHENSON 5511 19th Street stated his concern for property value 

depreciation and traffic increase. He also has concerns about Chicago being too narrow to support more 

traffic.  

 

OPPOSITION CAROLE DANIEL 5405 20th Street stated there is a large garden office building on the 

north side of Chicago, its spaces were never entirely rented out, and now it is up for sale. She questioned 

how a GO use on the subject property would fare any better and she has traffic concerns. 

 

OPPOSITION REX CALDWELL 5412 20th Street stated an approved change in zoning would be a 

blatant rebuke to what the residents want. The applicant was made offers by residents to purchase the 

property, but the offers were rebuked. He asked that the residents’ desires be taken into consideration and 

the zoning not be changed. 

 

OPPOSITION SANDRA FRANKLIN 5504 20th Street expressed concerns for parking, traffic, and 

stated a business could have clientele coming and going. 

 

ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY KELLI LEISURE stated that our ordinances require that lots have 

their own street access from the lot.  

 

APPLICANT MATTHEW WEBB 1205 Buckingham Avenue, Wolfforth, TX stated the population is 

going to continue to increase and traffic congestion will increase as a result. The City of Lubbock’s plan 

for 2040 shows there are changes coming. He noted the entrance into the business would be on Chicago. 

He argued there has been plenty of time to build on that lot over six decades and it has not happened, so 

the Commission should consider approving his request.  

 



Zone Case 3461-A 
 

Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 3 of 3 
 

BOARD MEMBER TANNER NOBLE asked applicant to address the offers to purchase the property. 

Mr. Webb acknowledged only one offer was made and it was not full price. 

 

CHAIR SAWYER asked the applicant if he had a proposed site plan. Mr. Webb responded that he did 

not, because he first wanted to get the zoning approved. 

  

INTERIM DIRECTOR OF PLANNING KRISTEN SAGER stated a 6-foot masonry or wood 

screening fence would be required adjacent to residentially zoned property to the side and rear. 

BOARD MEMBER BRANDON HARDAWAY asked the applicant if he would have a driveway onto 

19th Street. The applicant advised the architect would determine that and he could have plans ready in a 

few days.  

 

BOARD MEMBER ABEL HERNANDEZ asked if the applicant knew the square footage of proposed 

Garden Office. The applicant replied that each of the four connected offices would be around 1300-1500 

square feet, with a parking ratio of 1:200 on a one-acre lot. 

 

CHAIR SAWYER asked ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY, KELLI LEISURE if the commission 

would be allowed to tie an approval to a site plan. She said they could if the commission saw the need to 

safeguard the surrounding properties. 

 

IN FAVOR CORY DULIN 6515 68th Street, with AMD Engineering clarified that TXDOT determines 

driveway placement on 19th Street. Per their regulations, a driveway onto 19th Street would not be allowed.   

 

IN FAVOR CYNTHIA WEBB 1205 Buckingham Ave, Wolfforth, TX, stated that she and her husband, 

applicant Matthew Webb, have attempted to accommodate the residents. However, as they own the 

property and the request is appropriate for the surrounding area, they should not be denied the right to earn 

a living. Mrs. Webb stated noise pollution and traffic congestion would not be an issue with their plans 

for the space. She hopes that LCU students, as well as residents, could benefit from services offered by 

her tenants if the request was approved. 

 

In the matter of Zone Case 3461-A  a motion was made by JAMES BELL and seconded by ABEL 

HERNANDEZ to approve the request and the Commission members voted  0 (in favor) to 6 (in 

opposition) to approve the motion. Item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

 













3461-A 

 

View West, Subject Property. 

 

  

View East. 

View South. 

 

View North. 







�������

����

�����������

�����$

���������

��

��
������

�/��������
���3

������4�"�%��$�$

*�����	�(������������������������������

�
�(���������/������

�����4���%��$�$�$�$��(��

���������(��

*���������������

�(����/�%��	�����������

���$�2�$

��������*������
���
�������	

�������(�����#���
���(��

�������)��������������
����

���������
�����

��

��������

�
�(������

��������������������

���������
���������

����5

�

����������
����*����������������������



�����0����������������
���
����
����������

�������(���

�/���������

3����������

���������������������
��

<=

�
=

�	�����
���

�'� ��%

<
��

8�
=

�����������������%��$�$

�/������������
�����

�
�

�

�

�
�

�

�

�

�

� �

�

�

�

!
�
�
�

��
�
�

��
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

!
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

!
�
�
�

!
�
�
�

!
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

!
�
�
�

����

!���

!���

����

����

!���

����

����

����

����

!���!���

!���!���

����

�
�



�4

��
' 
�
%

�
�



�4

��
' 
�
%

�
�



�4

��
' 
�
%

�
�



�4

��
' 
�
%

��

�4��' �% ��

�4��' �%

!���

��

�4��' �%
��

�4��' �%��

�4��' �%

��

�4��' �%

!
�
�
�

�
�



�4

��
' 
�
%

��
��
�!

�
�
�

�
�



�4

��
' 
�
%

��
��
�!

�
�
�

�
�



�4

��
' 
�
%

��

�4��' �%

��

�4��' �% ��

�4��' �% ��

�4��' �%

������

'��
�$

��' �%����1' "%

����	

��������


' �%����!' "%

������

��'��
�$

�!' �%�����' ��%

������

'��
�$

�!' �%�����' �%

������������������

��������


��' �%����!' "%

������

��'��
�$

�' ��%�����' "% ������

'��
�$

��' !%�����' "%

������

'��
�$

��' �%�����' �%

������

'��
�$

��' �%�����' �%

������

���*������'��
�$������'��
�$

��' ��%�����' �%

������

'��
�$������'��
�$

�1' �%�����' ��%

����	

��'��
�$

1' "%����!' "%

�������������������

��������
���'��
�$

�!' �%�����' �%

������

��'��
�$

��' ��%�����' �%

����	

��������


' �%�����' �%

������

'��
�$

��' �%�����' ��%

������

'������'������
�$

�"' !%�����' ��%

������

'������'������
�$

��' �%�����' ��%

�����

��'��
�$

' �%�����' �%

������

'��
�$

' "%�����' �%

��'��
�$

�����

��'��
�$

1' ��%���1' �%

�����

��'��
�$

�' �%����' �%

�����

��'��
�$

1' ��%���1' �%

�����

��'��
�$

�' �%����' �%

��

�4��' �% ��

�4��' �%

�����

��'��
�$

�' �%�����' !%

�����

��'��
�$

1' �%���1' ��%

�����

��'��
�$

1' �%���1' ��%

!
�
�
�
��

$�
$

!
�
�
�
��

$�
$

!
�
�
�
��

$�
$

"�����$�$

!�����$�$

��
��
�!

�
�
�

�
�



�4

�!
' 
�
%

�


(


�

�

�

� �

�

��

�����

�

�� �

�

�

�

�

�

� �


(



(



(


�
' 
�
%

�
' 
"
%

"
' 
"
%

��
' 
�
%

�
' 
�%

"
' 
�
%

��
' 
"
%

1' 1% "' 1% ' "% !' !��/�% �' "��/�% �' "% �' "% �' �% 1' "% �' !% ��' �%

�' ��%�' �%��' "��/�%"' "%��' �% ' �% !' ���/�% �' "��/�% �' ��/�% 1' ���/�%

�
�
' 
�
%

�
' 
�
%

1
' 
�
%

�
' 
!
%

�
' 
�
%

�
�'
 �
�
%

!
' 
1
%

�
' 
�
%

�
' 
�
%

1
' 
�
%

�
' 
1
%

�
' 
��

%

"
' 
�
%

"
' 
�
%

�'
 1

%
�
' 
�%

"
' 
�
%

"
' 
�
%

!
' 
�
%

�
' 
�
%

�����!���

!��� !��������!��� !���

�����!���

�����!��� !��� !��� !��� !���

!
�
�
�

��
��
�!

�
�
�

!
�
�
�

!
�
�
�

�
' 

%

�'
 �
�%

���

���

���

���

�����
����
�

��������

�
�
��

�

�
��
�

�

��
��
��

��

�����
����
�

��������

�
�
��

�

�
��
�

�

��
��
��

��

������������������

��'��
�$

��
' 
��

%
"
' 
�
%

��
' 
"
%

��
' 
�
%

"
' 
"
%

��
' 
"
%

�������

�������

��������������

�������

�������

��������������* ��������������*

��������������* ��������������*

�
%

�
%

�

�
�
' 
�
%

�'
 1

%
!
' 
�%

�
�
' 
"
%

!
' 
1
%

�'
 1

%

��
' 
��

%
"
' 
�
%

��
' 
"
%

��
' 
�
%

��
' 
�
%

�
' 
1
%

�
' 
�%

�
' 
�
%

�
' 
��

%
�
' 
1
%


' 

%

��' ����/�%

��' "��/�%1' "%�!' �%��' "%' "%��' "%

��' "%��' �%

�' �%�' ��%"' ��%�' �%

�' 1%�' 1% �' �%�' �%�' �% �' �%' "��/�%"' �%�' �%�' ��%�' �%�' "% �' �%

�
�
' 
�
%

"
' 
�
%

�
�
' 
"
%

�
' 
�
%

�1
' 
��

%
��

' 
"
%

��
' 
�
%

"
' 
"
%

��
' 
�
%


' 
�%

�
' 
�%

�
' 
"
%

�
' 
�
%

�
' 
�
%

�!
' 
"
%

�
' 
�%

��' ����/�%

��' "% ' "% ��' "% ��' �% 1' "% ��' ���/�%

�' 1%�' % �' �% �' �% �' �% ��' �% ��' "%

�' �% "' ��% �' �% �' �%

�' %�' % �' �% �' �% �' �% ' �% ��' ���/�%

"' �% "' ���/�% �' �% �' ���/�%

�
��

�
>

�
 

����������

�����������	���
	)

����������
�����

���(�����������

�
�

�

�
>

�
 

�
�
�	


��
�


�
�	


��
�

����	����

��	
���

���	
���
�����	��

��������	�����

�����	��

��������	�����

�������	����

����������	�����	��

����	��	��������

����	 ���	�	�����

���	�	������
���

���

����	����

�����	��������

������

���	
�

����

��

�

���
�

����
����	��
��

�
�

	
�

��
�
��

��


�
��

��
��



�

�
��

�
�

�
 

�
�
!
�
��

�
"
#
��

$%
&
&
$

�
'
(
(
)
*
+
��
�

,
�-

�
.
�
.

���

� !�"�#�"� !

����� !��

����� !���

�/0"��1&��2%&&3&"$

�4�'15"2�$6&1&�7/0"1�('5/#&%8)9"&%�02%&&1�$)�$6&

:)//)95"2 ��6&1&�7/0"1�0%&�$6&�7%)7&%$4�):�(6�#%0:$5"2

0"#�#&152"�0"#�0%&�")$�$)�(&�$%0*&#��%&7%)#'*&#��)%

%&'1&#�:)%�*)"1$%'*$5)"�95$6)'$�9%5$$&"�*)"*&"$�):�(6

#%0:$5"2�0"#�#&152" ��'5/#&%8�)9"&%�160//�*6&*+�0"#

;&%5:4�0//�#%095"21�7%5)%�$)�*)"1$%'*$5)" 

��
$%���
��&

�'	��
�(����)
�

*+��+�+�

" "+*�#!����  (�

,-.�,� /(/�/(/

,-�0.� /�/�/(/

��/�/�.�.

��

�$��

��
�������
)��
�*�����3��(��������������������*����	���
������������������$

�$��

������������
�������	������$

!$�(����	��

�������������$

"$�(����	��

����������0��$

�$�(����	�������������
�������$������

�����*�������������������������$

�$��

�������
������������

���*�
	����������"�")����������
�!/�"

1$�������������
������

���*�
	����������"�"$�$�$����������
�!/�$

��

��������
��������������	5

�$����������

�����
�������������	�������������	

���
��������$�*���*�*�"' �%

�$�
�����������������

�����
�������������	

���
��������$��' �%����"' �%

�$���*�������������

���%)��"%)�!�%

�$����
� �����������������
����*���	���*

�������������
�
������������������������������������0�

"' �%����"' ��% � ��6�'�

�' �%�����'�% � ��6�'�

�' 1%�����' !% � ��6��'�

�' "%������' �% � ��6��'�

�����5

�$��

��������������������' �%����������������������������������*$

�$��

�������������������
���������������	�������������� ��6��'�������������������
�������(�)

��
�������������������$

!$������$�$�$��
�����������������

������
����
���
��������.������������������$�$�$���

��$

������
������

 

��/�%�&��' �%
�

��

��������

��
/

"
%
�&

��
' 
�
%

�
�$
�$

��/�%�&��' �%
!

�	����
�������
��������



�$�$

���'� ��%

�$�$

���'� ��%

'��
���

��'� ��%

'��
���

��'� ��%

��'��
���

���'� ��%

��'��
���

���'� ��%

��'��
���

���'� ��%

��'��
���

���'� ��%

�'��
���

��'� ��%

�'��
���

��'� ��%

��

���

�

!��	��������)���
�������	������

�����)���
�������	������

������)���
�������	������

������)���
�������	������

������)���
�������	������

�����)���
�����

�	������

��

�

��

�

��

�
��

�

*���
�����)���
�������	������

�
5�
�

�
5�
�

�
5�
�

�
5�
�

������)���
�������	������ ������)���
�������	������

�
��$���$�*��$

��"'� ��%

�
��$���$�*��$

��"'� ��%

�$�$

���'� ��%

�$�$

���'� ��%

'��
���

��'� ��%

'��
���

��'� ��%

��'��
���

���'� ��%

��'��
���

���'� ��%

��'��
���

���'� ��%

��'��
���

���'� ��%

�'��
���

��'� ��%

�'��
���

��'� ��%

��

� ��

�

!��	��������)���
�������	������

�����)���
�������	������

������)���
�������	������

������)���
�������	������

������)���
�������	������

*���
�����)���
�������	������

��

�

��

�

��

�

�
5�
�

�
5�
�

�
5�
�

������)���
�������	������ ������)���
�������	������

�
��$���$�*��$

��"'� ��%

�
��$���$�*��$

��"'� ��%

�
5�
�

�
5�
�

������

���	
�

����

��

�

���
�

����
����	��
��

�
�

	
�

��
�
��

��


�
��

��
��



�

�
��

�
�

�
 

�
�
!
�
��

�
"
#
��

$%
&
&
$

�
'
(
(
)
*
+
��
�

,
�-

�
.
�
.

���

� !�"�#�"� !

����� !��

����� !���

�/0"��1&��2%&&3&"$

�4�'15"2�$6&1&�7/0"1�('5/#&%8)9"&%�02%&&1�$)�$6&

:)//)95"2 ��6&1&�7/0"1�0%&�$6&�7%)7&%$4�):�(6�#%0:$5"2

0"#�#&152"�0"#�0%&�")$�$)�(&�$%0*&#��%&7%)#'*&#��)%

%&'1&#�:)%�*)"1$%'*$5)"�95$6)'$�9%5$$&"�*)"*&"$�):�(6

#%0:$5"2�0"#�#&152" ��'5/#&%8�)9"&%�160//�*6&*+�0"#

;&%5:4�0//�#%095"21�7%5)%�$)�*)"1$%'*$5)" 

��
$%���
��&

�'	��
�(����)
�

*+��+�+�

" "+*�#!����  (�

,-.�,� /(/�/(/

,-�0.� /�/�/(/

��/�/�.�.

�.

��/"%�&��' �%
�

������
�(�����

��/"%�&��' �%
�

������
�(�����



�$�$

���'� ��%

�$�$

���'� ��%

'��
���

��'� ��%

'��
���

��'� ��%

��'��
���

���'� ��%

��'��
���

���'� ��%

��'��
���

���'� ��%

��'��
���

���'� ��%

!��	��������)���
�������	������

�����)���
�������	������

������)���
�������	������������)���
�������	������

�
5�
�

�
5�
�

�
5�
�

�
5�
�

�
5�
�

�
5�
�

�
5�
�

�
5�
�

�
��$���$�*��$

��"'� ��%

�
��$���$�*��$

��"'� ��%

�$�$

���'� ��%

�$�$

���'� ��%

'��
���

��'� ��%

'��
���

��'� ��%

��'��
���

���'� ��%

��'��
���

���'� ��%

��'��
���

���'� ��%

��'��
���

���'� ��%

!��	��������)���
�������	������

�����)���
�������	������

������)���
�������	������ ������)���
�����

�	������

�
5�
�

�
5�
�

�
5�
�

�
5�
�

�
5�
�

���������*��������
�������
�����
�

�
��$���$�*��$

��"'� ��%

�
��$���$�*��$

��"'� ��%

������

���	
�

����

��

�

���
�

����
����	��
��

�
�

	
�

��
�
��

��


�
��

��
��



�

�
��

�
�

�
 

�
�
!
�
��

�
"
#
��

$%
&
&
$

�
'
(
(
)
*
+
��
�

,
�-

�
.
�
.

���

� !�"�#�"� !

����� !��

����� !���

�/0"��1&��2%&&3&"$

�4�'15"2�$6&1&�7/0"1�('5/#&%8)9"&%�02%&&1�$)�$6&

:)//)95"2 ��6&1&�7/0"1�0%&�$6&�7%)7&%$4�):�(6�#%0:$5"2

0"#�#&152"�0"#�0%&�")$�$)�(&�$%0*&#��%&7%)#'*&#��)%

%&'1&#�:)%�*)"1$%'*$5)"�95$6)'$�9%5$$&"�*)"*&"$�):�(6

#%0:$5"2�0"#�#&152" ��'5/#&%8�)9"&%�160//�*6&*+�0"#

;&%5:4�0//�#%095"21�7%5)%�$)�*)"1$%'*$5)" 

��
$%���
��&

�'	��
�(����)
�

*+��+�+�

" "+*�#!����  (�

,-.�,� /(/�/(/

,-�0.� /�/�/(/

��/�/�.�.

�<

��/"%�&��' �%
�

�������
�(�����

��/"%�&��' �%
�

�������
�(�����



������

����	
�

�������������

�����

��������	

������������

������

�����	
�

��������������

������

����	
�

�������������

������������������

��������	

�������������

������

�����	
�

������������� ������

����	
�

�������������

������

����	
�

�������������

������

����	
�

�������������

������

��� ����������	
����������	
�

��������������

������

����	
����������	
�

���������!����

�����

�����	
�

������������

�������������������

��������	������	
�

�������������

������

�����	
�

��������������

�����

��������	

������������

������

����	
�

��������������

������

����������"����	
�

��������������

������

����������"����	
�

��������������

"���#

�����	
�

��������!���

������

����	
�

������������

�����

�����	
�

������������

�����

�����	
�

�����������

�����

�����	
�

������������

�����

�����	
�

�����������

"���#

�����	
�

������������

"���#

�����	
�

������������

"���#

�����	
�

������������

������������������

�����	
�

�����
�

�����
�

�����
������
�

�����
�

�����
�

$������������� $������������� 

$������������� $������������� 

BUILDING C - 6909 82ND STREET



From: Haden, Amanda R
To: Bailey Shillings
Subject: Reference Case 3461-A
Date: Wednesday, May 4, 2022 8:19:04 AM

WARNING: This message was sent from outside the City of Lubbock's email
system.
It could contain harmful attachments or links to harmful web pages.

To Bailey Shillings,
 

We are aware of the owner of the empty lot on 19th and Chicago is still trying to put commercial
office/building there. We are asking for you to deny the request from him as it is a horrible idea for

our neighborhood. We live at 5513 19th St and would strongly disagree for a commercial building to
go up three houses down from us. The pictures the owner presented are awful and do not show the
beautiful home directly beside and behind the lot.
We do not need the danger of cars coming in and out of that corner lot with our homes right next
door. This is a beautiful place to live, and we want to keep it safe for all.
Please continue to uphold our neighborhood by rejecting this appeal from the landowner.
 
Thank you,
Amanda and Steven Haden

At 5513 19th St
     
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

Amanda Haden
Accreditation Coordinator
Nursing Department
Lubbock Christian University
5601 19th Street
Lubbock, TX  79407
 
o 806.720.7180
LCU.edu

 

Lubbock Christian University is a Christ-centered, academic community of learners,
transforming the hearts, minds, and hands of students for lives of purpose and service.

mailto:amanda.haden@lcu.edu
mailto:BShillings@mail.ci.lubbock.tx.us
tel:806.720.7180
https://protect-us.mimecast.com/s/vOKMCNk67ZFmvy0f4WBns?domain=lcu.edu




















1

Bailey Shillings

From: Beverly Crossnoe <beverly@crossnoe.com>
Sent: Monday, May 2, 2022 11:11 AM
To: Bailey Shillings
Subject: Case  3461-A Zoning change request

WARNING: This message was sent from outside the City of Lubbock's email system. 

It could contain harmful attachments or links to harmful web pages. 

 

To Bailey Shillings: 
I understand that the owner of the vacant land at 19th and Chicago is still trying to put 
commercial buildings there.  From the outpouring of support AGAINST the zone change a few 
weeks ago, it is obvious that the neighborhood feels strongly that this is a residential area and 
it should not be changed. 
 
Based on information gathered from the appraisal district website, Mr. Webb purchased land in 
Wolfforth in June of 2019 and built a home now appraised at $420,000.  He purchased the 
vacant lot on 19th  in August of 2021 obviously as a speculative investment since he had just 
completed his own home. He could not have considered that this was an old residential 
neighborhood that would not welcome a commercial venture.   
 
His request has been changed from high density apartments to “garden offices”,  but that still 
brings in increased traffic at the red light at that intersection which is already a 
problem.  Chicago Avenue has elementary schools about two blocks to the north and ten blocks 
to the south  and increased traffic in the mornings and afternoons is a concern even without a 
commercial venture on that corner. 
 
There are private residences that border this property on three sides – all sides except 19th 
street.  They should not have to be the “buffer” zone that is usually provided by duplexes 
between private homes and commercial property.  Their property values especially would be 
severely impacted.   
 
Please continue to uphold our neighborhood by rejecting this appeal from a speculative investor. 
 
Thank you, 
Beverly and Marvin Crossnoe 
At 5506-22nd since 1972 – - - 50 years! 



1

Bailey Shillings

From: ken4feet@aol.com
Sent: Monday, May 2, 2022 7:53 PM
To: Bailey Shillings
Cc: janainlubbock@aol.com
Subject: Zoning Change on 19th street Case # 3461

WARNING: This message was sent from outside the City of Lubbock's email system. 

It could contain harmful attachments or links to harmful web pages. 

 

We are writing to voice our opposition to the proposed zoning change for case #3461 at the southwest corner of 19th 
street and Chicago. We are home owners at 5511 19th street and have lived there for more than 20 years. From the 
application that was filed, we have copied the intent of R-1 zoning below: 
 
The intent of the current R-1 zoning is “to promote orderly and proper development of single-family residential units; to 
protect established and future single-family residential developments from inharmonious and harmful land uses; and to 
provide a “quality environment” for the residents of the district and city.”  
 
Garden offices would certainly be inharmonious to the Green Lawn subdivision that is filled with single family residences. 
When we purchased our lot and built our home, we never expected that this neighborhood could contain garden offices. 
We would be concerned about the increase traffic density, especially with turning off of 19th street into a garden office. 
Our property values would certainly decrease, which would not be fair to the residents of this neighborhood.  
 
There is overwhelming opposition to rezoning this property, and the will of the current residents should be taken into 
account over a single investor wanting to come in and change our neighborhood. To our knowledge, this property has not 
been on the market for very long. For many years it was owned by the residents to the west of the lot and was never put 
up for sale. We have been told that an offer was made to purchase the property from the current owner by one or more 
Green Lawn residents. 
 
Please maintain the harmony of single family residences and protect our property values by denying this request to 
change the zoning classification. Thank you for your consideration. 
 
Kenneth and Jana Stephenson 
5511 19th street 
Lubbock, Tx 
 
 



1

Bailey Shillings

From: Haden, Amanda R <amanda.haden@lcu.edu>
Sent: Wednesday, May 4, 2022 8:19 AM
To: Bailey Shillings
Subject: Reference Case  3461-A

WARNING: This message was sent from outside the City of Lubbock's email system. 

It could contain harmful attachments or links to harmful web pages. 

 

To Bailey Shillings, 
 
We are aware of the owner of the empty lot on 19th and Chicago is still trying to put commercial office/building there. 
We are asking for you to deny the request from him as it is a horrible idea for our neighborhood. We live at 5513 19th St 
and would strongly disagree for a commercial building to go up three houses down from us. The pictures the owner 
presented are awful and do not show the beautiful home directly beside and behind the lot.  
We do not need the danger of cars coming in and out of that corner lot with our homes right next door. This is a 
beautiful place to live, and we want to keep it safe for all.  
Please continue to uphold our neighborhood by rejecting this appeal from the landowner. 
 
Thank you, 
Amanda and Steven Haden  
At 5513 19th St 
       
 
 
 
  
 

  

  

  

Amanda Haden 
Accreditation Coordinator 
Nursing Department 
Lubbock Christian University
5601 19th Street 
Lubbock, TX  79407 
  
o 806.720.7180 
LCU.edu 

  

Lubbock Christian University is a Christ-centered, academic community of learners, transforming the hearts, 
minds, and hands of students for lives of purpose and service. 



1

Bailey Shillings

From: CityPlanning

Sent: Thursday, May 5, 2022 1:17 PM

To: Bailey Shillings

Subject: FW: P & Z Case # 3461-A

 

 

From: P Bryant <pbryantfamily@gmail.com>  

Sent: Thursday, May 5, 2022 12:06 PM 

To: CityPlanning <cityplanning@mail.ci.lubbock.tx.us> 

Subject: P & Z Case # 3461-A 

 

WARNING: This message was sent from outside the City of Lubbock's email system. 

It could contain harmful attachments or links to harmful web pages. 

 

I would like to let you know we are OPPOSED to changing the zoning at 19th street and Chicago! 

We would like to keep these lots as residential lots! Planning & Zoning Case # 3461-A 

Thank you so much, 

Phil and Dene' Bryant 

 

Phil and Dene' Bryant 

5508 21st street 

lubbock TX 

79407 

806-787-7708 

pbryantfamily@gmail.com 

 



 AI# 10744 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 8. 15. 
05/24/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Planning: Consider a resolution approving and granting a variance from the applicable
300-foot minimum distance provision of the City of Lubbock Ordinance No. 2009-O0060, at 1915 19th
Street, for an alcoholic beverage permit for End Zone #4.

Item Summary
Effective August 8, 2009, Ordinance No. 2009-O0060 Amended Section 14.1.007 (Section 18-11),
Alcoholic beverages near church, school, or hospital in Chapter 14, Offenses-Miscellaneous, of the City
of Lubbock Code of Ordinance related to businesses who obtain a permit from the Texas Alcohol
Beverage Commission (TABC) for the sale of alcohol.

As part of the ordinance, the City Council adopted a standard which prohibits any business that is within
300 feet of a school, measured from property line to property line, from having a permit issued by
TABC. The City Council may consider a variance to the 300-foot requirement in the Texas Alcohol
Beverage Code.

The request for a variance is from End Zone #4, located at 1915 19th Street which is within 300 feet of a
school, Lubbock High School, located at 2004 19th Street. A New World Christian Daycare is also
located within 300 feet of the subject property at 1912 19th Street. However, since the request is for
off-premise alcohol sales only, the separation requirement from a daycare is not applicable.

A request for a new permit for off-premise alcohol sales at this location is pending and requires a
separation variance request. The City Council has wide discretion in considering whether to grant a
variance. The following may be considered by the City Council (As noted by the State of Texas statue
providing for the variance process):

1) The enforcement of the regulation in a particular instance is not in the best interest of the public;
2) The regulation constitutes waste or inefficient use of land or other resource;
3) The regulation creates an undue hardship on the applicant, does not serve its intended purpose or is not
effective or necessary;
4) The variance may be granted for any other reason, after consideration of the health, safety and welfare
of the public and the equity of the situation, if the governing body finds it to be in the best interest of the
community.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager 



Attachments
Resolution - End Zone #4 
Variance Request - End Zone #4 
Zoning and TABC Pre-Qualification 
Map - End Zone #4 





























2004

16
3419

26

1918

1645

1905

17
14

19
16

19
18

19
01

1814

17
12

20
05

20
05

1922

2002

19
16

1918

19
24

1812

17
11

1923

1944

1634

1912
19

22

18
11

2102

1920

1916

21
07

1924

19
17

2007

1902

19
24

2006

19
23

17
10

20
01

1720

19
09

21
08

20
10

17
25

19
12

19
24

1929 1801

17
10

17
15

17
17

19
20

1904

19
05

17
24

21
01

19
12

19
07

20
05

19
24

1941

1806

19
14

1905

1921

19
10

1702

21
01

19
10

1812

1906

1910

18
05

1814

21
07

19
20

2001
19

06
19

04

19
23

1720

1628

1628

19
19

1805

1912

21
02

1904

1807

19
14

17
19

19
02

17
12

18
19

1911

17
13

1805

1802

21
06

19
10

1807

2109

2102

1908

21
05

1913

18
09

21
04

19
18

1946 19
46

17
09

2120

19
18

1908

17
23

1810

2006

21
04

1705

1908

19
25

1809

19
16

1911

1906

1914

17
18

1914

17
16

21
03

21
07

17
21

17
08

18
08

19
25

21
06

19
02

1909

17
15

18
11

1808

19
08

19
11

19
03

17
07

19
06

19
18

19
22

19
16

19
21

1808 17
28

19
08

19
27

19
11

21
05

17
02

18
12

1904

1907

17
22

1816

2106

1919

1635

20
10

21
09

19
22

2003

19
14

19
10

19
08

19
15

19
02

1906

19
26

19
12

21
05 2101

19
20

1910

21
02

1916
1916

19
20

21
03

18
08

1917

1910
1908

19
24

19
22

19
13 2002

18
06

19
12

19
22

19
08

18
03

1820

17
26

17
20

19
12

18
01

18
07

19TH ST

20TH ST

21ST ST

19TH ST

21ST ST

18TH ST18TH ST

AV
EQ

AV
E T

AV
E U

AV
E S

AV
E T

AV
E R

A NEW
WORLD CHRISTIAN LC #1

ANTIOCH FULL GOSPEL CHURCH

DUPRE
ELEMENTARY

LUBBOCK HIGH

.LEGEND
Permit Requested
Churches
Schools
Day Cares
300-Ft Buffer Churches
300-Ft Buffer Schools
300-Ft Buffer Day Cares
Parcels

PLANNING DEPARTMENT
As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational 
purposes  and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  It does 
not represent an on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

0 100 200 30050

Feet 5/17/2022

1915 19th Street - ABP Request

1915



 AI# 10725 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 8. 16. 
05/24/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Planning: Consider a resolution approving and granting a variance from the applicable
300-foot minimum distance provision of the City of Lubbock Ordinance No. 2009-O0060, at 3131 34th
Street, for an alcoholic beverage permit for Vizo's African Bar and Restaurant.

Item Summary
Effective August 8, 2009, Ordinance No. 2009-O0060 Amended Section 14.01.007 (Section 18-11),
Alcoholic beverages-Sale near church, school or hospital, in Chapter 14, Offenses - Miscellaneous, of
the City of Lubbock Code of Ordinance related to businesses who obtain a permit from the Texas
Alcohol Beverage Commission (TABC) for the sale of alcohol.

As part of the ordinance, the City Council adopted a standard which prohibits any business that is within
300 feet of any school or daycare, measured from property line to property line, from having a permit
issued by TABC. The City Council may consider a variance to the 300-foot requirement in the Texas
Alcoholic Beverage Code.

The request for a variance is from Vizo's African Bar and Restaurant, located at 3131 34th Street, which
is within 300 feet of a daycare, Mrs. O's Learning Academy, located at 3101 34th Street.

A request for a new permit for on-premise alcohol sales at this location is now pending and requires a
separation variance request. The City Council has wide discretion in considering whether to grant a
variance. The following may be considered by the City Council (as noted by the State of Texas statute
providing for the variance process):

1) The enforcement of the regulation in a particular instance is not in the best interest of the public;
2) The regulation constitutes waste or inefficient use of land or other resources;
3) The regulation creates an undue hardship on the applicant, does not serve its intended purpose or is not
effective or necessary;
4) The variance may be granted for any other reason, after consideration of the health, safety and welfare
of the public and the equity of the situation, if the governing body finds it to be in the best interest of the
community.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager

Attachments



Resolution 
Vizo's-Request for Variance 
Zoning and TABC Pre-Qualification 
Map - Vizo's 

















































30
13

32
02

32
06

32
12

3321 30
15

32
12

33
02

32
04

3007

33
04

33
01

31
10

32
02

32
20

30
20

30
02

31
20

31
02

32
16

31
01

30
14

30
06

30
04

32
11

32
13

31
13

31
15

31
17

32
20

32
18

30
08

30
19

30
50

31
42 313032
08

32
06

32
03

31
15

31
21

31
23

32
14

32
093215

32
17

32
13

32
15

31
13

31
15

30
09

35
10

30
05

30
07

33
04

30
17

30
19 30
01

30
03

30
05

32
06

30
16

31
03

31
05

30
10

31
07

31
09

30
13

30
25

30
04

30
02

32
03

31
06

30
12

31
04

32
18

31
18

31
16

32
17

31
09

32
02 3040 30
02

31
01

31
03

31
05

33
06

33
02

32
04

32
12

32
10

32
08

31
14

31
12

30
07

32
01

32
03

32
05

30
02

32
01

32
10

30
12

30
10

30
11

30
13

30
09

30
11

32
01 31
19

32
0333
03

33
01

33
03 300130
05

30
14

30
12

30
01

30
03

30
05

30
11

32
15

32
13

32
11

32
14

32
16

30
20

30
18

30
07

30
16

32
04

32
12

32
16

32
14

31
08

31
20

31
14

31
12

31
10

31
11

30
06

30
04

31
07

32
07

32
09

31
24

30
17

31
06

31
02

32
01

30
09

31
11

31
13

36
07

31
16

32
19

31
12

32
07

32
09

32
11

31
14

31
1632
04

31
08

31
10

30
15

31
11

33
04

32
15

32
17

3301

30
11

30
133015

30
20

30
08

30
06

30
04

30
01

30
03

33
02

33
02

33
01

32
14

32
02

30
17

30
19

30
21

30
16

30
14

30
12

30
08

30
06

32
083218

31
02

31
04

30
10

30
08

32
10

32
08

32
06

31
08

31
06

32
15

31
19

31
21

32
19

32
21

32
10

31
18

32
05

32
07

32
17

32
19

32
18

32
16

32
08

32
06

30
08

30
04

32
13

30
06

30
18

30
16

31
18

32
0732
09

32
11

32
04

32
02

30
15

3115
3101

3103

31
01

31
03

31
05

31
09

33
01

33
03

31
21

31
01

32
17

32
09

32
07

32
05

30
10

32
10

32
12

HA
RT

FO
RD

 AV

FL
IN

T A
V

GA
RY

 AV
35TH ST

34TH ST

36TH ST

33RD ST

37TH ST

WESTMINSTER
PRESBYTERIAN

PRESCHOOL

MRS. O'S
AT TECH

METHODIST
CHURCH
FORREST

YOUNG LIFEPRESBYTERIAN
WESTMINSTER CHURCH

METHODIST FORREST HEIGHTSWESTINSTER
PRESBYTERIAN

CHURCHPRESBYTERIAN
CHURCH

PROVIDENCE
PRESBYTERIAN

CHURCH

WESTMINSTER
PRESBYTERIAN

CHURCH

.
LEGEND

Permit Requested
Churches
Day Cares
300-Ft Buffer Churches
300-Ft Buffer Day Cares
Parcels

PLANNING DEPARTMENT
As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational 
purposes  and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  It does 
not represent an on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

0 100 200 30050

Feet 4/22/2022

3131 34th Street - ABP Request

3131


	Agenda
	4.04.__Board Recognitions
	6.01.__Minutes
	       ATT_4.26.2022
	       ATT_4.27.2022 S Coffee with the Mayor
	7.01.__Budget Amendment #26
	       ATT_Budget Amendment 26
	       ATT_Exhibit A - BA 26
	7.02.__Budget Amendment #27
	       ATT_Budget Amendment 27
	       ATT_Exhibit A - BA 27
	7.03.__Budget Amendment 28
	       ATT_Budget Amendment 28
	7.03.1.__Authorizing City Mgr to Purchase Vehicles
	       ATT_Resolution
	7.04.__Budget Amendment 29
	       ATT_Budget Amendment 29
	7.05.__West Texas Gas Franchise Agreement
	       ATT_Ordinance - WTG Franchise Fee-c
	7.06.__Well Maintenance and Repair Services
	       ATT_Resolution- STPWellService
	       ATT_Contract- STPWellService
	       ATT_ProjectSummary-STPWell
	7.07.__Paul's Project ESG CV - Amendment 1
	       ATT_Resolution - Paul's Project
	       ATT_Amendment to Paul's Project
	7.08.__Salvation Army ESG CV - Amendment 1
	       ATT_Amendment to Salvation Army
	       ATT_Resolution - Salvation Army
	7.09.__Federal Inspection Facility at LPSIA
	       ATT_Resolution - Tommy Klein
	       ATT_Contract - Tommy Klein
	       ATT_Bid Submittal Form -  Tommy Klein Construction Inc
	       ATT_CBP Letter
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_Project Summary
	7.10.__Six 2022 Dodge 1/2 Ton Trucks - Grapevine DJJ, LLC
	       ATT_Resolution - 31066317
	       ATT_Purchase Order 31066317
	       ATT_Budget Summary_92720
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_Budget Summary_92725
	       ATT_CIP Detail_92720
	       ATT_CIP Detail_92724
	       ATT_CIP Detail_92725
	7.11.__Playground Replacement - Stumpy Hamilton & Washington Parks
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_PO 10025317 0 Stumpy Hamilton
	       ATT_Stumpy Hamilton Rendering
	       ATT_PO 10025319 - Washington
	       ATT_Washington Rendering
	       ATT_CIP Budget Detail
	7.12.__Job Training Agreement (TTUHSC)
	       ATT_Resolution 
	       ATT_Agreement 
	       ATT_Budget Detail - 8669
	Project Cost Detail

	8.01.__Board Appointments
	8.02.__Board Appointments
	       ATT_Bylaws
	       ATT_Senate Bill 1474
	8.03.__Board Appointments
	8.04.__Resolution - Mayor Pro Tem
	       ATT_Resolution
	8.05.__ZC 2904-K
	       ATT_Ordinance 2904-K
	       ATT_Staff Report 2904-K
	       ATT_Documentation 2904-K
	2904-K Slide Pics.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3


	8.06.__ZC 3145-I
	       ATT_Ordinance 3145-I
	       ATT_Staff Report 3145-I
	       ATT_Documentation 3145-I
	Case Information 3145-I
	3145-I_1locator
	3145-I_2imag
	3145-I_3zoning
	3145-I_4flup
	Photo's 3145-I
	Site Plan
	Main Site Plan
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	Survey
	Application.pdf

	8.07.__ZC 3286-A
	       ATT_Ordinance 3286-A
	       ATT_Staff Report 3286-A
	       ATT_Documentation 3286-A
	5.3 Zone Case 3286-A Packet.pdf
	3286-A - Packet - waiting on edited staff report.pdf
	Zone Case 3286-A - Case Information
	3286A_1locator


	Notification Map 3286-A
	5.3 Zone Case 3286-A Packet
	3286-A - Packet - waiting on edited staff report.pdf
	3286A_2imag
	3286A_3zoning
	3286A_4flup
	Zone Case 3286-A - Photos
	3286-A Application.pdf
	Additional Information


	Reply 1

	8.08.__ZC 2418-B
	       ATT_Ordinance 2418-B
	       ATT_Staff Report 2418-B
	       ATT_Documentation 2418-B
	Case Information 2418-B
	2418-B_1locator
	Notification Map
	2418-B_2imag
	2418-B_3zoning
	2418-B_4flup
	Photo's 2418-B
	Site Plan 2
	Letter 2 in Opposition
	letter in favor
	Letter in Opposition 3
	Letter in Opposition
	FW_ Game Room on Slide Road
	Application.pdf

	8.09.__ZC 1511-L
	       ATT_Ordinance 1511-L
	       ATT_Staff Report 1511-L
	       ATT_Documentation 1511-L
	1511-L Slide Pics.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3


	8.10.__ZC 1876-A
	       ATT_Ordinance 1876-A
	       ATT_Staff Report 1876-A
	       ATT_Documentation 1876-A
	Case Information 1876-A
	1876-A_1locator
	Notification Map
	1876-A_2imag
	1876-A_3zoning
	1876-A_4flup
	Photo's 1876-A
	Survey
	Letter
	Letter in Opposition
	Application.pdf

	8.11.__ZC 3257-N
	       ATT_Ordinance 3257-N
	       ATT_Staff Report 3257-N
	       ATT_Documentation 3257-N
	3257-N_slide pics.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3


	8.12.__ZC 2916-D
	       ATT_Ordinance 2916-D
	       ATT_Staff Report 2916-D
	       ATT_Documentation 2916-D
	5.9 Zone Case 2916-D Packet.pdf
	Packet - Waiting on Staff Report 2916-D.pdf
	Zone Case 2916-D - Case Information
	2916-D_1locator


	Notification Map 2916-D
	5.9 Zone Case 2916-D Packet
	Packet - Waiting on Staff Report 2916-D.pdf
	2916-D_2imag
	2916-D_3zoning
	2916-D_4flup
	Zone Case 2916-D - Photos
	2916-D Application.pdf
	2916-D - Applicant Description
	Exhibit
	Sheets and Views
	11x17




	Reply 1 2916-D
	Reply 2 2916-D

	8.13.__ZC 2538-CC
	       ATT_Ordinance 2538-CC
	       ATT_Staff Report 2538-CC
	       ATT_Documentation 2538-CC
	5.10 Zone Case 2538-CC Packet.pdf
	Packet - Waiting on Staff Report 2538-CC.pdf
	Zone Case 2538-CC - Case Information
	2538-C_1locator
	2538-C_2imag
	2538-C_3zoning
	2538-C_4flup
	Zone Case 2538-CC - Photos
	Application - 2538-CC.pdf
	Metes and Bounds - 2538-CC



	8.14.__ZC 3461-A
	       ATT_Ordinance 3461-A
	       ATT_Staff Report 3461-A
	       ATT_Documentation 3461-A
	5.11 Zone Case 3461-A Packet.pdf
	Packet Waiting on Staff Report - 3461-A.pdf
	Zone Case 3461-A - Case Information
	3461-A_1locator


	Notification Map 3461-A
	5.11 Zone Case 3461-A Packet
	Packet Waiting on Staff Report - 3461-A.pdf
	3461-A_2imag
	3461-A_3zoning
	3461-A_4flup
	Zone Case 3461-A - Photos
	3461-A Application.pdf


	82nd Street Offices 2 
	Pages from 82nd street LOT-C 220404 Milestone Coordination
	Building C Tenant Diagram Blank
	Sheets
	A00 - Unnamed


	Reference Case  3461-A
	Reply 1 - 3461-A 
	Reply 2 - 3461-A 
	Reply 3 - 3461-A
	Reply 4 - 3461-A
	Reply 5 - 3461-A
	Reply 6 - 3461-A
	Reply 7 - 3461-A
	Reply 8 - 3461-A
	Reply 9 - 3461-A
	Reply 10 - 3461-A
	Reply 11 - 3461-A
	Reply 13 - 3461-A

	8.15.__Alcohol Variance 
	       ATT_Resolution - End Zone _4
	       ATT_Variance Request - End Zone _4
	End Zone #4 Applicant Request
	EndZone Applicant Letter

	       ATT_Zoning and TABC Pre-Qualification 
	End Zone #4 Zoning application
	EndZone Liquor Beer & Wine Alcohol Separation Docs_Part2
	EndZone Liquor Beer & Wine Alcohol Separation Docs_Part3

	End Zone #4 TABC Pre-Qualification  Packet
	EndZone Liquor Beer & Wine Alcohol Separation Docs_Part4
	EndZone Liquor Beer & Wine Alcohol Separation Docs_Part5
	EndZone Liquor Beer & Wine Alcohol Separation Docs_Part6
	EndZone Liquor Beer & Wine Alcohol Separation Docs_Part7
	EndZone Liquor Beer & Wine Alcohol Separation Docs_Part8
	EndZone Liquor Beer & Wine Alcohol Separation Docs_Part9
	EndZone Liquor Beer & Wine Alcohol Separation Docs_Part10
	EndZone Liquor Beer & Wine Alcohol Separation Docs_Part11


	       ATT_Map - End Zone _4
	8.16.__AS Resolution
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Vizo's-Request for Variance
	Vizo_Part5
	Vizo_Part6

	       ATT_Zoning and TABC Pre-Qualification
	Vizo_Part2
	Vizo_Part3
	Vizo_Part8
	Vizo_Part9
	Vizo_Part10
	Vizo_Part11
	Vizo_Part12
	Vizo_Part13
	Vizo_Part14
	Vizo_Part15
	Vizo_Part16
	Vizo_Part17
	Vizo_Part18
	Vizo_Part19
	Vizo_Part20
	Vizo_Part21
	Vizo_Part22
	Vizo_Part23
	Vizo_Part24
	Vizo_Part25

	       ATT_Map - Vizo's

	Location or Address: 1711 Marsha Sharp Fwy
	LotsTracts: All of lots 14,15,and 16 Block 106, Overton Addition
	Survey  Abstract: Overton Addition Volume 6104, Page 195
	Total Acreage of Request: 0.47
	Existing Land Use: Office (to be removed)
	Existing Zoning: CB-5
	Requested Zoning: C-4
	Firm Name: Deaco Group
	Name: Larae Tucker
	Address: 402 Burl Moore Rd
	City: Ennis
	State: TX
	ZIP Code: 75119
	Telephone: 214-601-5495
	Email: larae@deacogroup.com
	Date: 3/31/22
	Printed Name: Larae Tucker
	Firm Name_2: Highwell Real Estate
	Owner: Kelly Hampton
	Address_2: 180 State Street
	City_2: Southlake
	State_2: TX
	ZIP Code_2: 76092
	Telephone_2: 972-333-5090
	Email_2: khampton@highwellrealestate.com
	Date_2: 3/31/22
	Printed Name_2: Kelly Hampton
	Date_3: 3/31/22
	Printed Name_3: Larae Tucker
	Zone Case No: 
	Planning and Zoning Commission Date: 
	Request for zoning change from: 
	To: 
	Lots: 
	Blocks: 
	Addition: 
	No 2: Off
	Yes 2: Yes
	Yes 1: Yes
	No 1: Off


